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Re: In  re: Application of Southern Union Company for 
Authority to Issue and Sell Securities Pursuant  to 
Section 366.04, Florida Statutes and Chapter 25-8, 
Florida Administrative Code; and Request for 
Approval to Borrow Funds for Short-Term Financing 
Purposes. 

Dear Ms. Bayo: 

Enclosed for filing on behalf of Southern Union Company are  the  original 
and five (5) copies of its Application for Authority t o  Issue and Sell Securities 
Pursuant  to Section 366.04, Florida Statutes and Chapter 25-8, Florida 
Administrative Code; and Request for Approval to Borrow Funds for Short-term 
Financing Purposes and exhibits thereto. A diskette containing the application 
in Wordperfect format has been provided. 

For our records, please acknowledge your receipt of this filing on the 
enclosed copy of this letter. Thank you for your consideration. 

Sincerely, 

HOLLAND & KNIGHT LLP 

D. Bruce May ( ,,) 
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In Re: Application of Southern Union 
Company for Authority to Issue and Sell 
Securities Pursuant to Section 366.04, 
Florida Statutes, and Chapter 
25-8, Florida Administrative Code; and 
Request for Approval to  Borrow Funds 
for Short-term Financing Purposes 

Docket NO. 4 9 i 3 37 - G LC 
Filed: September 7, 1999 

APPLICATION OF SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY FOR 
AUTHORITY TO ISSUE AND SELL SECURITIES PURSUANT 

TO SECTION 366.04, FLORIDA STATUTES AND 

AND REQUEST FOR APPROVAL TO BORROW FUNDS 
CHAPTER 25-8, FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE; 

FOR SHORT-TERM FINANCING PURPOSES 

Southern Union Company ("Southern Union"), by and through undersigned 

counsel, pursuant to  Section 366.04, Florida Statutes, and Chapter 25-8, Florida 

Administrative Code, hereby files this application for authority to issue and sell 

securities, and to borrow funds for short-term financing purposes during the twelve 

month period ending October 31,2000. In support of its application, Southern 

Union states: 

1. Aaulicant Information 

The name and principal business address of the applicant are as follows: 

Southern Union Company 
504 Lavaca Street, Suite 800 
Austin, Texas 78701. 

Southern Union is a public utility engaged in the distribution of natural  gas to  the 

public. As of March 31, 1999, Southern Union had approximately $1.1 billion in 

assets and three natural  gas divisions which provide service to more than  one 
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million customers in  Texas, Missouri and Florida. 1 Southern Union conducts its 

natural  gas operations in Florida through its Atlantic Utilities Division doing 

business as  South Florida Natural Gas ("SFNG), which provides service to 

approximately 5,500 customers in  the vicinity of New Smyrna Beach, Florida. 

Thus, Southern Union is regulated by the Florida Public Service Commission (the 

"Commission") as a public utility pursuant to Chapter 366, Florida Statutes.  

2. Incorporation 

Southern Union was incorporated in Delaware in 1932. Southern Union is 

authorized to transact business in Florida, Texas, Missouri and Pennsylvania. 

3. 

The names and addresses of the persons authorized to receive notices and 

Persons Authorized To Receive Notices and Communications 

communications with respect to this application are as follows: 

Dennis K. Morgan 
Senior Vice-president - Legal and Secretary 
Southern Union Company 
504 Lavaca Street, Suite 800 
Austin, Texas 78701 
(517) 370-8310 

D. Bruce May 
Karen D. Walker 
HOLLAND & KNIGHT LLP 
P.O. Drawer 810 
315 South Calhoun Street, Suite 600 
Tallahassee, Florida 32302 (32301) 
(850) 224-7000. 

Through its Southern Union Gas Division, Southern Union serves approximately 513,000 
customers in Texas, including customers in the cities of Austin, El Paso, Brownsville, Galveston, 
and Port Arthur. The Missouri Gas Energy Division serves approximately 484,000 customers in 
western Missouri, including customers in the cities of Kansas City, St. Joseph, Joplin and Monett. 
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4. 

Southern Union and its consolidated financing subsidiaries are  authorized by 

their organizational documents, including Southern Union’s Restated Certificate of 

Incorporation, as  amended to date, to issue common stock, and preferred stock of 

Southern Union, and trust  ureferred securities of certain financing subsidiary 

business trusts as follows: 

CaDital  Stock and F u n d e d  D e b t  

(a) 

Union consists oE (i) 50,000,000 shares of Southern Union Common Stock 

($1 par value per share); and (ii) 1,500,000 shares of Southern Union 

Cumulative Preferred Stock (no par value). The authorized securities of 

Southern Union Financing I (“Subsidiary Trust”), a consolidated wholly- 

owned subsidiary of Southern Union, consist oE (i) shares of common 

securities, all of which are issued, outstanding and held by Southern Union; 

and (ii) 4,000,000 shares of Trust Originated Preferred Securities. 

@) Amount Authorized: The amount authorized is set forth above. 

(c) Amount Outstanding: As of June 30, 1999 there were 31,188,037 

shares of Southern Union Common Stock issued and outstanding. No shares 

of Southern Union Cumulative Preferred Stock are issued or outstanding. As 

of June  30, 1999, 4,000,000 shares of Trust Originated Preferred Securities 

(“Preferred Securities”) issued by the Subsidiary Trust  were outstanding with 

a face amount of $100,000,000 ($25 par value per share). In  connection with 

the issuance of the Preferred Securities and the related purchase by Southern 

Brief Descriution: Currently, the authorized capital stock of Southern 
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Union of all of the Subsidiary Trust’s common securities (“Common 

Securities”), Southern Union issued the Subsidiary Trust $103,092,000 

principal amount of its 9.48% Subordinated Deferrable Interest Notes, due 

2025 (“Subordinated Notes”). Both the Preferred Securities and the 

Subordinated Notes bear a rate of 9.48%. 

(d) 

(e) Amount Pledged: None. 

(0 

(9) 

Amount Held As Reacauired Securities: None. 

Amount Owned By Affiliated Corporations: None. 

Amount Held In Funds: None. 

The funded consolidated indebtedness of Southern Union not held by the 

Subsidiary Trust is as follows: 

(a) Brief DescriDtion: On January 31, 1994, 475,000 notes of 7.6% Senior 

Debt Securities (“Senior Notes”) were issued for a face amount of 

$475,000,000. These notes come due in February, 2024. Since the initial 

issuance of the 475,000 Senior Notes, 110,485 Senior Notes (with a face value 

of $110,485,000) have been repurchased and retired. 

(b) 

(c) 

Senior Notes outstanding, which reflects a n  outstanding balance of 

$364,515,000. 

(d) 

Amount Authorized: The amounts authorized are  set  forth above. 

Amount Outstanding: As of June 30, 1999, there are  364,515 of the 

Amount Held As Reacauired Securities: None. 
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(e) Amount Pledged: None. 

(0 

(g) 

5. Proposed Transactions 

Southern Union seeks authority to issue and sell and/or exchange any 

combination of the long-term debt and equity securities described below and/or to 

assume liabilities or obligations as  guarantor, endorser, or surety in  an aggregate 

amount not to exceed $1 billion during the twelve month period from November 1, 

1999 through October 31,2000. Of this amount, Southern Union common stock 

will constitute at least $310,000,000. In  addition, Southern Union seeks authority 

to borrow up to $200,000,000 for short-term financing purposes. 

Amount Owned Bv Affiliated Coraorations: None. 

Amount Held In  Funds: None. 

The long-term debt securities may include first mortgage bonds, medium- 

term notes, debentures, convertible or exchangeable debentures, notes, convertible 

or exchangeable notes, or other straight debt or hybrid debt securities, whether 

secured or unsecured, with maturities ranging from one to fifty years. Southern 

Union may enter into related options, rights, interest rate swaps or other 

derivative instruments. 

The equity securities may include common stock, preferred stock, preference 

stock, convertible preferred or preference stock, or warrants, options or rights to 

acquire such securities, or other equity securities, with such par values, terms and 

conditions and relative rights and preferences as  deemed appropriate by Southern 

Union and any consolidated financing subsidiary, and as are permitted by 
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Southern Union’s Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended from time to 

time, and by any such financing subsidiary’s organizational documents. 

Any such consolidated financing subsidiary of Southern Union may issue 

preferred securities similar to tha t  currently outstanding, whereby Southern Union 

would establish and make a n  equity investment in a special purpose limited 

partnership, t rust  or other entity. Southern Union, a wholly-owned subsidiary of 

Southern Union or Southern Union designees would act as the general partner, 

trustee or trustees, or similar manager of the entity. The entity would offer 

preferred securities to the public and lend the proceeds to Southern Union. 

Southern Union would issue debt securities to the entity equal to the aggregate of 

its equity investment and the amount of preferred securities issued. Southern 

Union may also guarantee, among other things, the distributions to be paid by the 

affiliated entity to the holders of the preferred securities. 

The interest rate Southern Union could pay on debt securities will vary 

depending on the type of debt instruments and the terms thereof, including 

specifically the length of maturity as  well as  market conditions. On August 23, 

1999, a new issue of 10-year senior notes of Southern Union would have carried a 

yield to maturity of approximately 8.4%. The dividend rate  for preferred securities 

is similarly affected by the terms of the offering. On September 3, 1999, a new 

issue of thirty-year tax deductible preferred securities of Southern Union would 

have carried a dividend yield of approximately 9%. 
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In addition, Southern Union may from time to time issue instruments of 

guaranty, collateralize debt and other obligations, issue securities, and arrange for 

the issuance of letters of credit and guaranties, in any such case to be issued by or 

on behalf of one of more of its subsidiaries or affiliates for the benefit of Southern 

Union's utility operations, or in connection with other financings by Southern 

Union and its subsidiaries, or on its or any of their behalf. 

Southern Union will file a consummation report with the Commission in 

compliance with Rule 25-8.009, Florida Administrative Code, within 90 days after 

the end of any fiscal year in  which it issues securities. 

6. 

The net proceeds to be received from the issuance and sale and/or exchange of 

PurDoses For Which Securities Are To Be Issued 

the  additional long-term debt and equity securities will be added to Southern 

Union's general funds and will be used in connection with the merger of 

Pennsylvania Enterprises, Inc. ("PNT) into Southern Union,2 to reacquire, by 

PNT is a Pennsylvania corporation that provides natural gas service to more than 153,000 
customers in thirteen counties in northeastern and central Pennsylvania through its subsidiaries, 
PG Energy, Inc. ("PG Energy") and Honesdale Gas Company ("Honesdale"). On June 7, 1999, 
Southern Union and PNT entered into an Agreement of Merger (the "Agreement") pursuant to which 
PNT and its utility subsidiaries will merge into Southern Union for approximately $500 million, 
including the assumption of PNT long-term indebtedness, as more particularly described herein and 
in the Agreement. The Agreement calls for each share of PNT's approximately 11 million 
outstanding shares of common stock to be converted into Southern Union stock having a value of 
$32, plus $3 in cash. The number of shares received for each PNT share will depend on the average 
closing price of Southern Union's stock for a period of ten consecutive trading days ending on the 
third day before the transaction is completed, as explained in Section 3.1 of the Agreement. As of the 
Effective Time, as described in Section 2.2. of the Agreement, PNT will be merged with and into 
Southern Union, which will be the surviving corporation. Immediately thereafter, Honesdale will be 
merged with and into PG Energy which immediately will he merged with and into Southern Union. 
Following the merger, Southern Union will provide natural gas to customers currently served by PG 
Energy and Honesdale through Southern Union's Pennsylvania Division. The PNT merger is 
conditioned upon, among other things, approvals or concurrence of various state and federal 
regulatory agencies, including the Commission's approval of this Application. 
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redemption, purchase, exchange or otherwise, any of its outstanding debt securities 

and equity securities as  market conditions warrant; to repay all or a portion of any 

maturing long-term debt obligations; to  repay all or a portion of short-term bank 

borrowings; andlor for other general corporate purposes. Excess proceeds, if any, 

will be temporarily invested in short-term instruments pending their application to 

the foregoing purposes. 

Southern Union has  for some time had the goal of selected growth and 

expansion within the utility industry including the acquisition of natural  gas 

distribution or transmission businesses. Over the past  eight years, Southern 

Union has  acquired a number of such businesses, adding approximately 545,000 

customers to its operations. The PNT merger will further contribute to Southern 

Union's goal of selected growth and expansion. Up to $390,000,000 of equity and 

$90,000,000 of debt securities as  previously described will be used to accomplish 

this merger, which will be transparent t o  Southern Union's Florida customers 

served by SFNG. 

In  connection with the PNT merger, Southern Union may assume and/or 

issue up t o  $175,000,000 of debt securities as described in  the previous section to 

refinance certain short-term debt of PNT, the current portion of long-term debt of 

PNT, and depending on market conditions and the terms and covenants for each 

issue, assume and/or refinance some or all of the long-term debt of PNT. Some or 

all of these PNT debt securities, if assumed upon closing of the PNT merger, may 

be refinanced after such merger. 
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Southern Union maintains a continuous construction program, principally for 

gas distribution facilities. Southern Union estimates tha t  construction 

expenditures under its 1999-2000 construction program will approximate 

$90,000,000. 

Southern Union's 9.48% preferred securities (face value of $100,000,000) 

issued in  May, 1995, become callable by Southern Union in May, 2000. Depending 

on market conditions, any mixture of debt, preferred or equity may be issued t o  

redeem any, all or none of those securities. 

Under future market conditions, the interest rate on new issue long-term 

debt or the dividend rate on new issue preferred securities of Southern Union may 

be such tha t  it becomes economically attractive to  reacquire a portion or all of 

certain of its long-term debt securities or equity securities, providing a n  

opportunity for Southern Union to reduce interest or dividend expense, or simpllfy 

or reduce covenant restrictions and/or requirements. Any reduction in expense or 

simplification of covenant restrictions would be beneficial to the ratepayers and, 

with proper regulatory treatment, would not be detrimental to  Southern Union's 

shareholders. Other important considerations in  making such a decision would 

include a n  assessment of anticipated future interest and dividend rates  and 

Southern Union's ability to raise enough new capital to finance its expansion and 

construction programs while currently pursuing any refinancing opportunities. 

Remaining funds would be used for general corporate purposes tha t  may 

include, bu t  not be limited to, investments in  new technologies to provide quality 
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service to Southern Union's customers, development of related energy businesses 

or expansion opportunities in the gas distribution business. 

Southern Union, from time to time, may issue instruments of guaranty, 

collateralized debt and other obligations, issue securities and arrange for the 

issuance of letters of credit and guaranties by or on behalf of itself or of one or more 

of its subsidiaries or amia tes .  

Southern Union will require short-term borrowing not to exceed $200,000,000 

to provide funds for working capital needs, temporary financing of its construction 

program and capital commitments, temporary funding of maturing or called long- 

term debt or preferred securities, and any other corporate purposes. Southern 

Union's working capital requirements arise largely from the seasonality of its 

natural  gas business. Southern Union's borrowing requirements of up to 

$200,000,000 will be priced based on LIBOR and/or the prime rate of interest, and 

thus will fluctuate with market conditions. 

7. Lawful Obiect and Puraose 

The PNT merger presents opportunities for numerous benefits t o  Southern 

Union and its customers. Economies may result through consolidation of "public 

company" functions such as director and shareholder meetings, annual  reports and 

Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") filing requirements. The PNT 

merger also will allow Southern Union to  diversify its risk associated with any one 

region's weather and economic conditions. This should help reduce earnings 

fluctuations. The merger will provide Southern Union a n  opportunity to expand 
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into the electric marketing business and possibly transfer this experience to its 

other markets. The PNT merger will also increase the public float of Southern 

Union's common stock, which should result in  greater investment research 

coverage of the Company. 

As previously noted, the PNT merger will be entirely transparent to Southern 

Union's Florida customers served by SFNG. The PNT merger will not affect 

SFNG's service to its Florida customers, except to the extent tha t  it should enhance 

the financial viability of Southern Union. SFNG's customers will continue to 

experience quality day-to-day natural  gas service at reasonable ra tes  approved 

pursuant to SFNG's tariff on file with the Commission. 

In addition to the reasons described above, the proposed issues are consistent 

with the proper performance by Southern Union of service as a public utility, will 

better enable Southern Union to perform that  service, and are necessary and 

appropriate for such purpose andlor other corporate purposes. 

8. 

The counsel that will pass on the legality of the proposed issues is: 

Counse l  Passine O n  Legality of the Proposed Issues 

Fleischman and Walsh, L.L.P. 
Suite 600 
1400 Sixteenth Street, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20036 
Attention: Stephen A. Bouchard, Esq. 

As to matters of Florida law, Fleishman and Walsh, L.L.P. will rely on 

Holland & Knight LLP 
P.O. Drawer 810 
Tallahassee, Florida 32302. 
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If required, a Registration Statement with respect to each public sale 

Filings With Other State or Federal Reaulatorv Bodies 

of securities hereunder subject to the Securities Act of 1933, as  amended, will 

be filed with the SEC. In addition, certain state securities or "blue sky" laws 

may require the filing of consents to service of process or other documents 

with applicable state securities commissions. 

10. Control or OwnershiD 

There is no measure of control or ownership exercised by or over Southern 

Union by any other public utility. 

11. Exhibits 

Composite Exhibit "A" and Composite Exhibit "B" are attached hereto as 

required by Rule 25-8.003, Florida Administrative Code. Composite Exhibit "A' 

consists of: (a) Southern Union's financial statements and accompanying footnotes 

as  they appear in Southern Union's Annual Report on Form 10-K as filed with the 

SEC for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998; and (b) Southern Union's financial 

statements and accompanying footnotes as  they appear in  Southern Union's most 

recent Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (March 31, 1999), as filed with the SEC. 

Exhibit "B" consists of Southern Union's sources and uses of funds forecast, 

including a construction budget. In addition, attached hereto as Exhibit " C  is a 

copy of the Agreement between Southern Union and PNT. 

WHEREFORE, Southern Union respectfully requests tha t  the Commission: 

(a) authorize Southern Union to issue and sell and/or exchange any 

combination of the long-term debt and equity securities described in this 
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Application a n d o r  to assume liabilities or obligations as  guarantor, endorser, 

or surety in  a n  aggregate amount not to exceed $1 billion and to borrow up to  

$200,000,000 for short-term financing purposes during the twelve month 

period from November 1, 1999 through October 31, 2000; and 

(b) grant such other relief as the Commission deems appropriate. 

Respectfully submitted this 7th day of September, 1999. 

lhdrida Bar No. 3 5 w  
Karen D. Walker 
Florida Bar No. 0982921 
HOLLAND & KNIGHT LLP 
P.O. Drawer 810 
315 South Calhoun Street, Suite 600 
Tallahassee, Florida 32302 (32301) 
(850) 224-7000 

Attorneys for Southern Union 
Company 

TAL1 #ZOO876 v4 
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ExhibitA 
UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSIOF 

WASHINGTON, D. C. 20549 

FORM IO-K 
L ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANTTO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,1998 

OR 

- TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 
1934 

Commission File No. 1-6407 

SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY 
(Exact name of registrant as specifled in its charter) 

Delaware 75-0571592 
(1 R S Employer 
identification No ) 

(State or other Iurisdidion of 
incorporation or organuation) 

504 Lavaca Street, Eighth Floor 
Austin, Texas 

(Address of principal executive offices) 

78701 
(Zip Code) 

Registrant's telephone number, including area code: (512) 477-5852 

Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: 

Title of each class 
Common Stock, par value $1 per share 

Name of each exchanae on w hich rea istered 
New York Stock Exchange 

Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was 
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for thepast90days. 
Y e s L  No- 

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, 
and will not be contained, to the best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements 
incorporated by reference in Part 111 of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. - 
The aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant on September 14, 1998. was 
$323,399,975. The number of shares of the registrant's Common Stock outstanding on September 14, 1998 was 
28,210,385. 

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE 

Portions of the registrant's proxy statement for its annual meeting of stockholders to be held on November 12, 1998. 
are incorporated by reference into Part Ill. 
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PART I 

V 

ITEM 1. Business. 

Introduction 

Southern Union Company (Southern Union and together with its subsidiaries, the Company) was incorporated under 
the laws of the State of Delaware in 1932. Southern Union is one of the top 15 gas utilities in the United States, as 
measured by number of customers. The Company's principal line of business is the distribution of natural gas as a 
public utility through Southern Union Gas, Missouri Gas Energy (MGE) and Atlantic Utilities, doing business as South 
Florida Natural Gas (SFNG), each of which is a division of Southern Union. Southern Union Gas, headquartered in 
Austin, Texas, serves 51 1,000 residential, commercial, industrial, agricultural and other customers in Texas (including 
the cities of Austin, Brownsville, El Paso, Galveston, Harlingen. McAllen and Port Arthur). MGE, headquartered in 
Kansas City, Missouri, serves 482,000 customers in central and western Missouri (including the cities of Kansas City, 
St. Joseph, Joplin and Monett). The diverse geographic area of the Company's natural gas distribution systems 
reduces the sensitivity of Southern Union's operations to weather risk and local economic conditions. See 
Acquisitions. 

Subsidiaries of Southern Union have been established to support and expand natural gas sales and to capitalize on 
the Company's gas energy expertise. These subsidiaries market natural gas to end-users, operate natural gas 
pipeline systems, distribute propane and sell commercial gas air conditioning and other gas-fired engine-driven appli- 
cations. By providing "one-stop shopping," the Company can serve its various customers' specific energy needs, 
which encompass substantially all of the natural gas distribution and sales businesses from natural gas sales to 
specialized energy consulting services. The Company distributes propane to 8,500 and 800 customers in Texas and 
Florida, respectively. Additionally, certain subsidiaries own or hold interests in real estate and other assets, which are 
primarily used in the Company's utility business. Central to all of the Company's present businesses and strategies 
is the sale and transportation of natural gas. See Company Operations and Investments. 

The Company is a sales and marketdriven energy company whose management is committed to achieving profitable 
growth of its utility businesses in an increasingly competitive business environment. Management's strategies for 
achieving these objectives principally consist of: (i) promoting new sales opportunities and markets for natural gas 
and propane; (ii) enhancing financial and operating performance; and (iii) expanding the Company through 
development of existing utility businesses and selective acquisition of new utility businesses. Management develops 
and continually evaluates these strategies and their implementation by applying their experience and expertise in 
analyzing the energy industry technological advances, market opportunities and general business trends. Each of 
these strategies, as implemented throughout the Company's existing businesses, reflects the Company's commitment 
to its core gas utility business. 

The Company has a goal of selected growth and expansion, primarily in the utilities industfy. To that extent, the Com- 
pany intends to consider, when appropriate, and if financially practicable to pursue, the acquisition of other utility distri- 
bution or transmission businesses. The nature and location of any such properties, the structure of any such 
acquisitions, and the method of financing any such expansion or growth will be determined by management and the 
Southern Union Board of Directors. See Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and 
Financial Condition (MD&A) -- Cautionaty Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information. 

Acquisitions 

Effective December 31, 1997, Southern Union acquired Atlantic Ut es Corporation and Subsidiaries (Atlantic) for 
755,650 pre-split shares of common stock valued at $18,041,000 and cash of $4,436,000. Atlantic is operated as 
SFNG, a natural gas division of Southern Union, and Atlantic Gas Corporation, a propane subsidiary of the Company. 
Atlantic currently serves 4,800 customers in central Florida. 

On July 23. 1997, two subsidiaries of Southern Union acquired a 42% equity ownership in a natural gas distribution 
company and other related operations in Piedras Negras, Mexico for $2,700,000. The natural gas distribution 
company serves 17,500 customers and is across the border from the Company's Eagle Pass, Texas service area. 
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On September 8, 1997, the Company purchased a 45-mile intrastate pipeline, which will augment the Company's gas 
supply to the city of Eagle Pass and, subject to necessary regulatory approvals, ultimately Piedras Negras. 

Company Operations and Investments 

The Company's principal line of business is the distribution of natural gas through its Southern Union Gas, MGE and 
SFNG divisions. Southern Union Gas provides service to a number of communities and rural areas in Texas, including 
the municipalities of Austin, Brownsville, El Paso, Galveston, Harlingen, McAllen and Port Arthur. MGE provides ser- 
vice to various cities and communities in central and western Missouri including Kansas City, St. Joseph, Joplin and 
Monett. SFNG provides service to various cities and communities in central Florida including New Smyrna Beach and 
Edgewater. SFNG had gas sales of 145 MMcf during the six months ended June 30, 1998 to 4,000 customers. The 
Company's gas utility operations are generally seasonal in nature, with a significant percentage of its annual revenues 
and earnings occurring in the traditional winter heating season. 

Mercado Gas Services Inc. (Mercado), a wholly-owned subsidiaty of Southern Union, markets natural gas to 
approximately 200 commercial and industrial customers. Mercado's sales and purchasing activities are made through 
short-term and long-term contracts. These contracts and business activities are not subject to direct rate regulation. 
Mercado had gas sales of 18,352 MMcf and 18,485 MMcf for the year ended June 30, 1998 and 1997, respectively. 

Southern Transmission Company (Southern), a wholly-owned subsidiaty of Southern Union, owns and operates intra- 
state pipelines which connect the cities of Lockhart. Luling, Cuero, Shiner, Yoakum, and Gonzales, Texas, as well as 
a line that provides gas to an industrial customer in Port Arthur, Texas. Southern also owns a transmission line which 
supplies gas to the community of Sabine Pass, Texas. On September 8, 1997, Southern purchased a 45-mile 
intrastate pipeline which will augment gas supply to the city of Eagle Pass, Texas, and ultimately into Piedras Negras. 
Mexico. Southern transported 915 MMcf and 707 MMcf of gas for the year ended June 30, 1998 and 1997, 
respectively. 

Nortelto Pipeline Company (Nortelto), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Southern Union, operates interstate pipeline 
systems principally serving the Company's gas distribution properties in the El Paso. Texas area. Norteiio transported 
a combined 11.49 billion cubic feet (Bcf) for the city of Juarez, Mexico and the Sarnalayuca Power Plant in north 
Mexico in fiscal 1998. Norteiio transported 1 1,538 MMcf and 17,070 MMcf of gas for the ye& ended June 30, 1998 
and 1997, respectively. 

SUPro Energy Company (SUPro), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Southern Union, provides propane gas services to 
8,500 customers located principally in El Paso and Alpine, Texas. SUPro sold 5,125,000 and 2,417,000 gallons of 
propane in 1998 and 1997, respectively. 

Atlantic Gas Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiaty of Southern Union, provides propane gas services to 800 
customers located in and around the communities of New Symrna Beach, Lauderhill and Dunnellon. Florida. Atlantic 
Gas Corporation sold 633,000 gallons of propane during the six months ended June 30, 1998. 

Energy WorX, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Southern Union, provides interactive computer-based training for the 
natural gas transmission and distribution industty. 

Southern Union Total Energy Systems, Inc.. a wholly-owned subsidiary of Southern Union, markets and sells 
commercial gas air conditioning, irrigation pumps and other gas-fired enginedriven applications and related services. 

Southern Union Energy International, Inc. (SUEI) and Southern Union International Investments. Inc. (investments), 
both wholly-owned subsidiaries of Southern Union, participate in energy-related projects internationally. Energia 
Estrella del Sur, S. A. de C. V. (Estrella). a wholly-owned Mexican subsidiaty of SUE1 and Investments, seek to partici- 
pate in energy-related projects in Mexico. On July 23. 1997, Estrella acquired a 42% equity ownership in a natural 
gas distribution company and other related operations which currently serves 17,500 customers in Piedras Negras, 
Mexico, across the border from Southern Union Gas' Eagle Pass, Texas service area. 

ConTigo. Inc.. a wholly-owned subsidiary of Southem Union formed in January 1996, provides centralized call center 
services for the majority of the Texas service areas. 

During fiscal 1998, the Company made an equity investment in a leading developer of advanced gas turbine-driven 
generator technology. The Company also holds investments in commercially developed real estate in Austin, El Paso, 
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Harlingen and Kansas City through Southern Union's wholly-owned subsidiary, Lavaca Realty Company (Lavaca 
Realty). 

Competition 

The Company's gas distribution divisions are not currently in significant direct competition with any other distributors 
of natural gas to residential and small commercial customers within their service areas. However, in recent years, cer- 
tain large volume customers, primarily industrial and significant commercial customers, have had opportunities to 
access alternative natural gas supplies and, in some instances, delivery service from other pipeline systems. The 
Company has offered transportation arrangements to customers who secure their own gas supplies. These transpor- 
tation arrangements, coupled with the efforts of Southern Union's unregulated marketing subsidiary, Mercado, enable 
the Company to provide competitively priced gas service to these large volume customers. In addition, the Company 
has successfully used flexible rate provisions, when needed, to retain customers who may have access to alternative 
energy sources. 

As energy providers, Southern Union Gas, MGE and SFNG have historically competed with alternative energy 
sources, particularly electricity and also propane, coal, natural gas liquids and other refined products available in the 
Company's service areas. At present rates, the cost of electricity to residential and commercial customers in the Com- 
pany's service areas generally is higher than the effective cost of natural gas service. There can be no assurance, 
however, that future fluctuations in gas and electric costs will not reduce the cost advantage of natural gas service. 
The cost of expansion for peak load requirements of electricity in some of Southern Union Gas' and MGEs service 
areas has historically provided opportunities to allow energy switching to natural gas pursuant to integrated resource 
planning techniques. Electric competition has responded by offering equipment rebates and incentive rates. 

Competition between the use of fuel oils, natural gas and propane, particularly by industrial, electric generation and 
agricultural customers, has also increased due to the volatility of natural gas prices and increased marketing efforts 
from various energy companies. While competition between such fuels is generally more intense outside the Com- 
pany's service areas, this competition affects the nationwide market for natural gas. Additionally, the general economic 
conditions in its service areas continue to affect certain customers and market areas, thus impacting the results of the 
Company's operations.'. 

Gas Supply 

The low cost of natural gas service is dependent upon the Company's ability to contract for natural gas using favorable 
mixes of long-term and short-term supply arrangements and favorable transportation contracts. The Company has 
been directly acquiring its gas supplies since the mid-1980s when interstate pipeline systems opened their systems 
for transportation service. The Company has the organization, personnel and equipment necessary to dispatch and 
monitor gas volumes on a daily and even hourly basis to ensure reliable service to customers. 

The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) required the "unbundling" of services offered by interstate pipe- 
line companies beginning in 1992. As a result, gas purchasing and transportation decisions and associated risks have 
been shifted from the pipeline companies to the gas distributors. The increased demands on distributors to effectively 
manage their gas supply in an environment of volatile gas prices provides an advantage to distribution companies such 
as Southern Union who have demonstrated a history of contracting favorable and efficient gas supply arrangements 
in an open market system. 

The majority of Southern Union Gas' 1998 gas requirements for utility operations were delivered under long-term trans- 
portation contracts through five major pipeline companies. The majority of MGEs 1998 gas requirements were 
delivered under short- and long-term transportation contracts through four major pipeline companies. The majority 
of SFNGs 1998 gas requirements were delivered under a management supply contract through one major pipeline 
company. These contracts have various expiration dates ranging from 1999 through 2018. Southern Union Gas also 
purchases significant volumes of gas under long- and Short-term arrangements with suppliers. The amounts of such 
short-term purchases are contingent upon price. Southern Union Gas, MGE and SFNG all have firm supply Commit- 
ments for all areas that are supplied with gas purchased under short-term arrangements. MGE also holds contract 
rights to over 16 Bcf of storage capacity to assist in meeting peak demands. 

Gas sales and/or transportation contracts with interruption provisions, whereby large volume users purchase gas with 
the understanding that they may be forced to shut down or switch to alternate sources of energy at times when the 
gas is needed for higher priority customers, have been utilized for load management by Southern Union and the gas 
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industry as a whole for many years. In addition, during times of special supply problems, curtailments of deliveries 
to customers with firm contracts may be made in accordance with guidelines established by appropriate federal and 
state regulatory agencies. There have been no supply-related curtailments of deliveries to Southern Union Gas, MGE 
or SFNG utility sales Customers during the last ten years. 

During fiscal 1997, the Company was impacted by significant increases in natural gas prices. The following table 
shows, for each of the Company's principal utility service areas, the percentage of gas utility revenues and sales 
volume for the years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997 and the average cost per thousand cubic feet (Mcf) of gas in 1998 
and 1997. 

Percent of Gas Percent of Gas Average Cost 
Utilitv Revenues Utilitv Sales Volump Per-Mcf 

1998 1997 1998 1997 

Southern Union Gas 
Austin and South Texas . . . . . . . . . . . .  12 12 11 11 $3.14 $3.47 
El Paso and West Texas . . . . . . . . . . . .  13 13 17 16 2.67 3.36 

4 3 3.23 3.90 
3.02 3.33 

4.05 4.08 

Rio Grande Valley . . . . . . . . . .  4 4 
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - 5 6  2 6 

Missouri Gas Energy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  66-35 62 A - 100 JgQ 100 a 
34 35 38 36 

The Company is committed under various agreements to purchase certain quantities of gas in the future. At June 30, 
1998, the Company has purchase commitments for certain quantities of gas at variable, market-based prices. These 
market-based price commitments have an annual value of $45,900,000 for Southern Union Gas and $65,900,000 for 
MGE. SFNG has no market-based price commitments at June 30, 1998. The Company's purchase Commitments 
may extend over a period of several years depending upon when the required quantity is purchased. The Company 
has purchase gas tariffs in effect for all its utility service areas that provide for recovery of its purchase gas costs under 
defined methodologies. 

In August 1997, the Missouri Public Service Commission (MPSC) issued an order authorizing.MGE to begin making 
semi-annual purchase gas adjustments (PGA) in November and April, instead of more frequent adjustments as in the 
past. Additionally. the order authorized MGE to establish an Experimental Price Stabilization Fund for purposes of 
procuring natural gas financial instruments to hedge a minimal portion of its gas purchase costs for the winter heating 
season. The cost of purchasing these financial instruments and any gains derived from such activities are passed 
on to the Missouri customers through the PGA. Accordingly, there is no earnings impact as a result of the use of these 
financial instruments. These procedures help stabilize the monthly heating bills for Missouri customers. The Company 
believes it bears minimal risk under the authorized transactions. 

The MPSC approved a three year, experimental gas supply incentive plan for MGE effective July 1, 1996. Under the 
plan, the Company and MGE's customers share in certain savings below benchmark levels of gas costs achieved as 
a result of the Company's gas procurement activities. Likewise, if natural gas is acquired above benchmark levels, 
both the Company and customers share in such costs. For the year ended June 30, I998 and 1997, the incentive plan 
achieved a reduction of overall gas costs of $9,200,000 and $10,200,000, respectively, resulting in savings to Missouri 
customers of $5,100,000 and $5,600,000, respectively. The Company recorded revenues of $4,100,000 and 
$4,600.000 in 1998 and 1997, respectively, under this plan. There can be no assurance that this or any similar plan 
will be approved by the MPSC for MGE after this plan expires on July 1, 1999. 

Utility Regulation and Rates 

The Company's rates and operations are subject to regulation by local, state and federal authorities. in Texas, munici- 
palities have primaly jurisdiction over natural gas rates within their respective incorporated areas. Rates in adjacent 
environs and appellate matters are the responsibility of the Railroad Commission of Texas. In Missouri, natural gas 
rates are established by the MPSC on a system-wide basis. In Florida, natural gas rates are established by the Florida 
Public Sewice Commission on a system-wide basis. The FERC and the Railroad Commission of Texas have 
jurisdiction over rates, facilities and services of Norteflo and Southern, respectively. 

The Company holds non-exclusive franchises with varying expiration dates in all incorporated communities where it 
is necessary to carry on its business as it is now being conducted. In the five largest cities in which the Company's 
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utility customers are located, such franchises expire as follows: Kansas City. Missouri in 1998; El Paso. Texas in 
2000; Austin, Texas in 2006; and Port Arthur. Texas in 2013. The franchise in St. Joseph, Missouri is perpetual. The 
Company fully expects these franchises to be renewed upon their expiration. 

Gas service rates are established by regulatory authorities to permit utilities the opportunity to recover operating, 
administrative and financing costs, and the opportunity to earn a reasonable return on equity. Gas costs are billed to 
customers through purchase gas adjustment clauses which permit the Company to adjust its sales price as the cost 
of purchased gas changes. This is important because the cost of natural gas accounts for a significant portion of the 
Company's total expenses The appropriate regulatory authority must receive notice of such adjustments prior to 
billing implementation. 

The Company must support any service rate changes to its regulators using a historic test year of operating results 
adjusted to normal conditions and for any known and measurable revenue or expense changes. Because the regula- 
tory process has certain inherent time delays, rate orders may not reflect the operating costs at the time new rates are 
put into effect. 

The monthly customer bill contains a fixed service charge, a usage charge for service to deliver gas, and a charge 
for the amount of natural gas used. While the monthly fixed charge provides an even revenue stream, the usage 
charge increases the Company's annual revenue and earnings in the traditional heating load months when usage of 
natural gas increases. In recent years, the majority of the Company's rate increases in Texas have resulted in 
increased monthly fixed charges which help stabilize earnings. Weather normalization clauses, in place in Austin, El 
Paso service area cities other than the City of El Paso, Galveston, Port Arthur and two other service areas in Texas, 
also help stabilize earnings. The city of El Paso had approved implementation of a weather normalization clause 
effective September 1, 1996, but rescinded the clause effective February 1. 1997. 

On August 21, 1998, MGE was notified by the MPSC of its decision to grant a $13,300,000 annual increase to revenue 
effective on September 2, 1998. The MPSC Rate Order reflected a 10.93% return on common equity. The Rate 
Order, however, disallowed certain previously recorded deferred costs requiring a non-cash write-off of $2,221,000. 
Though the Company has requested a rehearing on significant portions of these disallowances, generally accepted 
accounting principles require the Company to immediately record this charge to earnings which Southern Union did 
as of June 30, 1998. 

On April 13, 1998 Southern Union Gas filed for a $2,228,000 request for a rate increase from the city of El Paso, a 
request the city subsequently denied. On April 21, 1998, the city council of El Paso voted to reduce the Company's 
rates by $1,570,000 annually and to order a one-time cost of gas refund of $475,000. The Company has appealed 
both of the council's actions to the Railroad Commission of Texas and expects a decision by the end of calendar year 
1998. 

On January 22, 1997, MGE was notified by the MPSC of its decision to grant an $8,847,000 annual increase to 
revenue effective on February 1, 1997. Pursuant to a 1989 MPSC order, MGE is engaged in a major gas safety 
program in its service area (Missouri Safety Program), In connection with this program, the MPSC issued an 
accounting authority order (AAO) in Case No. GO-92-234 in 1994 which authorized MGE to defer depreciation 
expenses, property taxes and carrying costs at a rate of 10.54% on the costs incurred in the Missouri Safety Program. 
This AAO was consistent with those which were issued by the MPSC from 1990 to 1993 to MGEs prior owner. The 
MPSC rate order of January 22, 1997, however, retroactively reduced the carrying cost rate applied by the Company 
on the expenditures incurred on the Missouri Safety Program since early 1994 to an Allowance for Funds Used During 
Construction (AFUDC) rate of approximately 6%. The Company filed an appeal of that portion of the rate order in the 
Missouri State Court of Appeals, Western District. On August 18, 1998, the Missouri State Court of Appeals denied 
the Company's appeal resulting in a one-time noncash write-off of $5,942,000 of previously recorded deferred costs 
which was recorded as of June 30, 1998. The Company believes that the inconsistent treatment by the MPSC in 
subsequently changing to the AFUDC rate from the previously ordered 10.54% rate constitutes retroactive ratemaking. 
Unfortunately, the decision by the Missouri State Court of Appeals failed to address certain specific language within 
the 1994 AAO that the Company believed prevented the MPSC from retroactively changing the carrying cost rate. 
Southem Union will seek a transfer of the case to the Missouri Supreme Court; however, the likelihood of transfer is 
uncertain. See M D g A  -- Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information and Commitments and 
Contingencies in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

On September 18, 1997, the MPSC approved a global settlement among the Company, the Missouri Omce of Public 
Counsel (OPC) and MPSC staff to resolve complaints brought by the OPC and the MPSC staff regarding billing errors 
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during the 1995/1996 and 1996/1997 winter heating seasons. The settlement called for credits to gas bills by MGE 
totaling $1,575,000 to those customers overbilled and a $550,000 contribution by MGE to a social service organization 
for the express purpose of assisting needy MGE customers in paying their gas bills. These balances were recorded 
as of June 30, 1997. 

The approval of the January 31, 1994 acquisition of the Missouri properties by the MPSC was subject to the terms of 
a stipulation and settlement agreement which. among other things, requires MGE to reduce rate base by $30,000,000 
(amortized over a ten-year period on a straight-line basis) to compensate rate payers for rate base reductions that 
were eliminated as a result of the acquisition. 

During the three-year period ended June 30, 1998, the Company did not file for any other rate increases in any of its 
major sewice areas, although several annual cost of service adjustments were filed. In addition to the regulation of 
its utility and pipeline businesses, the Company is affected by numerous other regulatory controls, including, among 
others, pipeline safety requirements of the United States Department of Transportation, safety regulations under the 
Occupational Safety and Health Act, and various state and federal environmental statutes and regulations. The Com- 
pany believes that its operations are in compliance with applicable safety and environmental statutes and regulations. 

Environmental 

The Company assumed responsibility for certain environmental matters in connection with the acquisition of MGE. 
Additionally, the Company is investigating the possibility that the Company or predecessor companies may have been 
associated with manufactured gas plant sites in other of its former service territories, principally in Arizona and New 
Mexico, and present service territories in Texas. See MD&A -- Cautionary Statement Regarding Fonvard-Looking 
Information and Commitments and Contingencies in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Investments in Real Estate 

Lavaca Realty owns a commercially developed tract of land in the central business district of Austin, Texas, containing 
a combined 11-story omce building, parking garage and drive-through bank (Lavaca Plaza). Approximately 52% of 
the office space at Lavaca Plaza is used in the Company's business while the remainder is leased to non-affiliated 
entities. Lavaca Realty also owns a two-story office building in El Paso, Texas as well as a one-story office building 
in Harlingen. Texas. Other significant real estate investments held at June 30, 1998 include 39,341 square feet of 
undeveloped land in McAllen, Texas and 25,000 square feet of improved property in Kansas City, Missouri, of which 
40% is occupied by MGE and the remainder by a non-affiliated entity. 

Employees 

As of August 31, 1998, the Company has 1,586 employees, of whom 1,230 are paid on an hourly basis, 337 are paid 
on a salary basis and 19 are paid on a commission basis. Of the 1,230 hourly paid employees, 49% are represented 
by unions. Of those employees represented by unions, 95% are employed by Missouri Gas Energy. On May 1,1996, 
the Company agreed to three-year contracts with the bargaining-unit Missouri employees. 

On June 4, 1997, Southern Union Gas employees in Austin, Texas covered by a collective bargaining agreement voted 
to decertify their representing union. Additionally, effective July 1. 1998, employees in Galveston, Texas chose to 
withdraw their membership from their representing union. 

From time to time the Company may be subject to labor disputes; however, such disputes have not previously dis- 
rupted its business. The Company believes that its relations with its employees are good. 
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Statistics of Principal Utility and Related Operations 

Southern Union Gas. The following table shows certain operating statistics of the Company's gas distribution and 
transportation division with operations principally in Texas: 

Year Ended June 30. 
1998 1997 1996 

Average number of gas sales customers served (a): 
Residential . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  465,844 456,972 457,187 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Commercial 29,828 29,030 29,873 
Industrial and irrigation 252 274 346 
Public authorities and other 2.755 2.673 2.812 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total average customers served . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  498.679 488.949 490.218 

Gas sales in millions of cubic feet (MMcf): 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Residential 23,217 23,135 22,945 

Industrial and irrigation 1,208 1,562 1,992 

Gas sales billed 36,602 37,212 37,635 

Totalgassales 36.520 37.142 37.630 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Commercial 9,425 9,759 9,990 

Public authorities and other 2.7522.7562.708 

Net change in unbilled gas sales (82) 170)(5) 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Gas sales revenues (thousands of dollars): 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Residential . . . . . .  . .  

Commercial . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Industrial and irrigation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Public authorities and other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Gas revenues billed . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net change in unbilled gas sales revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total gas sales revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Gas sales margin (thousands of dollars) (b): . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Gas sales revenue per Mcf billed (c): 
Residential . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Commercial . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Industrial and irrigation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Public authorities and other . . . . . . . . .  . . . .  . .  

Weather: 
. Degree days (d) . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Percent of 30-year measure (e) 

$139,856 
45,774 
4.639 

11 :282 
201,551 
(492) 

%84.599 

$ 6.024 
4.857 
3.841 
4.101 

2,118 
99% 

$152,737 
51,392 
6,122 

12.975 
223.226 
(150) 
$223.076 

$ 84.024, 

$ 6.602 
5.266 
3.920 
4.708 

$127,255 
42,353 
6,315 

9.338 
185.261 
856 
$186.1 17 

$ 85.714 

$ 5.546 
4.240 
3.170 
3.448 

1,962 1,901 
92% 88% 

Gas transported in MMcf . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  16,535 15,118 16,819 
Gas transportation revenues (thousands of dollars) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 9,101 $ 8.474 $ 8.260 

(a) Variances in the average number of customers served is primarily due to the divestiture of the Texas and Oklahoma Panhandle distribution 
operations in May 1996 involving 7.000 customers. 

(b) Gas sales margin is equal to gas sales revenues less purchased gas costs and revenue-related taxes. 
(c) Fluctuations in gas price billed between each period reflect changes in the average cost of purchased gas and the effect of rate adjustments. 
(d) "Degree days" are a measure of the coldness of the weather experienced. A degree day is equivalent to each degree that the daily mean 

temperature for a day falls below 65 degrees Fahrenheit. 
(e) Information with respect to weather conditions is provided by the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration. Percentages of 30-year 

measure are computed based on the weighted average volumes of gas sales billed. Changes in percent of 30-year measure do not necessarily 
impact gas sales margin since certain franchises are weather normalized. 

7 



h n 

Missouri Gas Energy. The following table shows certain operating statistics of the Company's gas distribution and 
transportation division with operations in Missouri: 

1998 1997 1996 

Average number of gas sales customers served: 
Residential . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  413,703 407,505 405,782 

57,693 56,967 56,448 Commercial . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Industrial . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  312 312 321 

Total average customers SeNed . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  464.78% 462.551 
Gas sales in MMcf: 

Residential . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Commercial . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
industrial . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Gas sales billed . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net change in unbilled gas sales . . . . . . . . .  

Total gas sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . .  

. . . . . .  

. . . . . .  

. . . . . .  

. . . . . .  

. . . . . .  

. . . . .  

. . . . . . .  

. . . . . . .  

. . . . . . .  

. . . . . . .  

. . . . . . .  

41,104 
18,705 

400 
60,209 

35 
60.244 

45,074 
20.893 

49Q 
66.457 

'(88) 
66.369 

46,775 
21.578 
592 

68.945 
31 68.976 

Gas sales revenues (thousands of dollars): 
Residential . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 267,154 $ 284,803 $ 259,401 
Commercial . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  112,867 123.684 111.840 

Gas sales revenues billed . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  383,130 412,026 375,535 
Net change in unbilled gas sales revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  A Q  (1.745) 2.09Q 

Total gas sales revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 384.790 S 410.281 

Industrial . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  -3.109 3.539 4.294 

Gas sales margin (thousands of dollars) (a) . . . .  . . .  $ 107.394 $ 105,948 

Gas sales revenue per Mcf billed:(b) 
Residential . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 6.499 $ 6.319 $ 5.546 
Commercial . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  6.034 5.920 5.183 
Industrial . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  7.773 7.222 7.253 

Weather: 
Degreedays(c) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Percent of 30-year measure: (d) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

4,723 
90% 

5,506 
105% 

5,495 
105% 

Gas transported in MMcf . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  30,165 29,638 30,269 
Gas transportation revenues (thousands of dollars) . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 9,866 $ 11,970 $ 10,299 

(a) Gas sales margin is equal to gas sales revenues less purchased gas costs and revenue-related taxes. 
(b) Fluctuations in gas price billed between each period reflect changes in the average cost Of purchased gas and the effect of rate adjust- 

ments. 
(c) "Degree days'' are a measure of the coldness of the weather experienced. A degree day is equivalent to each degree that the daily 

mean temperature for a day falls below 65 degrees Fahrenheit. 
(d) Information with respect to weather conditions is provided by the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration. Percentages of 

30-year measure are computed based on the weighted average volumes of gas Sales billed. Changes in percent of 30-year measure 
do not necessarily impact gas sales margin as a result of revenue increases approved by the MPSC. 
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Customers. The following table shows the number of customers served by the Company, through its divisions, 
subsidiaries and affiliates, as of the end of its last three fiscal years. 

Gas Utilitv Customers as of June 30, 
1998 1997 1996 

Southern Union Gas: 
Austin and South Texas . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
ElPasoandWestTexas . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Galveston and Port Arthur . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Panhandleand NorthTexas . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Rio Grande Valley and Eagle Pass . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Kansas City Missouri Metropolitan Area . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
St. Joseph, Joplin, Monett and others . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Missouri Gas Energy: 

Other (a) 

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

173,228 163,938 159,129 

50,673 50,856 51,392 
24,900 24,903 24,777 
76.84Q 76.704 76.707 

504.453 490.226 481.866 

348,543 346,060 340,248 
121.766 122.946 119.878 
470.308 469.006 460.126 

20.874 3.647 __ 
995.636 962.878 941.992 

i78,ai2 173,825 169,861 

(a) Includes Mercado, South Florida Natural Gas, Atlantic Gas Corporation, SUPro and 42% (the Company's equity ownership) of the 
Customers of a natural gas distribution company serving Piedras Negras, Mexico. in each case for the yearend in which the Company 
had such operations or investments. 

ITEM 2. Propefiies. 

See Item 1, Business. for information concerning the general location and characteristics of the important physical 
properties and assets of the Company. 

Southern Union Gas has 7,462 miles of mains, 3,219 miles of service lines and 218 miles of transmission lines. 
Southern and Nortelio have 171 miles and 7 miles, respectively, of transmission lines. MGE has 7,404 miles of mains, 
2,709 miles of service lines and 47 miles of transmission lines. SF NG has 131 miles of mains and 78 miles of service 
lines. The Company considers its systems to be in good condition and well-maintained, and it has continuing 
replacement programs based on historical performance and system surveillance. 

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings. 

See Commitments and Contingencies in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of the 
Company's legal proceedings. See MD&A -- Caufionafy Statement Regarding Forward-Looking lnformafion. 

ITEM 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders. 

There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders of Southern Union during the quarter ended June 30, 
1998. 
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PART II 

ITEM 5. Market for the Registrant's Common Stock and Related Stockholder Matters. 

Market Information 

Southern Union's common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "SUG". The high and 
low sales prices (adjusted for any stock dividends and stock splits) for shares of Southern Union common stock since 
July 1, 1996 are set forth below: 

$/Share 
Hiah Low 

. . . .  $ 22.38 $ 15.63 July 1 to September 14, 1998 

(Quarter Ended) 
June30,1998 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
March31, 1998 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
December31.1997 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
September 30, 1997 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

(Quarter Ended) 
June30,1997 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
March31,1997 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
December 31, 1996 . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
September30,1996 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Holders 

21.75 15.92 
16.50 15.25 
17.20 14.44 
15.56 13.81 

16.03 13.97 
15.47 13.48 
15.80 13.33 
16.78 12.17 

As of September 14, 1998, there were 860 holders of record of Southern Union's common stock. This number does 
not include persons whose shares are held of record by a bank, brokerage house or clearing agency, but does include 
any such bank, brokerage house or clearing agency that is a holder of record. 

There were 22,210,385 shares of Southern Union's common stock outstanding on September 14, 1998 of which 
16,069,564 shares were held by non-affiliates (Le., not beneficially held by directors, executive officers, their immediate 
family members, or holders of 10% or more of shares outstanding). 

Dividends 

Southern Union's policy is to pay an annual stock dividend of approximately 5% and, therefore, the Company paid no 
cash dividends on its common stock during the two years ended June 30, 1998. Provisions in certain of Southern 
Union's long-term notes and its bank credit facilities limit the payment of cash or asset dividends on capital stock. 
Under the most restrictive provisions in effect, Southern Union may not declare or pay any cash or asset dividends 
on its common stock or acquire or retire any of Southern Union's common stock, unless no event of default exists and 
the Company meets certain financial ratio requirements, which presently are met. 

On December 10, 1997 and December I O .  1996, the Company distributed its annual 5% common stock dividend to 
stockholders of record on November 21, 1997 and November 22, 1996, respectively. The 5% stock dividends are 
consistent with Southern Union's Board of Directors' February 1994 decision to commence regular stock dividends 
of approximately 5% annually. The specific amount and declaration, record and distribution dates for an annual stock 
dividend will be determined by the Board and announced at a date that is not expected to be later than the annual 
stockholders meeting each year. The next annual stock dividend is expected to be declared in connection with the 
Company's annual meeting of stockholders to be held on November 12, 1998. 

On July 13. 1998, Southern Union effected a 3-for-2 stock split by distributing a 50% stock dividend to holders of 
record on June 30, 1998. 
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ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data. 
W 

1998(aYbl 19971a) 19964a) i 995 19941c) 
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) 

Total operating revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Earnings from continuing operations (d) . . 12,229 19,032 
Earnings per common and common share 

equivalents (e) . , . . . . . , , , . . , . , . . , . .43 6 8  
Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , , . 1,047,764 990,403 
Common stockholders' equity . . . . . . . , . , 296,834 267,462 
Short-term debt and capital lease obligation 1,777 687 
Long-term debt and capital lease obligation, 

excluding current portion . . , , . . . . . . . 406,407 386,157 
Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable 

$ 669,304 $ 717,031 

preferred securities of subsidiary trust 100,000 100,000 

979,186 955,838 Average customers served . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

$ 620,391 $ 479,983 
20,839 16,069 

.76 .59 
964,460 992,597 
245,915 225,664 

615 770 

385,394 462,503 

100,000 100,000 

952,934 947.691 

$ 372,043 
8,378 

.36 
887,807 
208.975 

889 

479,048 

-- 

653,102 

(a) Certain Texas and Oklahoma Panhandle distribution operations and Western Gas Interstate, exclusive of the Del Norte interconnect, 
were sold on May 1, 1996. 

(b) On December 31, 1997, Southern Union acquired Atlantic for 755,650 pre-split shares of common stock valued at $18,041.000 and 
cash of $4,436,000. 

fc) Missouri Gas Energy, a division of Southem Union. was acquired on January 31, 1994 and was accounted for as a purchase. Missouri 
Gas Energy's assets were included in the Company's consolidated balance sheet at January 31, 1994 and its results of operations were 
included in the Company's consolidated results of operations beginning February 1, 1994. For these reasons, the consolidated results 
of operations of the Company for the periods subsequent to the acquisition are not comparable. 

(d) As of June 30, 1998. MGE wrote off $8,163,000 pretax in previously recarded regulatory assets as a result of announced rate orders 
and court rulings. 

(e) Earnings per share for all periods presented'were computed based on the weshted average number of shares of common stock and 
common stock equivalents outstanding during the year adjusted for (i) the 5% stock dividends distributed on December 10. 1997. 
December 10, 1996, November 27. 1995 and June 30, 1994. and (ii) the 50% StorA dividend distributed on July 13. 1998, the 33'h% 
stock dividend distributed on March 11. 1996 and the 50% stock dividend distributed on March 9, 1994 
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ITEM 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition. 

Overview Southern Union Company's principal business is the distribution of natural gas as a public utility through 
three divisions: es doing business as South 
Florida Natural Gas (SFNG). Southern Union Gas serves 51 1,000 customers in Texas (including the cities of Austin, 
Brownsville, El Paso, Galveston. Harlingen, McAllen and Port Arthur), and MGE serves 482.000 customers in central 
and western Missouri (including the cities of Kansas City St. Joseph, Joplin and Monett). SFNG. acquired as of 
December 31, 1997, serves portions of central Florida (including New Smyrna Beach. Edgewater and areas of Volusia 
County Florida), SFNG's results of operations since its acquisition do not materially impact comparability between 
fiscal years discussed below. 

The Company also operates natural gas pipeline systems, markets natural gas to end-users, distributes propane and 
holds investments in real estate and other assets. To achieve profitability and continued growth, the Company 
continues to emphasize gas Sales in nontraditional markets, operating efficiencies of existing systems, and expansion 
through selective acquisitions of new Systems. 

Southern Union Gas, Missouri Gas Energy (MGE) and Atlantic Ut 

Results of Operations 

Net Earnings Southern Union Company's 1998 (fiscal year ended June 30) net earnings were $12,229,000 ($.43 per 
common share, diluted for outstanding options and warrants - hereafter referred to as pershare). compared with 
$19,032,000 ($.68 per share) in 1997. The decrease was primarily due to the pretax write-off of previously recorded 
regulatory assets as ordered by the Missouri Public Service Commission (MPSC). On August 18, 1998, the Missouri 
Court of Appeals denied the previously disclosed appeal by the Company of the MPSC's January 1997 Rate Order 
granted to MGE. Because of this decision, the Company recorded a one-time non-cash write-off of $5,942,000 of 
deferred costs recorded since 1994. On August 21, 1998, the MPSC also granted MGE a rate increase which, among 
other things, disallowed certain previously recorded deferred costs requiring an additional pre-tax non-cash write-off 
of $2,221,000. Significantly warmer weather in the winter of 1997/1998, especially in Missouri, also contributed to the 
decrease in earnings, despite an $8,847,000 annual increase to MGE revenues granted by the MPSC effective 
February 1, 1997. Weather in the Missouri service territories during 1998 was 14% warmer than 1997 while gas sales 
volumes in the corresponding period decreased 9%. Average common and common share equivalents outstanding 
increased 2.5% in 1998 due to the issuance of 755,650 pre-split shares of the Company's common stock on 
December 31, 1997 in connection with the acquisition of Atlantic Utilities Corporation and Subsidiaries in Florida. The 
Company earned 4.3% on average common equity in 1998. 

The Company's 1997 net earnings were $19,032,000 ($.68 per share), compared with $20,839.000 ($.76 per share) 
in 1996. The decrease was primarily due to $5,763,000 in additional bad debt expense in 1997 as a result of 
significant increases in delinquent customer accounts, principally at MGE. The significant increase in natural gas 
prices during 1997 caused many customers to receive considerably higher heating bills. Additionally, certain billing 
errors were discovered in MGEs billing practices and procedures. As a result of the customer's increased bills and 
negative media coverage over the high gas costs and billing errors, more customers than usual failed to pay their bills 
causing an unanticipated increase in aged receivables, primarily in Missouri. MGE also responded to an MPSC 
directive to delay collection efforts by suspending the disconnection of customers for non-payment until July 1997. 
Also adversely impacting 1997 net earnings was $2,125,000 in various settlement fees in connection with complaints 
brought by the Missouri Office of Public Counsel and the MPSC for the billing errors. Contributing to 1997 net earnings 
were additional revenues of $4,600,000 under a gas supply incentive plan approved by the MPSC in July 1996. Under 
the plan, Southern Union and its Missouri customers shared in certain savings below benchmark levels of gas costs 
incurred as a result of the Company's gas procurement activities. The incentive plan achieved a reduction of overall 
gas costs of $10,200,000, resulting in savings to Missouri customers of $5,600,000. Average common and common 
share equivalents outstanding increased 1.1% in 1997. The Company earned 7.4% and 8.8% on average common 
equity in 1997 and 1996, respectively. 

Operating Revenues Operating revenues in 1998 decreased $47,727,000, or 7%, to $669,304,000, while gas 
purchase costs decreased $43,608,000, or lo%, to $405,580,000. 

Operating revenues and gas purchase costs in 1998 were affected by both a reduction in gas sales volumes and 
decreases in the cost of gas. Gas sales volumes decreased 6% in 1998 to 115,261 MMcf due to the warmer winter 
weather in the Missouri service territories. Gas sales volumes were also impacted by a reduction in average usage 
per customer throughout the Company's service territories as a result of more energy efficient housing and appliances. 
The average cost of gas decreased $.l8 to $3.49 per Mcf in 1998 due to decreases in average spot market gas prices 
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throughout the Company's distribution system as a result of Seasonal impacts on demands for natural gas and the 
ensuing competitive pricing within the industry The average spot market price of natural gas decreased 3% to $2.24 
per million British thermal units (MMBtu) in 1998. Additionally impacting operating revenues in 1998 was a $4,616,000 
decrease in gross receipt taxes, a $2,104,000 decrease in gas transportation revenues at MGE, and decreased 
revenues of $500,000 under the previously discussed gas Supply incentive plan. Gross receipt taxes are levied on 
sales revenues, then collected from the customers and remitted to the various taxing authorities. Operating revenues 
were favorably impacted by an $8,847,000 annual increase to revenues granted by the MPSC effective as of 
February 1, 1997. 

Southern Union Gas and MGE contributed 32% and 59%, respectively, of the Company's consolidated 1998 operating 
revenues. Four suppliers provided 45% of gas purchases in 1998. 

Gas purchase costs generally do not directly affect earnings since these costs are generally passed on to customers 
pursuant to purchase gas adjustment clauses. Accordingly, while changes in the cost of gas may cause the 
Company's operating revenues to fluctuate, net operating margin is generally not affected by increases or decreases 
in the cost of gas. Increases in gas purchase Costs indirectly affect earnings as the customer's bill increases, usually 
resulting in increased bad debt and collection costs being recorded by the Company. 

Gas transportation volumes in 1998 decreased 3,380 MMcf to 59,153 MMcf at an average transportation rate per Mcf 
of $.33 compared with $.34 in 1997. Transportation volumes increased from 29,638 MMcf to 30,165 MMcf in 1998 
for MGE and decreased from 32,895 MMcf to 28,988 MMcf in 1998 for Southern Union Gas and the Company's pipe- 
line subsidiaries. This decrease was mainly caused by a 32% decrease, or 5,531 MMcf, in the amount of volumes 
transported into Mexico by Nortelio Pipeline Company, a subsidiary of the Company. 

Operating revenues in 1997 increased $96,640,000, or 16%- to $717,031,000 while gas purchase costs increased 
$87,649,000, or 24%, to $449,188,000. 

Operating revenues and gas purchase costs in 1997 were affected by an increase in the average cost of gas and 
greater gas sales volumes. The average cost of gas increased S.62 to $3.67 per Mcf in 1997 due to increases in spot 
market gas prices as a result of the increased demand for natural gas during the 1996/1997 winter season. The 
average spot market price of natural gas increased 38% to $2.32 per MMBtu, in 1997. Gas sales volumes increased 
3% in 1997 to 121,996 MMcf due to growth in pipeline and marketing sales which typically have lower margins. This 
was partially offset by a reduction in volumes of 878 MMcf from the sale of certain operations in the Texas and 
Oklahoma Panhandles on May 1, 1996. Additionally impacting operating revenues was the $8,847,000 annual 
increase to revenues granted by the MPSC effective as of February 1, 1997, and increased revenues under the gas 
supply incentive plan, previously discussed. Also contributing to the increase in operating revenues was a $4,616,000 
increase in gross receipt taxes. 

Southern Union Gas and MGE contributed 33% and 60%. respectively, of the Company's consolidated 1997 operating 
revenues. Four suppliers provided 44% of gas purchases in 1997. 

Gas transportation volumes in 1997 increased 358 MMcf to 62,533 MMcf at an average transportation rate per Mcf 
of $24 compared with $.31 in 1996. Transportation volumes decreased from 30,269 MMcf to 29,638 MMcf in 1997 
for MGE and increased 3% in 1997 for Southern Union Gas and the Company's pipeline subsidiaries. This was 
partially offset by a reduction in volumes of 2,452 MMcf from the sale of certain operations, previously discussed. 

Net Operating Margin Net operating margin in 1998 (operating revenues less gas purchase costs and revenue- 
related taxes) increased by $497,000, compared with an increase of $4,375,000, in 1997. Operating margins and 
earnings are primarily dependent upon gas sales volumes and gas service rates. The level of gas sales volumes is 
sensitive to the variability of the weather. Southern Union Gas and MGE accounted for 43% and 52%, respectively, 
of the Company's net operating margin in 1998 and 42% and 55%, respectively, in 1997. 

Weather Weather in the Missouri service territories in 1998 was 90% of a 30-year measure, 14% warmer than in 
1997. Weather in 1998 in Southem Union Gas service territories was 99% of a 30-year measure, 8% colder than in 
1997. Weather in Missouri in both 1997 and 1996 was 105% of the 30-year measure, while weather in the Southern 
Union Gas service territories in 1997 was 92% of the 30-year measure, 5% colder than in 1996. 

Customers The average number of customers served in 1998, 1997 and 1996 was 979,186, 955,838 and 952,934, 
respectively. These customer totals do not include Southem Union's 42% equity ownership acquired on July 23, 1997 
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in a natural gas distribution company in Piedras Negras, Mexico which currently serves 17,500 customers. Southern 
Union Gas served 498,679 residential. commercial, industrial, agricultural and other gas utility customers in the State 
of Texas during 1998. The 1997 gas utillt/ customer base in Texas decreased slightly due to the divestiture of certain 
Texas and Oklahoma Panhandle distribution operations in May 1996 involving 7,000 customers. MGE served 471,708 
customers in central and western Missouri during 1998. SFNG and Atlantic Gas Corporation, a propane subsidiary 
of the Company, sewed 4,158 and 805 customers, respectively, since being acquired on December 31, 1997. SUPro 
Energy Company (SUPro), a subsidiary of the Company, served 8.527 propane customers in Texas during 1998. 

Operating Expenses Operating, maintenance and general expenses in 1998 decreased $2,361,000, or 2%. to 
$107.527.000. Included in this decrease was $5,837.000 less in bad debt expense due to a significant increase in 
delinquent customer accounts in 1997, previously discussed. Partially offsetting this factor was an increase in reserves 
for litigation claims and settlements. 

Depreciation and amortization expense in 1998 increased $3,610,000 to $38,439,000 as a result of including certain 
costs into rate base that were previously deferred as provided in the MGE revenue increase effective as of February 1. 
1997 and normal growth in plant. Taxes other than on income and revenues, principally consisting of property, payroll 
and state franchise taxes, in 1998 increased $2,051,000 to $14,205,000. The increase was primarily due to increases 
in property taxes resulting from the inclusion of certain plant assets pursuant to the MGE Safety Program that were 
deferred prior to the February 1, 1997 revenue increase in Missouri. 

Operating, maintenance and general expenses in 1997 increased $2,367,000, or 2%, to $109,888,000. Included in 
this increase was $5,763,000 in additional bad debt expense due to significant increases in delinquent customer 
accounts principally at MGE, previously discussed; increased media advertising; travel and call center labor Costs as 
a result of and in response to the significant price spikes in natural gas during the 1996/1997 winter heating season: 
and increased field and call center labor and other costs to improve customer service at MGE. Partially offsetting 
these factors was a decrease in medical, dental, pension and injury and damage claims. 

Depreciation and amortization expense in 1997 increased $1,847,000 to $34,829,000 as a result of including certain 
costs into rate base that were previously deferred as provided in the MGE revenue increase case effective as Of 
Februaty 1, 1997 and normal growth in plant. Taxes other than on income and revenues, in 1997 decreased 
$1,505,000 to $12,154,000. The decrease was primarily due to decreases in assessed property tax values in several 
Texas taxing jurisdictions, a decrease in Missouri state franchise tax and a reduction in payroll taxes from the 
decrease in employees. 

Employees The Company employed 1,594, 1,595 and 1,611 individuals as of June 30, 1998, 1997, and 1996, 
respectively. After gas purchases and taxes, employee costs and related benefits are the Company's most significant 
expense. Such expense includes salaries, payroll and related taxes and employee benefits such as health, savings, 
retirement and educational assistance. On May 1. 1996, the Company agreed to three-year contracts with each of 
the four unions that represent the bargaining-unit employees of MGE. 

lnierest Expense and Dividends on Preferred Securities Total interest expense in 1998 increased by $1,419,000, 
or4%. to $3,884,000. Interest expense on long-term debt and capital leases increased by $577,000 in 1998 primarily 
due to MGEs capital lease obligation of $22,151,000 incurred in 1998 for the installation of an Automated Meter 
Reading (AMR) system. 

Interest expense on short-term debt in 1998 increased $566,000 to $2,399,000, due to the average short-term debt 
outstanding during 1998 increasing $9,333,000 to $39,105,000. The average rate of interest on short-term debt was 
6.1% in both 1998 and 1997. 

Total interest expense in 1997 declined by $2,367,000, or 7%. to $33,465.000. Interest expense on long-term debt 
decreased by $4,205,000 in 1997 primarily due to the timing of the repurchase of $90,485,000 of the Senior Notes at 
various dates from June 1995 to June 1996. The funds used for the various repurchases of debt were obtained, in 
part, from the May 17. 1995 issuance of the Preferred Securities and working capital. 

Interest expense on short-term debt in 1997 increased $1,629,000 to $1,833,000, due to the average short-term debt 
outstanding during 1997 increasing $27,093,000 to $29,772,000. The average short-term debt balance outstanding 
during 1996 of $2,679.000 was the result of the available cash balance on hand from the sale of the Preferred 
Securities. The average rate of interest on short-term debt was 6.1% in 1997 compared with 7.4% in 1996. 
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Write-off of Regulatory Assets During 1998, the Company was impacted by pie-tax non-cash write-offs totaling 
$8,163,000 of previously recorded regulatory assets. Pursuant to a 1989 MPSC order, MGE is engaged in a major 
gas safety program. In connection with this program, the MPSC issued an accounting authority order in 1994 which 
authorized MGE to defer carrying costs at a rate of 10.54%. The MPSC rate order of January 22, 1997, however, 
retroactively reduced the 10.54% carrying cost rate used since early 1994 to an Allowance for Funds Used During 
Construction (AFUDC) rate of approximately 6%. The Company filed an appeal of this portion of the rate order in the 
Missouri State Court of Appeals, Western District, and on August 18, 1998 was notified that the appeal was denied. 
This resulted in a one-time non-cash write-off of $5,942,000 of previously deferred costs as of June 30, 1998. See 
Commitments and Contingencies in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

On August 21, 1998. MGE was notified by the MPSC of its decision to grant a $13,300,000 annual increase to revenue 
effective on September 2, 1998. The MPSC Rate Order reflected a 10.93% return on common equity. The Rate 
Order, however, disallowed certain previously recorded deferred costs associated with the rate filing, requiring a non- 
cash write-off of $2,221,000. Though the Company has requested a rehearing on significant portions of these 
disallowances, generally accepted accounting principles require the Company to immediately record this charge to 
earnings which Southern Union did as of June 30, 1998. 

Otherlncome (Expense), Net Other income, net, in 1998 increased by $1,193,000 to $4,073,000. Other income 
in 1998 included $1,671,000 in deferral of interest and other expenses associated with the MGE Safety Program; 
realized gains on the sale of investment securities of $1,088,000; and net rental income of Lavaca Realty Company, 
(Lavaca Realty), the Company's real estate subsidiary, of $1 ,119,000. 

Other income in 1997 included $3,729,000 in deferral of interest and other expenses associated with the MGE Safety 
Program; realized gains on the sale of investment securities of $2,545,000; and net rental income of Lavaca Realty 
of $1,329,000. This was partially offset by $2,125,000 for the settlement of certain billing errors, previously discussed; 
the write-off of $1,750,000 acquisition-related costs from the termination of various acquisition activities; and a 
$257,000 expense associated with the donation of emissions analysis equipment and software to a Texas university. 

Other income in 1996 included $5,664.000 in deferral of interest and other expenses associated with the MGE Safety 
Program; a $2,300,000 pre-tax gain on the sale of Western Gas Interstate Company (WGI), a former subsidiary of 
the Company, and other distribution operations on May 1, 1996; investment interest and interest on notes receivable 
of $2,051,000; net rental income of Lavaca Really of $1,392,000; and gains on the repurchase of Senior Notes of 
$1,581,000, This was partially offset by losses of $470,000 on the sale of undeveloped real estate. 

Federal and State lncome Taxes Federal and state income tax expense in 1998, 1997, and 1996 was $7,984,000, 
$12,373,000 and $14,979,000, respectively. The decrease in income taxes during 1998 and 1997 was due to the 
decrease in pre-tax income, previously discussed. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

Operating Activities The seasonal nature of Southern Union's business results in a high level of cash flow needs 
to finance gas purchases, outstanding customer accounts receivable and certain tax payments. To provide these 
funds, as well as funds for its continuing construction and maintenance programs, the Company has historically used 
its credit facilities along with intemally-generated funds. Because of available short-term credit and the ability to obtain 
various market financing, management believes it has adequate financial flexibility to meet its cash needs. 

Cash flow from operating activities in 1998 increased by $20,263,000 to $68,257,000, and decreased by $19,471,000 
to $47,994,000 in 1997. Operating acfnriies were impacted by a reduction in net earnings in 1998 and 1997, the non- 
cash write-off of previously recorded regulatory assets in 1998 discussed above, increased accounts receivable 
balances in 1997 due to increases in delinquent customer accounts discussed above and general changes in other 
operating accounts. The previously-mentioned August 21. 1998 MPSC Rate Order is anticipated to increase the 
Company's after-tax cash flow by approximately $8,000,000 annually. 

At June 30, 1998, 1997 and 1996. the Company's primary sources of liquidity included borrowings available under the 
Company's credit facilities and cash and cash equivalents of nil, nil and $2,887,000, respectively. A balance of 
$1,600,000 was outstanding under the credit facilities at both June 30, 1998 and 1997. A balance of $7,400,000 was 
outstanding under the facilities at July 31, 1998. 
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lnvesting Activities Cash flow used in investing activities in 1998 increased by $1 1,619,000 to $65,634,000, and 
increased by $22,556,000 to $54,015,000 in 1997. lnvesting activity cash flow was primarily affected by additions to 
property, plant and equipment, acquisition of operations, sales and purchases of investment securities and the sale 
of various properties. 

During 1998. 1997 and 1996, the Company expended $77,018,000, $64,463,000 and $59,376,000, respectively, for 
capital expenditures excluding acquisitions. These expenditures primarily related to distribution system replacement 
and expansion. Included in these capital expenditures were $21,125,000, $20,972,000 and $19,761,000 for the MGE 
Safety Program in 1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively. Cash flow from operations has historically been utilized to 
finance capital expenditures and is expected to be the primary source for future capital expenditures. 

On December 31, 1997, Southern Union acquired Atlantic Utilities Corporation and Subsidiaries (Atlantic) for 755,650 
pre-split shares of common stock and cash of $4,436,000, On the date of acquisition, Atlantic had $11,683,000 Of 
cash and cash equivalents. 

During 1998, the Company purchased investment securities of $5,000,000 and had proceeds from the sale of 
investment securities of $6,531,000. During 1997, the Company purchased investment securities of $5,363,000 and 
had proceeds from the sale of investment securities of $13,327,000, During 1996, the Company purchased 
$10,763,000 in investment securities. As of June 30, 1998, the investment securities are accounted for under the cost 
method. 

On May 1, 1996, the Company consummated the sale of various operations for $15,900,000. The operations included 
certain gas distribution operations of the Company in the Texas and Oklahoma Panhandles and WGI, exclusive Of 
the Del Norte interconnect which transports natural gas into Mexico. 

The Company began installing an AMR system at MGE in 1998 which was substantially completed in the first quarter 
of fiscal year 1999. The installation of the AMR system involved an investment of $30,550,000 which is aCCOUnted 
for as a capital lease obligation. During 1998, the Company recorded an increase in plant, long-term debt and other 
liabilities of $26,464,000. This system will improve meter reading accuracy and provide electronic accessibility to 
meters in residential customers' basements, thereby assisting in the reduction of the number of estimated bills. 

Financing Activities Cash flow used in financing activities in 1998 was $2,623,000, while cash flow from financing 
activities was $3,134000 in 1997. Cash flow used in financing activities in 1996 was $72,134,000. Financing activity 
cash flow changes were primarily due to repayment of debt and the various financing transactions during the past three 
years. As a result of these financing transactions, the Company's total debt to total capital ratio at June 30, 1998 was 
50.6%. compared with 51.2% and 52.7% at June 30,1997 and 1996, respectively. The Company's effective debt cost 
rate under the current debt structure is 7.8% (which includes interest and the amortization of debt issuance costs and 
redemption premiums on refinanced debt). 

On May 17, 1995, Southem Union Financing I (Subsidiary Trust), a consolidated wholly-owned subsidiary of Southem 
Union, issued $100,000,000 of Preferred Securities. The issuance of the Preferred Securities was part of a 
$300,000.000 shelf registration filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 29, 1995. Southern 
Union may sell a combination of preferred securities of financing trusts and senior and subordinated debt securities 
of Southern Union of up to $196.907.200 (the remaining shelf) from time to time, at prices determined at the time of 
any offering. The net proceeds from the Preferred Securities offering, along with working capital from operations, were 
used to repurchase $90,485,000 of the Senior Notes through June 1996 with the remaining balance used to provide 
working capital for seasonal needs. Depending upon market conditions and available cash balances, the Company 
may repurchase additional Senior Notes in the future. See Preferred Securities of Subsidiary Trust and Debt and 
Capital Lease in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Southern Union has availability under a $100,000,000 revolving credit facility (Revolving Credit Facility) underwritten 
by a syndicate of banks. The Company has additional availability under uncommitted line of credit fac 
(Uncommitted Facilities) with various banks. Covenants under the Revolving Credit Facility allow for up to $35,000,000 
of borrowings under Uncommitted Facilities at any one time. Borrowings under these facilities are availabl 
Southern Union's working capital, letter of credit requirements and other general corporate purposes. The fac 
are uncollateralized and have no borrowing base limitations as long as the Company's Senior Notes meet certain rating 
criteria. The Company may use up to $40,000,000 of the Revolving Credit Facility to finance future acquisitions. 
These facilities contain certain financial covenants that, among other things, restrict cash or asset dividends, share 
repurchases, certain investments and additional debt. The facility expires on December 31, 1999 but may be extended 
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annually for periods of one year with the consent of each of the banks. The Revolving Credit Facility is subject to a 
commitment fee based on the rating of the Company's Senior Notes. As of June 30, 1998 the commitment fee was 
an annualized .15% on the unused balance. 

The Company had standby letters of credit outstanding of $2,947,000 at both June 30, 1998 and 1997, which 
guarantee payment of various insurance premiums and state taxes. 

Other Matters 

Propane Operations SUPro and Atlantic Gas Corporation currently serve 8,527 and 769 customers, respectively, 
at June 30, 1998. These propane operations sold 5,758,000 and 2,417,000 gallons of propane during 1998 and 1997, 
respectively, and allow the Company to provide a greater scope of energy services. 

Foreign Operations On July 23, 1997, Energla Estrella del Sur, S. A. de C. V., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Southern 
Union Energy International, Inc. and Southern Union International Investments, Inc.. both subsidiaries of the Company, 
acquired a 42% equity ownership in a natural gas distribution company and other operations which currently serves 
17,500 customers in Piedras Negras, Mexico, which is across the border from the Company's Eagle Pass, Texas 
service area. On September 8, 1997, Southern Transmission Company, another subsidiary of the Company, 
purchased a 45-mile intrastate pipeline for $305,000 which will augment the Company's gas supply to the city of Eagle 
Pass and, subject to necessary regulatory approvals, ultimately Piedras Negras. Financial results of these foreign 
operations did not have a significant impact on the Company's financial results during 1998. 

Stock Sp/its and Dividends On July 13, 1998, a three-for-two stock split was distributed in the form of a 50% stock 
dividend. Additionally, Southern Union distributed annual 5% common stock dividends on December 10, 1997 and 
December 10, 1996. Unless otherwise stated, all per share data included herein and in the accompanying 
Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto have been restated to give effect to the stock splits and stock 
dividends. 

Contingencies The Company assumed responsibility for certain environmental matters in connection with the 
acquisition of MGE. Additionally, the Company is investigating the possibility that the Company or predecessor 
companies may have been associated with Manufactured Gas Plant sites in other of its former service territories, 
principally in Arizona and New Mexico, and present service territories in Texas. 

On August 18, 1998, a jury in Edinburg, Texas concluded deliberations on the City of Edinburg's franchise fee lawsuit 
against Valero Energy Corporation (Valero) and a number of its subsidiaries, as well as former Valero subsidiary Rio 
GrandeValley Gas Company (RGV) and RGVs successor company, Southern Union Company. The case, based 
upon events that occurred between 1985-1987, centers on specific contractual language in the 1985 franchise 
agreement between RGV and the City of Edinburg. Southern Union purchased RGV from Valero in October 1993. 
The jury awarded the plaintiff damages, under several largely overlapping but mutually exclusive claims, totaling 
approximately $13,000,000. The actual amount and appropriate allocation of the surviving portions of the damage 
awards will not be determined until further proceedings are completed, including the trial judge's decision on post-trial 
motions. The Company is pursuing having the jury's verdict overturned or reduced by the trial judge, and if necessary 
will vigorously pursue a reversal on appeal. The Company believes it will ultimately prevail and thus has not provided 
for any loss relative to this matter in its financial statements. Furthermore, the Company has not determined what 
impact, if any, this jury decision may have on other city franchises in Texas. 

On August 18, 1998, the Missouri Courtof,Appeais, Western District, denied the Company's appeal of the February 1, 
1997 rate order which retroactively reduced the carrying cost rate applied by the Company on expenditures incurred 
on the MGE Safety Program. The Company believes that the inconsistent treatment by the MPSC in subsequently 
changing to the Allowance for Funds Used During Construction rate of approximately 6% from the previously ordered 
rate of 10.54% constitutes retroactive ratemaking. Unfortunately, the decision by the Missouri State Court of Appeals 
failed to address certain specific language within a 1994 MPSC accounting authority order that the Company believed 
prevented the MPSC from retroactively changing the carrying cost rate. Southern Union will seek a transfer of the 
case to the Missouri Supreme Court; however, the likelihood of transfer is uncertain. See Results of0peration.s -- 
Write-off of Regulatory Assets. 

Southern Union and its subsidiaries are parties to other legal proceedings that management considers to be normal 
actions to which an enterprise of its size and nature might be subject, and not to be material to the Company's overall 
business or financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. 
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See Commitments and Contingencies in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

/nf/ation The Company believes that inflation has caused and will continue to cause increases in certain operating 
expenses and has required and will continue to require assets to be replaced at higher costs. The Company 
continually reviews the adequacy of its gas rates in relation to the increasing cast of providing service and the inherent 
regulatory lag in adjusting those gas rates. 

Regulatory The majority of the Company's business activities are subject to various regulatory authorities. The Com- 
pany's financial condition and results of operations have been and will continue to be dependent upon the receipt of 
adequate and timely adjustments in rates. Gas service rates, which consist of a monthly fixed charge and a gas usage 
charge, are established by regulatory authorities and are intended to permit ut es the opportunity to recover 
operating, administrative and financing costs and to have the opportunity to earn a reasonable return on equity. The 
monthly fixed charge provides a base revenue stream while the usage charge increases the Company's revenues and 
earnings in colder weather when natural gas usage increases. 

On September 18,1997,'the MPSC approved a global settlement among the Company, the Missouri Office of Public 
Counsel (OPC) and MPSC to resolve complaints brought by the OPC and the MPSC staff regarding billing errors 
during the 1995/1996 and 1996/1997 winter heating seasons, The settlement called for credits to gas bills by MGE 
totaling $1,575,000 to those customers overbilled and a $550,000 contribution by MGE to a social service organization 
for the express purpose of assisting needy MGE customers in paying their gas bills. These balances were recorded 
as of June 30, 1997. 

In August 1997, the MPSC issued an order authorizing MGE to begin making semi-annual purchase gas adjustments 
(PGA) in November and April, instead of more frequent adjustments as in the past. Additionally, the order authorized 
MGE to establish an Experimental Price Stabilization Fund for purposes of procuring natural gas financial inStrUmentS 
to hedge a minimal portion of its gas purchase costs for the winter heating season. The cost of purchasing these 
financial instruments and any gains derived from such activities are passed on to the Missouri customers through the 
PGA. Accordingly, there is no earnings impact as a result of the use of these financial instruments. These procedures 
help stabilize the monthly heating bills for Missouri customers. The Company believes it bears minimal risk under the 
authorized transactions. 

The MPSC also approved a three-year, experimental gas supply incentive plan for MGE effective July 1, 1996. Under 
the plan, the Company and MGEs customers share in certain savings below benchmark levels of gas costs achieved 
as a result of the Company's gas procurement activities. Likewise, if natural gas is acquired above benchmark levels, 
both the Company and customers share in such costs. For the year ended June 30,1998 and 1997, the incentive plan 
achieved a reduction of overall gas costs of $9,200,000 and $10,200,000, respectively, resulting in savings to Missouri 
customers of $5,100,000 and $5,600,000, respectively. The Company recorded revenues of $4,100,000 in 1998 and 
$4,600,000 in 1997 under this plan. There can be no assurance that this or any similar plan will be approved by the 
MPSC for MGE after this plan expires on July 1, 1999. 

On April 13, 1998, Southern Union Gas filed a $2,228,000 request for a rate increase from the city' of El Paso, a 
request the city subsequently denied. On April 21, 1998, the city council of El Paso voted to reduce the Company's 
rates by $1,570,000 annually and to order a one-time cost of gas refund of $475,000. The Company has appealed 
both of the council's actions to the Railroad Commission of Texas and expects a decision by the end of calendar year 
1998. 

On January 22. 1997, MGE was notified by the MPSC of its decision to grant an $8,847,000 annual increase to 
revenue effective as of February 1. 1997. Southern Union Gas also 'received several annual cost of service 
adjustments in 1998, 1997 and 1996. See Uti/ity Regulation and Rates and Commitments and Contingencies in the 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Pursuant to a 1989 MPSC order, MGE is engaged in a major gas safety program in its service territories. This 
program includes replacement of company- and customer-owned gas service and yard lines, the movement and 
resetting of meters, the replacement of cast iron mains and the replacement and cathodic protection of bare steel 
mains. In recognition of the significant capital expenditures associated with this safety program, the MPSC permits 
the deferral, and subsequent recovery through rates, of depreciation expense, property taxes and associated carrying 
costs. The continuation of the MGE Safety Program will result in significant levels of future capital expenditures. The 
Company estimates incurring capital expenditures of $19,000,000 in fiscal 1999 related to this program which are 
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expected to be financed through cash flow from Operations. See Utilify Regulation and Rates and Commitments and 
Contingencies in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

The Company is continuing to pursue certain changes to rates and rate structures that are intended to reduce the 
sensitivity of earnings to weather including weather normalization clauses and higher minimum monthly service 
charges. Southern Union Gas has weather normalization clauses in Austin, certain El Paso service area cities, Port 
Arthur, Galveston and in two other service areas in Texas. These clauses allow for the adjustments that help stabilize 
customers' monthly bills and the Company's earnings from the varying effects of weather. 

Year ZOO0 Similar to all business entities, the Company will be impacted by the inability of computer application 
software programs to distinguish bemeen the year 1900 and 2000 due to a commonly-used programming convention. 
Unless such programs are modified or replaced prior to 2000, calculations and interpretations based on date-based 
arithmetic or logical operations performed by such programs may be incorrect. 

Management's plan addressing the impact of the Year 2000 issue on the Company focuses on the following areas: 
application systems, process control systems (embedded chips), technology infrastructure, physical infrastructure, 
and third party business partners and suppliers with which the Company has significant relationships. Management's 
analysis and review of these areas is comprised primarily of five phases: developing an inventory of hardware, 
software and embedded chips; assessing the degree to which each area is currently in compliance with Year 2000 
requirements; performing renovations and repairs as needed to attain compliance; testing to ensure compliance; and 
developing a contingency plan if repair and renovation efforts are either unsuccessful or untimely. 

Management has substantially completed the inventory and assessment phases regarding application systems, 
process control systems and technology infrastructure, and is performing renovations, repairs and testing of the former 
hiyo categories. The review of physical infrastructure and business partners, gas transporters and suppliers is in the 
inventory stage. While the Company anticipates that any additional inventory and assessment efforts will be completed 
by the end of calendar year 1998, renovation, repair and testing of affected areas will continue through calendar year 
1999. Costs incurred to date have primarily consisted of labor from the redeployment of existing information 
technology, legal and operational resources. The Company expects to spend approximately $3 million for these Year 
2000 compliance efforts. To the extent that such costs are incurred in Year 2000 compliance efforts, the Company 
will attempt recovery for such costs through regulatory relief. 

In addition to the activities described above, the Company is currently replacing some of its financial and operating 
software programs with new programs that will be Year 2000 compliant. These new programs have significantly 
reduced the costs the Company expects to incur to become Year 2000 compliant. However, the Company has formed 
a contingency team to develop a work plan in the event that such programs are not fully operational by the end of 
calendar year 1999. The costs associated with this effort are being evaluated and cannot yet be determined. Although 
the Company does not presently anticipate a material business interruption as a result of the Year 2000, the worst 
case scenario if all of the Company's Year 2000 efforts failed, including the failure of third party providers to deliver 
services, could result in daily lost revenues of approximately $3,200,000. This estimate is based on historical revenues 
recognized in the month of January. 

Accounting Pronouncements The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) recently issued Employers' 
Disclosures about Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits which revises employers' disclosures about pension 
and other postretirement benefit plans. The Company is required to adopt the provisions of this standard by June 30, 
1999. 

The FASB also issued Reporting Comprehensive lflcome and Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and 
Related Information, which establish procedures for reporting and display of comprehensive income and its compo- 
nents, and certain disclosures about segment information in interim and annual financial statements and related 
information about products, services, geographic areas and major customers, respectively. The Company will adopt 
the provisions of these standards for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1999. but does not expect the adoption thereof 
to have a material effect on the Company's financial position. results of operations or cash flows. 

See the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for other accounting pronouncements followed by the Company. 

Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information This Management's Discussion and Analysis of 
Results of Operations and Financial Condition and other sections of this Annual Report on Form 10-K contain forward- 
looking statements that are based on current expectations, estimates and projections about the industry in which the 
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Company operates, management's beliefs and assumptions made by management. Words such as "expects," 
"anticipates," "intends," "plans," "believes," "seeks," "estimates," variations of such words and similar expressions are 
intended to identify such forward-looking statements. These statements are not guarantees of future performance 
and involve certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions, which are difficult to predict and many of which are outside 
the Company's control. Therefore, actual outcomes and results may differ materially from what is expressed or 
forecasted in such forward-looking statements. The Company undertakes no obligation to update publicly any forward- 
looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. Readers are cautioned not 
to put undue reliance on such forward-looking statements. Stockholders may review the Company's reports filed in 
the future with the Securities and Exchange Commission for more current descriptions of developments that could 
cause actual results to differ materially from such foward-looking statements. 

Factors that could cause or contribute to actual results differing materially from such forward-looking statements 
include the following: cost of gas: gas sales volumes; weather conditions in the Company's service territories: the 
achievement of operating efficiencies and the purchases and implementation of new technologies for attaining such 
efficiencies; impact of relations with labor unions of bargaining-unit employees; the receipt of timely and adequate rate 
relief; the outcome of pending and future litigation; governmental regulations and proceedings affecting or involving 
the Company; and the nature and impact of any extraordinary transactions such as any acquisition or divestiture of 
a business unit or any assets. These are representative of the factors that could affect the outcome of the forward- 
looking statements. In addition, such statements could be affected by general industry and market conditions, and 
general economic conditions, including interest rate fluctuations, federal, state and local laws and regulations affecting 
the retail gas industry or the energy industry generally, and other factors. 

ITEM 8. Financial Statements and Supplementafy Data. 

Reference is made to the Consolidated Financial Statements of Southern Union and subsidiaries beginning with the 
index thereto on page F-1. 

ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and financial Disclosure. 

None. 
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PART 111 

ITEM 10. Directors and Executive Officers of Registrant. 

There is incorporated in this Item 10 by reference the information in the Company’s definitive proxy statement for the 
1998 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the captions Board of Directors - Board Size and Composition and 
Executive Officers and Compensation - Executive Officers Who Are Not Directors. 

ITEM 11. Executive Compensation. 

There is incorporated in this Item 11 by reference the information in the Company’s definitive proxy statement for the 
1998 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the captions Executive Officers and Compensation -- Executive Compen- 
sation and Certain Relationships. 

ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management. 

There is incorporated in this Item 12 by reference the information in the Company’s definitive proxy statement for the 
1998 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the caption Security Ownership. 

ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions. 

There is incorporated in this Item 13 by reference the information in the Company’s definitive proxy statement for the 
1998 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the caption Certain Relationships. 

PART IV 

ITEM 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K. 

(a)(l) Financial Statements. Reference is made to the Index on page F-I for a list of all financial statements filed 
as part of this Report. 

(a)@) Financial Statement Scheduleg. All schedules are omitted as the required information is not applicable or 
the information is presented in the consolidated financial statements or related notes. 

(a)(3) Exhibits. Reference is made to the Exhibit Index preceding the exhibits attached hereto on page E-I for a 
list of all exhibits filed as part of this Report. 

Reoortso n Form 8-K. Southern Union filed no current reports on Form 8-K during the three months ended 
June 30. 1998. 

(b) 
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Southern Union has duly 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of 
Southern Union Company: 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and the related consolidated statements of operations, 
cash flows and stockholders' equity present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Southern Union 
Company and its subsidiaries at June 30, 1998 and 1997, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for 
each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 1998, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management; our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in 
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above. 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 

Austin, Texas 
August 25, 1998 
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SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS 

Year Ended June 30. 
1998 1997 1996 

(thousands of dollars, except shares and 

Operating revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Gas purchasecosts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Operating margin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . .  
Revenue related taxes . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Net operating margin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Operating expenses: 
Operating, maintenance and general . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . .  
Taxes, other than on income and revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Netoperating revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Other income (expenses): 
Interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Dividends on preferred securities of subsidiary trust 
Write-off of regulatory assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other,net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total other expenses, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Earnings before income taxes 

Federal and state income taxes 

Net earnings available for common stock . . . .  

Net earnings per share: 

Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

rage shares outstanding: 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

per share amounts) 

$ 669,304 $ 717,031 $ 620,391 
405.58Q 449.188 361.539 
263,724 267,843 258,852 

228.838 228.341 223,966 
(34.886) (39.502) (34.886) 

107,527 109,888 107,521 
38,439 34,829 32,982 
14.205 12.154 13.659 

160.171 156.871 154.162 
68.667 71.470 69.804 

(34,884) (33,465) (35,832) 
(9.480) (9.480) (9,480) 

(8,163) -- 
4.073 2.880 11.326 

(48.454) (40.065) (33.986) 

20,213 31,405 35,818 

7.984 12.373 14.979 

$ 12.229 $ 19.032 $ 20.839 

__ 

27 580.21 1 26.886.053 26.758 932 
28.653.278 27 947,935 27 59 7 449 

See accompanying notes. 
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SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 

ASSETS 

1998 1997 
(thousands of dollars) 

Property, plant and equipment: 
Plant inservice . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Construction work in progress . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 

Additional purchase cost assigned to utility plant, net of accumulated 
amortization of $27,030,000 and $23,082,000, respectively . . . . .  

Net property, plant and equipment 

Current assets: 
Accounts receivable, billed and unbilled . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Inventories. principally at average cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
lnvestmentsecurities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Prepaymentsand other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total current assets 

Deferred charges 

lnvestmentsecurities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Real estate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Other 

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

$1,057,675 $ 963,269 
7.783 7.970 

1,065,458 971,239 

710,028 642,057 
(355.4321 (329.182) 

138.38 1 131.539 

848,409 773,596 

53,760 58,659 
26,160 21,523 - 6.432 
4.747 9:609 

84,667 96,223 

94,550 109,512 

5,000 __ 
9,741 9,046 

5,397 2,026 

3 990.403 

See accompanying notes 
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SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (Continued) 

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

June 30. 
1998 1997 
(thousands of dollars) 

Common stockholders' equity: 
Common stock, $1 par value; authorized 50,000,000 shares; issued 

28,252,186 shares at June 30.1998 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 28,252 $ 17,171 
Premium on capital stock . . . . . . .  . . . . . . .  252,638 225,252 
Less treasury stock: 51,625 sha (794) (794) 
Retained earnings . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . .  16,738 25,169 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Unrealized holding gain . . . . . .  . . . . . . .  _ _  664 

296,834 267.462 

Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable preferred securities of subsidiary 
trust holding solely subordinated notes of Southern Union . . . . . . . . . . .  100,000 100,000 

Long-term debt and capital lease obligation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  406.407 386.157 

Total capitalization . . . . . . . .  . . . .  . . . . . .  803,241 753,619 

Current liabilities: 
Long-term debt and capital lease obligation due within one year . . 
Notespayable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Accounts payable . . .  
Federal, state and loca . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . .  
Accruedinterest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Customer deposits . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . .  
Deferred gas purchase . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . .  

. . . . . . .  . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  

Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

1,777 
1,600 

26,570 
14,017 
12,699 
17,686 
12,257 
21.095 

687 
1,600 

33,827 
13,699 
12,840 
17,214 
3,565 

22.291 

Total current liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  107,701 105,723 

Deferred credits and other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  74,217 77,083 

Accumulated deferred income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  62,605 53,978 

Commitments and contingencies __ -- . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total stockholders' equity and liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $1.047.764 $990.403 

See accompanying notes. 
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SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Netearnings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash flows from 
operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Deferred income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . .  
Provision for bad debts . . . . . . . . . , . . . . . . . . , . . . . . . . , . . 
Write-off of regulatory assets . . . , . , . . . . . . . , . . . . . , , , . . 
Deferred interest expense . . . , . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Gain on sale of investment securities . . . . , . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Gain on sale of various operations , . . . . . , 
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Changes in assets and liab es, net of acquisitions 

and dispositions: 
Accounts receivable, billed and unbilled . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Accountspayable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Taxes and other liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Customer deposits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Deferred gas purchase costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Inventories . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Net cash flows from operating activities . . . 

Additions to property, plant and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Acquisition of operations, net of cash received . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Purchase of investment securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Litigation settlement proceeds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Increase in customer advances . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Increase (decrease) in deferred charges and credits . . . . . . . . . 
Proceeds from sale of various operations . . . . . . . . . . . , . . . . . 
Proceeds from sale of land . . . . . . . . . . 
Proceeds from sale of investment securi 
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Cash flows from (used in) investing activities: 

Maturity of short-term investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Net cash flows used in investing activities . 
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities: 

Repayment of debt and capital lease obligation . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Net borrowings under revolving credit facility . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Increase (decrease) in cash overdrafts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . .  

Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities . . . . . . . . . 
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year . . . . . .  

1998 lgg7 1996 

$ 12,229 $ 19,032 $ 20,839 

(thousands of dollars) 

38,439 34,829 32,982 
6,363 7,340 9,413 
5,461 11,298 5,535 
8,163 __ _- 

(5,664) (1,671) (3,729) 
(2.545) __ (2,300) 

(1,088) 

1,447 1,077 62 1 

__ __ 

132 
(7,066) 
146 
201 

8,693 
(4,361) 

1.169 
68.257 

(77,018) 
6,502 
(5,000) -_ __ 
3,562 
(1,786) __ __ 
6,531 
1.57 

(65.63:) 

(22.1 11)  
(6,978) 
(2,975) 
1,558 
6,215 
5,691 

(708) 
47.994 

(64,463) 
(1,861 ) 
(5,363) - 
- 

2,470 
6 

1,130 
1,096 
13,327 
(357) 

(54.015) 

(17,743) 
10,048 
11,021 
1,489 
4,991 
(3,607) 
(160) 

67.465 

(59,376) 

(10,763) 
4,250 
19,582 
3,547 
(3.81 1) 
14,770 

-- 

__ __ 
342 

(31.459) 

(640) (72,790) (1.309) 

1,567 __ (945) 
607 656 

(72.134) 
(369) 

-- (2.887) (36.128) 
_- 2.887 39.01 5 

$ $ - -  $ 2.887 

__ _- 1,600 

(2.623) 3.134 

Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized, in 1998, 1997 and 1996 was $33,997,000, $32,282.000 and 
$36,893,000, respectively. Cash paid for income taxes in 1998. 1997 and 1996 was $4,511,000, $5,871,000 and 
$1 1,000, respectively. 

See accompanying notes 
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SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY 

Balance July 1, 1995 

Unrealized Common Premium Treasury 
Stock, $1 on Capital Stock, Retained Holding 
Par Value Stock at Cost Earninas Gain fLoosl Total 

(thousands of dollars) 

$11.570 $ 198,819 $ (794) $ 16,069 $ -- $225,664 

20,839 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Net earnings -- _ _  __ 20,839 -_ 
5% stock dividend . . . . . . . . . . . .  576 10,701 _- (11,277) __ 
Four-for-three stock split 4,054 (4,054) __ - - - __ . . . . . . .  
Chanoe in unrealized holdina 

I - 
gain or loss . , . . , . . , . , , . , . __ __ __ __ (1,244) (1,244) 

. . . . . .  -_ 656 Exercise of stock options 75 581 __ 
Balance June 30, 1996. . . . . . . . . .  16,275 206,047 (794) 25,631 (1,244) 245,915 

__ __ 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  19,032 

gain or loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  _- -_ __ -_ 1,908 1,908 

Net earnings __ -- -- 19,032 - 
5% stock dividend . . . . . . . . . . . .  813 18,681 -_ (19,494) - - 
Change in unrealized holding 

Exercise of stock options . . .  
Balance June 30, 1997 . . . . . . .  

83 524 __ -_ -- 607 -- 
17,171 225,252 (794) 25,169 664 267,462 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  -- 12,229 __ 12,229 Net earnings -_ -- 
5% stock dividend . . . . . . . . . . . .  856 19,802 - (20,658) __ _- 
Three-for-two stock split 9,400 (9.400) 
Issuance of stock for acquisition . 756 17,285 
Change in unrealized holding 

(2) 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (664) (664) gain or loss _- - _ _  -- 

. . . . . . .  -- 
-- I __ 18,041 

(2) __ 

-- - (232) Exercise of stock options . . . . . .  __ 69 (301) 
BalanceJune30, 1998 . .  . . . . . . . .  $28.252 S 252.634 m) $16.738 $ - $296,834 

See accompanying notes. 

F-7 



L U 

SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

I Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Operations Southern Union Company (Southern Union and, together with its wholly-owned subsidiaries, the Com- 
pany), is a public utility primarily engaged in the distribution and sale of natural gas to residential, commercial and 
industrial customers. Subsidiaries of Southern Union also market natural gas to end-users, distribute propane, operate 
natural gas pipeline systems and sell commercial gas air conditioning and other gas-fired engine-driven applications. 
Certain subsidiaries own or hold interests in real estate and other assets, which are primarily used in the Company's 
utility business. Substantial operations of the Company are subject to regulation. 

Principles of Consolidation The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Southern Union and its 
wholly-owned subsidiaries. All Significant intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation. 
All dollar amounts in the tables herein, except per share amounts, are stated in thousands unless otherwise indicated. 

Gas Utility Revenues and Gas Purchase Cosis Gas utility customers are billed on a monthly-cycle basis. The 
related cost of gas is matched with cycle-billed revenues through operation of purchased gas adjustment provisions 
in tariffs approved by the regulatory agencies having jurisdiction. Revenues from gas delivered but not yet billed are 
accrued, along with the related gas purchase costs and revenue-related taxes. The distribution and sale of natural 
gas in Texas and Missouri contributed in excess of 85% of the Company's total revenue, net earnings and identifiable 
assets in both 1998 and 1997. Four suppliers provided 45%, 44% and 43% of the Company's gas purchases in 1998, 
1997 and 1996, respectively. 

Credit Risk Concentrations of credit risk in trade receivables are limited due to the large customer base with relatively 
small individual account balances. In addition, Company policy requires a deposit from Certain customers. The Com- 
pany has recorded an allowance for doubtful accounts totaling $8,488,000, $10,986,000, $4,000,000 and $2,100,000 
at June 30, 1998, 1997, 1996 and 1995, respectively. The allowance for doubtful accounts is increased for estimated 
uncollectible accounts and reduced for the write-off of trade receivables. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet for cash and cash equiva- 
lents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and notes payable approximates their fair value. The fair value of the 
Company's investment securities and long-term debt is estimated using current market quotes and other estimation 
techniques. 

Inventories Inventories consist of natural gas in underground storage and materials and supplies. Natural gas in 
underground storage of $20,545,000 and $17,171,000 at June 30, 1998 and 1997, respectively, consists of 9,118,000 
and 7,785,000 British thermal units, respectively. 

Earnings Per Share The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) recently issued a standard, Earnings Per 
Sbare, which replaces the previously reported primary and fully diluted earnings per share with a basic and diluted 
earnings per share presentation. Unlike primary earnings per share, basic earnings per share excludes any dilutive 
effects of options and warrants. Diluted earnings per share is very similar to the previously reported fully diluted 
earnings per share. All earnings per share amounts for all periods have been presented, and where necessary, 
restated to conform to the new standard. All share and per share data have been restated for all stock dividends and 
stock splits unless otherwise stated. 

New Pronouncements The FASB recently issued Employers' 5isc/osures about Pensions and Ofher Postretirement 
Benefits which revises employers' disclosures about pension and other postretirement benefit plans. The Company 
is required to adopt the provisions of this standard by June 30, 1999. 

The FASB also issued Reporting Comprehensive lncorne and Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and 
Related Information. which establish procedures for reporting and display of comprehensive income and its compo- 
nents, and certain disclosures about segment information in interim and annual financial statements and related 
information about products, services, geographic areas and major customers, respectively. The Company will adopt 
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SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

the provisions of these standards for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1999, but does not expect the adoption thereof 
to have a material effect on the Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
and disclosure of contingent assets and liab es at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

II Acquisitions and Divestiture 

Effective December 31, 1997, the Company acquired Atlantic Utilities Corporation and Subsidiaries (Atlantic) for 
755,650 pre-split shares of common stock valued at $18.041.000 and cash of $4,436,000. Atlantic is operated as 
South Florida Natural Gas, a natural gas division of Southern Union, and Atlantic Gas Corporation, a propane 
subsidiary of the Company. Atlantic currently serves 4,800 customers in central Florida. The assets of Atlantic were 
included in the Company's consolidated balance sheet at January 1, 1998 as well as Atlantic's results of operations 
which have been included in the Company's statements of consolidated operations and cash flows since January 1. 
1998. On the date of acquisition, Atlantic had $11,683,000 of cash and cash equivalents. The acquisition was 
accounted for using the purchase method. The additional be assigned to utility plant, pending final 
determination of the fair value of the assets acquired and d. of approximately $10,000,000 refiech 
the excess of the purchase price over the historical book carrying value of the net assets acquired. The additional 
purchase cost is amortized on a straight-line basis over f o e  years. 

On July 23, 1997 two subsidiaries of Southern Union acquired a 42% equity ownership in a natural gas distribution 
company and other related operations currently serving 17,500 customers in Piedras Negras. Mexico for $2,700.000. 
This system is across the border from the Company's Eagle Pass, Texas service area. On September 8, 1997, the 
Company purchased a 45-mile intrastate pipeline, which will augment the Company's gas supply to the city of Eagle 
Pass and, subject to necessary regulatory approvals, ultimately Piedras Negras. 

On August 30,1996, SUPro Energy Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, purchased certain propane 
distribution operations in El Paso, Texas and on June 30, 1997, acquired propane operations located in and around 
Alpine, Texas. These acquisitions which serve 3,600 customers were for $1,861,000 in cash and the assumption of 
$1,475,000 in long-term debt. 

On May 1, 1996, Southern Union Company sold certain gas distribution operations of the Company in the Texas and 
Oklahoma Panhandles and Western Gas Interstate Company (WGI), a former wholly-owned subsidiary of the 
Company, exclusive of the Del Norte interconnect operation which transports natural gas into Mexico, for $15,900,000. 

111 Write-off of Regulatoty Assets 

During 1998, the Company was impacted by pre-tax noncash write-offs totaling $6,163,000 of previously recorded 
regulatory assets. Pursuant to a 1989 Missouri Public Service Commission (MPSC) order, Missouri Gas Energy is 
engaged in a major gas safety program. In connection with this program, the MPSC issued an accounting authority 
order in 1994 which authorized Missouri Gas Energy to defer carrying costs at a rate of 10.54%. The MPSC rate order 
of January 22, 1997, however, retroactively reduced the 10.54% carrying cost rate used since early 1994 to an 
Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (AFUDC) rate of approximately 6%. The Company filed an appeal 
of this portion of the rate order in the Missouri State Court of Appeals, Western District, and on August 18, 1998 was 
notified that the appeal was denied. This resulted in a one-time noncash write-off of $5,942,000 of previously deferred 
costs as of June 30, 1998. See Commitments and Contingencies. 

On August 21, 1998, Missouri Gas Energy was notified by the MPSC of its decision to grant a rate increase which, 
among other things, disallowed certain previously recorded deferred costs associated with the rate filing, requiring an 
additional pre-tax non-cash write-off of $2,221,000. Though the Company has requested a rehearing on significant 
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SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

portions of these disallowances, generally accepted accounting principles require the Company to immediately record 
this charge to earnings which Southern Union did as of June 30, 1998. 

IV Other Income, Net 

Other income of $4,073,000 in 1998 included: $1,671,000 related to the deferral of interest and other expenses 
associated with the Missouri Gas Energy Safety Program; realized gains on the sale of investment securities of 
$1,088,000; and net rental income of Lavaca Realty Company (Lavaca Realty), the Company's real estate subsidiary, 
of $1,119,000. 

Other income of $2,880,000 in 1997 included: $3,729,000 related to the deferral of interest and other expenses asso- 
ciated with the Missouri Gas Energy Safety Program; realized gains on the sale of investment securities of $2,545,000; 
and net rental income of Lavaca Realty, of $1,329,000. This was partially offset by $2,125,000 for the settlement of 
complaints brought by the Missouri Office of Public Counsel and the Missouri Public Service Commission (MPSC) for 
certain billing errors primarily from the 1996/1997 winter heating season; the write-off of $1,750,000 of acquisition- 
related costs as a result of termination of various acquisition activities; and a $257,000 expense associated with the 
donation of emissions analysis equipment and software to a Texas university. 

Other income of $11,326,000 in 1996 included: $5,664,000 related to the deferral of interest and other expenses 
associated with the Missouri Gas Energy Safety Program; $2,300,000 pre-tax gain on the sale of WGI and other 
operations; investment interest and interest on notes receivable of $2,051,000: net rental income of Lavaca Realty 
of $1,392,000; and $1,581,000 in net gains from the repurchase of Senior Notes. This was partially offset by losses 
of $470,000 on the sale of undeveloped real estate. 

V Cash Flow Information 

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash 
equivalents. Short-term investments are highly liquid investments with maturities of more than three months when 
purchased, and are carried at cost, which approximates market. The Company places its temporary cash investments 
with a high credit quality financial institution which, in turn, invests the temporary funds in a variety of highquality short- 
term financial securities. 

Under the Company's cash management system, checks issued but not presented to banks frequently result in 
overdraft balances for accounting purposes and are classified in accounts payable in the consolidated balance sheet. 

VI Earnings Per Share 

During the three-year period ended June 30, 1998, no adjustments were required in net earnings available for common 
stock for the earnings per share calculations. Average shares outstanding for basic earnings per share were 
27,580,211, 26,886,053 and 26,758,932 for the year ended June 30, 1998. 1997 and 1996, respectively. Diluted 
earnings per share iincludes average shares outstanding as well as wmmon stock equivalents from stock options and 
warrants. Common stock equivalents were 1,073,067, 1,061,882 and 838,517 for the year ended June 30, 1998, 1997 
and 1996, respectively. 



SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

VI1 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Plant Plant in service and construction work in progress are stated at original cost net of contributions in aid of 
construction. The cost of additions includes an allowance for funds used during construction and applicable overhead 
charges. Gain or loss is recognized upon the disposition of significant utility properties and other property constituting 
operating units. Gain or loss from minor dispositions of property is charged to accumulated depreciation and amortiza- 
tion. The Company capitalizes the cost of significant internally-developed computer software systems and amortizes 
the cost over the expected useful life. See Debt and Capital Lease. 

June 30. 
1998 1997 

$ 984,580 $ 919,998 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  16.172 15.872 
Total plant . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,107,196 1,010,245 

Less contributions in a . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (49.521) (46.976) 
Plant in service . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,057,675 963,269 

Distribution plant. . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
General plant . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  106,444 74,375 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Construction work in progress . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Additional purchase cost assigned to utility plant, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Net property, plant and equipment 

7.783 7.979 
1.065.458 971,239 

(329.182) 
642,057 710,028 

138.381 131.539 

(355.430) 

$ 848.409 $ 773.596 

Acquisitions of rate-regulated entities are recorded at the historical book carrying value of utility plant. On 
December 31, 1997, Atlantic was acquired in which historical utility plant and equipment had a cost and accumulated 
depreciation and amortization of $5,253,000 and $2,540,000, respectively. Additional purchase cost assigned to utility 
plant is the excess of the purchase price over the book carrying value of the net assets acquired. In general, the Com- 
pany has not been allowed recovery of additional purchase cost assigned to utility plant in rates. Periodically. the Com- 
pany evaluates the carrying value of its additional purchase cost assigned to utility plant, long-lived assets, capital 
leases and other identifiable intangibles by comparing the anticipated future operating income from the businesses 
giving rise to the respective asset with the original cost or unamortized balance. No impairment has been indicated 
or is expected at June 30, 1998. 

Depreciation and Amortization Depreciation of utility plant is provided at an average straight-line rate of 
approximately 3% per annum of the cost of such depreciable properties less applicable salvage. Franchises are 
amortized over their respective lives. Depreciation and amortization of other property is provided at straight-line rates 
estimated to recover the costs of the properties. after allowance for salvage, over their respective lives. Internally- 
developed computer software system costs are amortized over various regulatory-approved periods. Amortization 
of additional purchase cost assigned to utility plant is provided on a straight-line basis over forty years unless the 
Company's regulators have provided for the recovery of the additional purchase cost in rates, in which case the 
Company's policy is to utilize the amortization period which follows the rate recovery period. 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment in 1998. 1997, and 1996 was $34,477,000, $31,051,000 and 
$29,264,000, respectively. 

Vlll Investment Securities 

At June 30, 1998. all securities owned by the Company are accounted for under the cost method. These securities 
consist of preferred stock in a non-public company. Realized gains and losses on sales of investments, as determined 
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on a specific identification basis, are included in the Consolidated Statement of Operations when incurred, and 
dividends are recognized as income when received. 

At June 30, 1997, all securities owned by the Company were classified as available for sale. Accordingly, these 
securities are stated at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses reported in a separate component of common 
stockholders' equity. As of June 30, 1997, investment securities consisted of common stock with a specific cost of 
$5,443,000 and a fair value of $6,432,000. The unrealized holding gain, net of related income taxes and included as 
a separate component of common stockholders' equity, totaled, $643,000. 

As of June 30, 1997, the Company had short sales of investment securities and recorded a prepayment for the 
anticipated proceeds of $6,599,000. The related payable of 56,566,000, based on fair value of the investment 
securities, was recorded in other current liabilities. The unrealized holding gain, net of related income taxes and 
included as a separate component of common stockholders' equity, totaled $21,000 at June 30, 1997. 

IX Stockholders' Equity 

Stock Splits andDividends On December 10,1997, December 10,1996 and November 27, 1995, Southern Union 
distributed its annual 5% common stock dividend to stockholders of record on November 21, 1997, November 22. 
1996 and November 15, 1995, respectively. A portion of the 5% stock dividend distributed on November 27, 1995 was 
characterized as a distribution of capital due to the level of the Company's retained earnings available for distribution 
as of the declaration date. On July 13, 1998, Southern Union distributed a three-for-two stock split in the form of a 
50% stock dividend to stockholders of record on June 30, 1998. On March 11, 1996, the Company distributed a four- 
for-three stock split in the form of a 33%% stock dividend, to stockholders of record on February 23, 1996. Unless 
otherwise stated, all per share and share data included herein have been restated to give effect to the dividends and 
splits. 

Common Stock The Company maintains its 1992 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan (1992 Plan) under which options 
to purchase 3,313,690 shares were provided to be granted to officers and key employees at prices not less than the 
fair market value on the date of grant. The 1992 Plan allows for the granting of stock appreciation rights, dividend 
equivalents, performance shares and restricted stock. The Company also had an incentive stock option plan (1982 
Plan) which provided for the granting of 787,500 options, until December 31, 1991. Upon exercise of an option granted 
under the 1982 Plan, the Company may elect, instead of issuing shares, to make a cash payment equal to the differ- 
ence at the date of exercise between the option price and the market price of the shares as to which such option is 
being exercised. Options granted under both the 1992 Plan and the 1982 Plan are exercisable for periods of ten years 
from the date of grant or such lesser period as may be designated for particular options, and become exercisable after 
a specified period of time from the date of grant in cumulative annual installments. Options typically vest 20% per year 
for five years but may be a lesser or greater period as designated for particular options. 

The Company accounts for its incentive plans under an Accounting Principles Board opinion, Accounting for Stock 
lssuedto Employees. As a result, the Company recorded no compensation expense for 1998,1997 and 1996. During 
1997, the Company adopted the FASB standard, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, for footnote disclosure 
purposes only. Had compensation cost for these incentive plans been determined consistent with this standard, the 
Company's net income and diluted earnings per share would have been $1 1,141,000 and $.39, respectively, in 1998, 
$18,489,000 and $66, respectively, in 1997 and $20,616,000 and $.75, respectively, in 1996. Because this standard 
has not been applied to options granted prior to July 1, 1995, the resulting pro forma compensation cost may not be 
representative of that to be expected in future years. 
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The fair value of each option is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the 
following assumptions used for grants in 1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively: dividend yield of nil for all yean; volatility 
of 19.5%, 21% and 25%; risk-free interest rate of 5.5%, 6.2% and 6.6%; and expected life outstanding of 5.5 to 7.2 
years, 5.5 to 7.2 years and 3.5 to 7.0 years. 

1992 Plan 1982 Pian 
Weighted Weighted 

Shares Under Average Shares Under Average 
Exercise P r i a  Ontion men: me Price ODtion 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Outstanding July 1, 1995 1,039,315 $ 5.93 595,261 $ 3.39 - __ Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  475.928 9.68 
~ ~. 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Exercised (56,'160) 5.47 (105,835) 3.36 
Canceled (74.82Q) 6.67 

Outstanding June 30, 1996 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1.384.263 7.20 489.426 3.39 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - __ 

~ ~~ . -_ __ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  '446;235 14.47 
Exercised (55,494) 6.26 (77,653) 3.39 
Canceled 111.938) 

Outstanding June 30, 1997 . . . . . . . . .  1,763,066 9.07 41 1,773 3.39 
Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  674,555 18.66 
Exercised (77.081) 4.93 (80,961) 3.39 
Canceled . . . . . . .  (19.622) 13.87 

Outstanding June 30, 1998 2.340.918 11.93 330.812 3.39 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  _- -- . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  7.25 

__ -- 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

- - 

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding under the 1992 Plan at June 30, 1998: 

ODtions Oumandina ODtions Exercisable 
Weighted Average Weighted Weighted 

Range of Number of Remaining Average Number of Average 
Exercise Prices Ootions Contractual Life Exercise Price Ootions Exercise Price 

$ 0.00 - $ 5.00 371,787 4.3 years $ 4.27 371,787 $ 4.27 
5.01 - 10.00 798.248 6.5 years 8.53 455,673 8.16 

10.01 - 15.00 483.636 8.3 years 13.93 109,134 13.54 
15.01 - 20.00 682,285 9.9 years 18.60 __ __ 
20.01 - 25.00 4.962 5.0 years 20.53 -_ __ 

2.340.918 936.594 
The shares exercisable under the 1992 Plan and the corresponding weighted average exercise price at June 30, 1998, 
1997 and 1996 were 936,594 at $7.24; 686,598 at $6.12; and 464,573 at $5.55, respectively. The shares exercisable 
under the 1982 Plan and the corresponding weighted average exercise price at June 30, 1998, 1997 and 1996 were 
330,812 at $3.39; 41 1,773 at $3.39; and 489.426 at $3.39, respectively. The weighted average remaining contractual 
life of options outstanding under the 1982 Plan at June 30, 1998 was 1.9 years. There were 768,720 shares available 
for future option grants under the 1992 Plan at June 30, 1998. No shares were available for future option grants under 
the 1982 Plan at June 30, 1998. 

On February 10, 1994, Southern Union granted a warrant which expires on February 10, 2004, to purchase up to 
91,162 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $7.61 to the Company's outside legal counsel. 

RetainedEarnings Under the most restrictive provisions in effect, as a result of the sale of Senior Notes, Southern 
Union will not declare or pay any cash or asset dividends on common stock (other than dividends and distributions 
payable solely in shares of its common stock or in rights to acquire its common stock) or acquire or retire any shares 
of Southern Union's common stock, unless no event of default exists and the Company meets certain financial 
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ratio requirements. In addition, Southern Union's charter relating to the issuance of preferred stock limits the payment 
of cash or asset dividends on capital stock. 

X Preferred Securities of Subsidiary Trust 

On May 17, 1995, Southern Union Financing I (Subsidiary Trust), a consolidated wholly-owned subsidiary of Southern 
Union, issued $100,000,000 of 9.48% Trust Originated Preferred Securities (Preferred Securities). In connection with 
the Subsidiary Trust's issuance of the Preferred Securities and the related purchase by Southern Union of all of the 
Subsidiary Trust's common securities (Common Securities), Southern Union issued to the Subsidiary Trust 
$103,092,800 principal amount of its 9.48% Subordinated Deferrable Interest Notes, due 2025 (Subordinated Notes). 
The sole assets of the Subsidiary Trust are the Subordinated Notes. The interest and other payment dates on the 
Subordinated Notes correspond to the distribution and other payment dates on the Preferred Securities and the Com- 
mon Securities. Under certain circumstances, the Subordinated Notes may be distributed to holders of the Preferred 
Securities and holders of the Common Securities in liquidation of the Subsidiary Trust. The Subordinated Notes are 
redeemable at the option of the Company on or after May 17, 2000, at a redemption price of $25 per Subordinated 
Note plus accrued and unpaid interest. The Preferred Securities and the Common Securities will be redeemed on 
a pro rata basis to the same extent as the Subordinated Notes are repaid, at $25 per Preferred Security and Common 
Security plus accumulated and unpaid distributions. Southern Union's obligations under the Subordinated Notes and 
related agreements, taken together, constitute a full and unconditional guarantee by Southern Union of payments due 
on the Preferred Securities. As of June 30, 1998 and 1997, 4,000,000 shares of Preferred Securities were out- 
standing. 

XI Debt and Capital Lease 

June 30. 
1997 

7.60% Senior Notes, due 2024 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 384,515 $ 384,515 

15 408.184 $386.844 
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  23.669 2.329 
Total long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . .  . .  

The maturities of long-term debt for each of the next five years ending June 30 are: 1999 -- $1,777,000; 2000 -- 
$1,632,000; 2001 -- $1,734,000; 2002 -- $1,852,000; 2003 -- $12,159,000 and thereafter -- $389,030,000. 

Senior Notes On January 31, 1994, Southern Union completed the sale of the $475,000,000, 7.60% Senior Debt 
Securities (Senior Notes). The net proceeds from the sale, together with the net proceeds from a $50,000,000 
common stock subscription rights offering (Rights Offering) completed on December 31, 1993 and working capital 
from operations, were used to: (i) fund the acquisition of Missouri Gas Energy; (ii) repay $59,300,000 of borrowings 
under the revolving credit facility; and (iii) refinance $105,000,000 aggregate principal amount of various notes and 
debentures and the related premiums of $13,700,000 resulting from the early extinguishment of such notes and 
debentures. 

During 1996, $75,485,000 of Senior Notes were repurchased at prices ranging from $922 to $985 per $1,000 note 
resulting in a net pre-tax gain of $1,581,000. Debt issuance costs and premiums on the early extinguishment of debt 
are accounted for in accordance with that required by its various regulatory bodies having jurisdiction over the 
Company's operations. The Company recognizes gains or losses on the early extinguishment of debt to the extent 
it is provided for by its regulatory authorities and in some cases such gains or losses are deferred and amortized over 
the term of the new or replacement debt issues. 

The Senior Notes traded at $1,061 and $1,026 (per $1,000 note) on June 30 and July 31, 1998. respectively, as 
quoted by a major brokerage firm. The carrying amount of long-term debt at June 30, 1998 and 1997 was 
$408,184,000 and $386,844,000, respectively. The fair value of long-term debt at June 30, 1998 and 1997 was 
$431,628,000 and $373,770,000, respectively. 

. . . . . . .  
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Capital Lease The Company began installing an Automated Meter Reading (AMR) system at Missouri Gas Energy 
during fiscal year 1998 which was substantially completed in first quarter of fiscal year 1999. The installation of the 
AMR system involved an investment of $30,550,000 which is accounted for as a capital lease obligation. During 1998, 
the Company recorded an increase in plant and long-term debt of $22,151,000. As of June 30, 1996. the capital lease 
obligation outstanding was $21,652,000. This system will improve meter reading accuracy and provide electronic 
accessibility to meters in residential customers' basements, thereby assisting in the reduction of the number of 
estimated bills. Depreciation on the AMR system is provided at an average straight-line rate of approximately 5% per 
annum of the cost of such property. 

Credit Facilities The Company has availability under a $100,000,000 revolving credit facility (Revolving Credit 
Facility) undelwritten by a syndicate of banks. The Company has additional availability under uncommitted line of 
credit facilities (Uncommitted Facilities) with various banks. Covenants under the Revolving Credit Facility allow for 
up to $35,000,000 of borrowings under Uncommitted Facilities at any one time. Borrowings under these facilities are 
available for Southern Union's working capital, letter of credit requirements and other general corporate purposes. 
The facilities are uncollateralized and have no borrowing base limitations as long as the Senior Notes meet certain 
rating criteria. The Company may use up to $40,00O,WO of the Revolving Credit Facility to finance future acquisitions. 
These facilities contain covenants with respect to financial parameters and ratios, total debt limitations, restrictions 
as to dividend payments, stock reacquisitions, certain investments and additional liens. The facilities expire on 
December 31, 1999. The Revolving Credit Facility is subject to a commitment fee based on the rating of the Senior 
Notes. As of June 30, 1998, the commitment fee was an annualized .15% on the unused balance. The interest rate 
on borrowings on the Revolving Credit Facility is calculated based on a formula using the LIBOR or prime interest 
rates. The average interest rate under the facilities was 6.1% for the years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997. A 
$1,600,000 balance was outstanding under the facilities at both June 30, 1998 and 1997. A balance of $7,400,000 
was outstanding under the facilities at July 31, 1998. 

XI1 Employee Benefits 

Defined Contribution Plan The Company provides a Savings Plan available to all employees. Since January 1, 
1997, the Company contributes $50 of Company stock for each $1.00 contributed by a non-Missouri Gas Energy 
participant up to 5% of the employee's salary. Additionally, the Company contributes $.75 of Company stock for each 
$1.00 contributed by a non-Missouri Gas Energy participant from 6% to 10% of the employee's salary. For Missouri 
Gas Energy non-union employees, the Company contributes $.50 of Company stock for each $1.00 contributed by 
such a participant up to 5% of the employee's salary and the Company contributes $.75 of Company stock for each 
$1.00 contributed by such a participant from 6% to 8% of the employee's salary. For Missouri Gas Energy union 
employees, the Company contributes $.50 of Company stock for each $1 .OO contributed by such a participant up to 
7% of the employee's salary. Company contributions are 100% vested after six years of continuous service. Company 
contributions to the plan during 1998, 1997 and 1996, were $1,656,000, $1,476,000 and $1,425,000, respectively. 

Postemp/oyment Benefits Certain postemployment benefits such as disability and health care continuation coverage 
provided to former or inactive employees after employment but before retirement, are accrued if attributable to an 
employee's previously rendered service. The Company has recorded a regulatory asset to the extent it intends to file 
rate applications to include such costs in rates and such recovery is probable. As of June 30, 1998 and 1997, the 
Company has recorded a regulatory asset and a related liability of $1,343,000 and $1,100,000, respectively. 
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Postretirement Benefits Other than Pensions 

1997 1996 

Service cost of benefits earned during the year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 278 $ 282 $ 313 
Interest cost on benefit obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2,811 2,772 2,982 
Actual return on plan assets (76) (31) (24) 
Amortization of transition obligation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  224 224 224 
Net amortization and deferral . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  M )  (1.115) (195) 
Net postretirement benefit cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 2.132 3 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

a 1997 
Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation: 

Retirees . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $29,804 $28.713 
Other fully eligible participants . . 3,410 2,424 
Other active participants . . . . . . .  4_8504.8!1 

Accumulated benefit obligation . . . . .  38,064 35.948 
Plan assets at fair value . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  _L2128) (863) 
Accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  35,936 35.085 
Unrecognized net transition obligation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (3,244) (3,412) 
Unrecognized prior service cost 1,102 1,207 
Unrecognized net gain . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  ~ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  3 7 . 5 5 2  
Accrued postretirement benefit cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $38.457 $40.432 

Postretirement medical and other benefit liabilities are accrued on an actuarial basis during the years an employee 
provides services. Prior to 1997, Missouri Gas Energy recorded a deferral of postretirement medical expense in 
excess of cash paid per an accounting authority order approved by the MPSC. These deferrals were to be amortized 
to expense and were to be fully offset by the net income stream generated from a company-owned life insurance 
(COLI) plan. Legislation passed in 1996 by Congress eliminated the tax advantages afforded to COLI plans, and the 
Missouri Gas Energy COLI program was terminated in February 1997. Additionally, the State of Missouri passed 
legislation which provides for prospective recognition by the MPSC of postretirement medical and benefit costs on an 
accrual basis when funded. Amortization of deferrals recorded prior to the termination of the COLI are currently 
included in Missouri Gas Energy rates. The Company amortizes the transition obligation over an allowed 20-year 
period. Fluctuations in the stock market could impact future plan asset investment returns and ultimately net pension 
expense. 

The significant features of the plan include the payment of a portion of the medical benefit costs for individuals (and 
their dependents) who are: (i) employees or retirees of Missouri Gas Energy; (ii) non-Missouri Gas Energy retirees 
who retired prior to January 1, 1993; and (iii) non-Missouri Gas Energy employees (and their dependents) who elected 
to retire during the first quarter of 1993. For active non-Missouri Gas Energy employees hired prior to January 1. 1993, 
benefits are provided only to retirees and only until eligibility for Medicare (age 65). The cost-sharing provisions for 
medical care benefits include an escalation in the non-Missouri Gas Energy retirees' share of claims obligations that 
is expected to follow the trend of claims net of Medicare reimbursements. The non-Missouri Gas Energy employees 
plan was amended during 1993 to substantially modify the cost-sharing provisions to decrease the employer's share 
of expected future claims and make certain other plan changes. The plan for Missouri Gas Energy employees and 
retirees provides payment of a portion of the medical benefit costs for individuals and their dependents. The cost 
sharing provisions include an escalation in the Missouri Gas Energy retirees share of claims that is expected to follow 
the trend of claims net of Medicare, subject to an overall limit on employer expenditures. 

The weighted average assumed discount rate used to measure the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation was 
7.75% for the year ended June 30, 1998 and 1997. The weighted average expected long-term rate of return on plan 
assets was assumed to be 8% on an after-tax basis. The annual assumed rate of increase in the health care cost 
trend rate for 1998 was 7.25% per year, gradually decreasing thereafter to 6% in year eight and thereafter. of the 
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projection. The health care cost trend rate assumption has a significant effect on the amounts reported. Increasing 
the assumed health care cost trend rate by one percent for each future year would increase the aggregate of the 
service and interest cost components of the net periodic postretirement health care benefit cost by $34,000 and would 
increase the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation for health care benefits by $368,000. Assets held in the 
separate account within the retirement plan include cash and bond and stock funds. Non-benefit liabilities are limited 
to expenses associated with plan operation and administration. 

Defined Benefit Plan The Company maintains two trusteed non-contributory defined benefit retirement plans which 
cover substantially all employees. Plan A covers those Company employees who are not employed by Missouri Gas 
Energy and Plan 8 covers those employees who are employed by Missouri Gas Energy. The Company funds the 
plans' cost in accordance with federal regulations, not to exceed the amounts deductible for income tax purposes. 
The plans' assets are invested in cash and bond and stock funds. 

Net pension expense for the years ended June 30, 1998, 1997 and 1996 consisted of the following: 

Plan A Plan B 
1998 1997 1996 1998 1997 1996 

Service cost of benefits earned during the year $ 1,431 $ 1,405 $ 1,442 $ 1,550 $ 1,509 $ 1,640 
Interest cost on projected benefit obligations . . 2,970 2,759 2,483 7,596 7,487 7,355 
Actual return on plan assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (5,693) (6,473) (4,204) (17,076) (20,797) (18,669) 
Net amortization and deferral . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2.735 4.121 2.277 5.021 1292=! 11.556 
Netpensionexpense(inc0me). . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 1.443 $ 1,996 $ (2.909) $ 1.882 

Actuarial assumptions: 
Weighted averagediscount rate . . . . . . . . .  7.25% 7.75% 7.75% 7.25% 7.75% 7.75% 
Rate of increase in future compensation 

Weighted average expected long-term 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  levels 5.62% 5.62% 5.62% 5.8% 5.8% 5.8% 

rate of return 8% 8% 7.75% 8% 8% 7.75% . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Plan A Plan B 
1998 1997 1998 1997 

Actuarial present value of benefit obligations: 
Vested benefits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 32,950 $ 29,738 $ 95,124 $ 88,541 

Accumulated benefit obligations 34,138 30,922 96,369 89,627 
Effect of future salary increases 8.056 5.933 7.447 7.113 
Projected benefit obligation 42,194 36,855 103,816 96,740 
Plan assets at fair value . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (41.907) (36.9x) (122.316) (112.574) 

Unrecognized net transition asset 354 427 
Unrecognized prior service cost (1,385) (1.515) (1.020) (1,103) 
Unrecognized net gain 4.280 4.555 17.728 17.324 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Nonvested benefits 1.188 3 1.245 1.086 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Projected benefit obligation less plan assets . . . . . . . . .  287 (76) (18,502) (1 5,834) 

Accrued retirement plan liabilities (assets) 5 3.5% $ 3.39 1 LALIW $ 387 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - -_ 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . .  

The actuarial computations for the determination of accumulated and projected benefit obligations are based on the 
projected unit credit method. Prior service cost is being amortized on a straight-line basis over the average remaining 
expected future service of participants present at the time of amendment. 

The Company also maintains a supplemental non-contributory defined benefit retirement plan which covers certain 
executive employees. The purpose of the supplemental plan is to provide part or all of those defined benefit plan 
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benefits which are not payable to certain employees under the primaly plan. The net pension cost of the supplemental 
plan for each of the three years ended June 30, 1998 was not significant. 

Xlll Taxes on Income 

Year Ended June 30. 
I998 1997 1996 

Current: 
Federal . . 
State . . . .  

. . . .  

. . . .  
. . . .  
. . . .  

$ 1.381 $ 4.437 $ 4.960 
240596606 

1,621 5,033 5,566 
Deferred: 

Federal . . . .  
State . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - 3: - ̂ . 

Total provision $ 7.984 

6.690 8~563 5,984 ..... 
-'656 85Q 

0.363 7.340 9.413 
j 12.373 $14.979 

Deferred credits and other liab es also include $593,000 and $629,000 of unamortized deferred investment tax credit 
as of June 30, 1998 and 1997, respectively. 

Deferred income taxes result from temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the 
tax basis of existing assets and liabilities. 

June 30. 
1998 

Deferred tax assets: 
Postretirement benefits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 1,079 $ 2,053 
Bad debt reserves . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  __ 2,643 
Estimated alternative minimum tax cr . . . . . . . . . . .  10,554 7,890 
Insuranceaccruals . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  3,074 2,599 

. . . .  . . . . . . .  . . . . . .  (357) Unrealized holding gain on securities 
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1.234 1.266 

Total deferred tax assets . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  15.937 16.094 

Property, plant and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (65,564) (57,839) 
Unamortized debt expense . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (5.270) (5,492) 
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (5.330) (3.955) 

. . . . . .  - 

Deferred tax liabilities: 

Total deferred tax liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (76.164) (67.286) 
Net deferred tax liability . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (60,227) (51,192) 
Less current tax assets . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2.378 2.786 
Accumulated deferred income taxes . . . .  . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  S(62.605) 1 6 ( 5 3 . )  
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The Company accounts for income taxes utilizing the liability method which bases the amounts of current and future 
tax assets and liabilities on events recognized in the financial statements and on income tax laws and rates existing 
at the balance sheet date. 

Year Ended June 30. 
1998 1997 1996 

Computed statutory tax expense at 35% . . .  . . . . . . . .  . . . .  $ 7,075 $10,992 $12,536 

State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit . . . . . . . . . . .  402 81 1 947 
Acquisition adjustment related to assets sold . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  __ __ 1,096 
Amortization of acquisition adjustment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  723 724 884 
Research and experimentation credit . . . . . . . . . . . .  -_ 
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (216) -54) (84) 

Changes in taxes resulting from: 

_- (400) 

Actual tax expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 7,984 $12.373 5 14,979 

XIV Utility Regulation and Rates 

On August 21, 1998, MGE was notified by the MPSC of its decision to grant a $13,300,000 annual increase to revenue 
effective on September 2, 1998. 

On April 13, 1998 Southern Union Gas filed for a $2,228,000 request for a rate increase from the city of El Paso, a 
request the city subsequently denied. On April 21, 1998, the city council of El Paso voted to reduce the Company's 
rates by $1,570,000 annually and to order a one-time cost of gas refund of $475,000. The Company has appealed 
both of the council's actions to the Railroad Commission of Texas and expects a decision by the end of calendar year 
1998. 

On January 22, 1997, Missouri Gas Energy was notified by the MPSC of its decision to grant an $8,847,000 annual 
increase to revenue effective on February 1, 1997. See Commitments and Contingencies. 

The MPSC approved a three-year, experimental gas supply incentive plan for Missouri Gas Energy effective July 1, 
1996. Under the plan, the Company and Missouri Gas Energy's customers share in certain savings below benchmark 
levels of gas costs achieved as a result of the Company's gas procurement activities. Likewise, if natural gas is 
acquired above benchmark levels, both the Company and customers share in such costs. For the year ended 
June 30, 1998 and 1997, the incentive plan achieved a reduction of overall gas costs of $9,200,000 and $10,200,000, 
respectively, resulting in savings to Missouri customers of $5,100,000 and $5,600,000, respectively. The Company 
recorded revenues of 54,100,000 and $4,600,000 in 1998 and 1997, respectively, under this plan. There can be no 
assurance that this or any similar plan will be approved by the MPSC for MGE after this plan expires on July 1. 1999. 

Under the order of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, a major supplier of gas to Missouri Gas Energy is 
allowed recovery of certain previously unrecovered deferred gas costs with a remaining balance of $9,200,000 at 
June 30, 1998. Missouri Gas Energy is allowed to recover these costs from its Missouri customers through a purchase 
gas adjustment mechanism which is filed with and approved by the MPSC. The receivable and liability associated with 
these costs have been recorded as a deferred charge and a deferred credit, respectively, on the consolidated balance 
sheet as of June 30, 1998 and 1997. 

As a result of the January 31, 1994 acquisition of Missouri Gas Energy, the MPSC required Missouri Gas Energy to 
reduce rate base by $30,000,000 to compensate Missouri rate payers for rate base reductions that were eliminated 
as a result of the acquisition. This is amortized over a ten-year period on a straight-line basis since the date of 
acquisition. 

F-19 



L e 
SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

XV Leases 

The Company leases certain facilities, equipment and office space under cancelable and noncancelable operating 
leases. The minimum annual rentals under operating leases for the next five years ending June 30 are as follows: 
1999 - $5,603,000; 2000 - $3,961,000; 2001 - $3,262,000; 2002 -- $2,837,000; 2003 -- $1,732,000; and thereafter 
$9,567,000. Rental expense was $6,054,000, $6,797,000 and $8,098,000 for the years ended June 30, 1998. 1997 
and 1996, respectively. 

XVI Year2000 

Similar to all business entities, the Company will be impacted by the inability of computer application software 
programs to distinguish between the year 1900 and 2000 due to a commonly-used programming convention. Unless 
such programs are modified or replaced prior to 2000, calculations and interpretations based on date-based arithmetic 
or logical operations performed by such programs may be incorrect. 

Management's plan addressing the impact of the Year 2000 issue on the Company focuses on the following areas: 
application systems, process control systems (embedded chips), technology infrastructure, physical infrastructure, 
and third party business partners and suppliers with which the Company has significant relationships. Management's 
analysis and review of these areas is comprised primarily of five phases: developing an inventory of hardware, 
software and embedded chips; assessing the degree to which each area is currently in compliance with Year 2000 
requirements; performing renovations and repairs as needed to attain compliance; testing to ensure compliance; and 
developing a contingency plan if repair and renovation efforts are either unsuccessful or untimely. 

Management has substantially completed the inventofy and assessment phases regarding application systems, 
process control systems and technology infrastructure. and is performing renovations, repairs and testing of the former 
two categories. The review of physical infrastructure and business partners, gas transporters and suppliers is in the 
inventory stage. While the Company anticipates that any additional inventory and assessment efforts will be completed 
by the end of calendar year 1998. renovation, repair and testing of affected areas will continue through calendar year 
1999. Costs incurred to date have primarily consisted of labor from the redeployment of existing information 
technology, legal and operational resources. The Company expects to spend approximately $3 million for these Year 
2000 compliance efforts. To the extent that such costs are incurred in Year 2000 compliance efforts, the Company 
will attempt recovery for such costs through regulatory relief. 

In addition to the activities described above, the Company is currently replacing some of its financial and operating 
software programs with new programs that will be Year 2000 compliant. These new programs have significantly 
reduced the costs the Company expects to incur to become Year 2000 compliant. However, the Company has formed 
a contingency team to develop a work plan in the event that such programs are not fully operational by the end of 
calendar year 1999. The costs associated with this effort are being evaluated and cannot yet be determined. Although 
the Company does not presently anticipate a material business interruption as a result of the Year 2000, the worst 
case scenario if all of the Company's Year 2000 efforts failed, including the failure of third party providers to deliver 
services, could result in daily lost revenues of approximately $3.200.000. This estimate is based on historical 
revenues recognized in the month of January. 

XVll Commitments and Contingencies 

On December 30,1997, Southern Union settled the claims associated with the removal of hazardous substances from 
the site of a former coal gasification plant (Pine Street Canal Site) in Burlington. Vermont. The cost of the settlement 
did not have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

Southern Union and Western Resources, Inc. entered into an Environmental Liability Agreement (Environmental 
Liability Agreement) at the time of the closing of the acquisition of Missouri Gas Energy. Subject to the accuracy of 
certain representations made by Westem Resources in the Missouri Asset Purchase Agreement, the Environmental 
Liability Agreement provides for a tiered approach to the allocation of certain liab es under environmental laws that 
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may exist or arise with respect to Missouri Gas Energy. The Environmental Liability Agreement contemplates 
Southern Union first seeking reimbursement From other potentially responsible parties, or recovery of such costs under 
insurance or through rates charged to customers. To the extent certain environmental liabilities were discovered by 
Southern Union prior to January 31. 1996, and are not so reimbursed or recovered, Southern Union will be responsible 
for the first $3,000,000, if any, of out-of-pocket Costs and expenses incurred to respond to and remediate any such 
environmental claim. Thereafter, Western Resources would share one-half of the next $15,000,000 of any such 
costs and expenses, and Southern Union would be solely liable for any such costs and expenses in excess of 
$18,000,000. Missouri Gas Energy owns or is otherwise associated with a number of sites where manufactured gas 
plants were previously operated. These plants were commonly used to supply gas service in the late 19th and early 
20th centuries, in certain cases by corporate predecessors to Western Resources. By-products and residues from 
manufactured gas could be located at these sites and at some time in the future may require remediation by the United 
States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) or delegated state regulatory authority. By virtue of notice under the 
Missouri Asset Purchase Agreement and its preliminary. non-invasive review, the Company became aware prior to 
closing of eleven such sites in the service territory of Missouri Gas Energy. Based on information reviewed thus far, 
it appears that not all of these sites may have been owned or operated by Western Resources or its predecessors in 
interest. Subsequent to the closing of the acquisition of Missouri Gas Energy, as a result of an environmental audit, 
the Company has discovered the existence of possibly eight additional sites in the service territory of Missouri Gas 
Energy. Southem Union has so informed Westem Resources. The Company does not know if any of these additional 
sites were ever owned or operated by Western Resources or any of its predecessors in interest. Western Resources 
has informed the Company that it was notified in 1991 by the €PA that it was evaluating one of the sites (in St. Joseph, 
Missouri) for any potential threat to human health and the environment. Western Resources has also advised the 
Company, as of September 15, 1994, the EPA had not notied it that any further action may be required. Evaluation 
of the remainder of the sites by appropriate federal and state regulatory authorities may occur in the future. At the 
present time and based upon information available to management, the Company believes that the costs of any 
remediation efforts that may be required for these sites for which it may ultihately have responsibility will not exceed 
the aggregate amount subject to substantial sharing by Western Resources. 

In addition to the various Missouri Gas Energy sites described above, the Company is investigating the possibility that 
the Company or predecessor companies may have been associated with Manufactured Gas Plant (MGP) sites in other 
of its former service territories, principally in Arizona and New Mexico, and present service territories in Texas. At the 
present time, the Company is aware of certain plant sites in some of these areas and is investigating those and certain 
other locations. 

The municipal owner of a property adjacent to one of the Company's service locations has raised concerns over the 
continued operation of that property as a park due to its former use as a portion of an MGP site. The Texas Water 
Commission (TWC), in cooperation with the EPA. conducted a site inspection and preliminary assessment of this MGP 
site. Correspondence received from the TWC in 1989 concluded that the site "did not appear at the time of our 
inspection to pose an apparent threat to the public or the environment." Pending the performance of a risk 
assessment report, in April 1996 the city closed the park and subsequently permanently relocated the park recreational 
activities, Based upon the health risk evaluation conclusions contained in a risk assessment report completed in 
November, 1997, the city proceeded with plans to utilize the property for basketball courts and city parking. The 
project was completed and the renovated park was o W l l y  dedicated in a ceremony held on June 19, 1998. Based 
upon currently available information, Southern Union does not believe the outcome of this matter will have a material 
adverse effect on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

While the Company's evaluation of these Texas, Arizona and New Mexico MGP sites is in its preliminary stages, it 
is likely that some compliance costs may be identified and become subject to reasonable quantification. To the extent 
that such potential costs are quantified, the Company expects to provide any appropriate accruals and seek recovery 
for such remediation costs through all appropriate means, including insurance and regulatory relief. Although 
significant charges to earnings could be required prior to rate recovery, management does not believe that environ- 
mental expenditures for such MGP sites will have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial position, results 
of operations or cash flows. 
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Pursuant to a 1989 MPSC order, Missouri Gas Energy is engaged in a major gas safety program in its service area. 
This program includes replacement of company- and customer-owned gas service and yard lines, the movement and 
resetting of meters, the replacement of cast iron mains and the replacement and cathodic protection of bare steel 
mains (Missouri Safety Program). In connection with this program, the MPSC issued an accounting authority order 
(AAO) in Case No, GO-92-234 in 1994 which authorized Missouri Gas Energy to defer depreciation expenses, property 
taxes and carrying costs at a rate of 10.54% on the costs incurred in the Missouri Safety Program. This AAO was 
consistent with those which were issued by the MPSC from 1990 through 1993 to the predecessor owner of Missouri 
Gas Energy. The MPSC rate order of January 22, 1997, however, retroactively reduced the carrying cost rate applied 
by the Company on the expenditures incurred on the Missouri Safety Program since early 1994 to an Allowance for 
Funds Used During Construction (AFUDC) rate of approximately 6%. The Company filed an appeal of that portion 
of the rate order in the Missouri State Court of Appeals, Western District. On August 18, 1998, the Missouri State 
Court of Appeals denied the Company's appeal resulting in a one-time non-cash write-off of $5,942,000 of previously 
recorded deferred costs which was recorded as of June 30, 1998. The Company believes that the inconsistent 
treatment by the MPSC in subsequently changing to the AFUDC rate from the previously ordered rate of 10.54% 
constitutes retroactive ratemaking. Unfortunately, the decision by the Missouri State Court of Appeals failed to address 
certain specific language within the 1994 AAO that the Company believed prevented the MPSC from retroactively 
changing the carrying cost rate. Southern Union will seek a transfer of the case to the Missouri Supreme Court; 
however, the likelihood of transfer is uncertain. 

The continuation of the Missouri Safety Program will result in significant levels of future capital expenditures. The 
Company estimates incurring capital expenditures of $19,000,000 in fiscal 1999 related to this program. 

On August 18. 1998, a jury in Edinburg, Texas concluded deliberations on the City of Edinburg's franchise fee lawsuit 
against Valero Energy Corporation (Valero) and a number of its subsidiaries, as well as former Valero subsidiary Rio 
Grande Valley Gas Company (RGV) and RGVs successor company, Southern Union Company. The case, based 
upon events that occurred between 1985-1987. centers on specific contractual language in the 1985 franchise 
agreement between RGV and the City of Edinburg. Southern Union purchased RGV from Valero in October 1993. 
The jury awarded the plaintiff damages, under several largely overlapping but mutually exclusive claims, totaling 
approximately $13,000,000. The actual amount and appropriate allocation of the surviving portions of the damage 
awards will not be determined until further proceedings are completed, including the trial judge's decision on post-trial 
motions. The Company is pursuing having the jury's verdict overturned or reduced by the trial judge, and if necessary 
will vigorously pursue a reversal on appeal. The Company believes it will ultimately prevail and thus has not provided 
for any loss relative to this matter in its financial statements. Furthermore, the Company has not determined what 
impact, if any, this jury decision may have on other city franchises in Texas. 

Southern Union and its subsidiaries are parties to other legal proceedings that management considers to be normal 
actions to which an enterprise of its size and nature might be subject, and not to be material to the Company's overall 
business or financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. 

As a result of the acquisition of Missouri Gas Energy; the Company assumed certain obligations related to a 1990 
settlement of a Wyoming Tight Sands anti-trust claim. To secure the refund of the settlement proceeds, the MPSC 
authorized the establishment of an independently administered trust to collect cash receipts under the Tight Sands 
settlement and repay credit-facility borrowings used for the lump sum payment. In the event the trust does not receive 
cash payments from the gas suppliers as provided by the Tight Sands settlement agreements, the Company is com- 
mitted to pay its applicable portion of the amount owed the lender of the credit facility borrowings. Due to excess cash 
payments received from gas suppliers, the Company's allocable portion of the credit facility obligations have been 
fulfilled two years ahead of the original payment schedule. In accordance with the Wyoming Tight Sands agreement, 
the Company's portion of the ongoing cash payments received from the gas suppliers will be refunded to Missouri Gas 
Energy customers as specifically defined in the Company's Purchased Gas Adjustment tariff provisions. 

The Company is committed under various agreements to purchase certain quantities of gas in the future. At June 30, 
1998, the Company has purchase commitments for certain quantities of gas at variable, market-based prices. These 
market-based price commitments have an annual value of $45,900,000 for Southern Union Gas and $65,900,000 
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for Missouri Gas Energy. South Florida Natural Gas has no market-based price commitments at June 30, 1998. The 
Company's purchase commitments may extend over a period of several years depending upon when the required 
quantity is purchased. The Company has purchase gas tariffs in effect for all its utility service areas that provide for 
recovery of its purchase gas costs under defined methodologies. 

On May 1. 1996, the Company agreed to three-year contracts with the bargaining-unit Missouri employees, Of the 
Company's employees represented by unions, 95% are employed by Missouri Gas Energy. 

The Company had standby letters of credit outstanding of $2,947,000 at both June 30, 1998 and 1997, which 
guarantee payment of various insurance premiums and state taxes. 

The Company follows the provisions of an American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Statement of Position, 
Environmental Remediation Liabilities, for recognition, measurement, display and disclosure of environmental 
remediation liabilities. 

XVlll Quarterly Operations (Unaudited) 

Year Ended 
June 30.1998 

Quarter Ended 
Qeoternber 30 D ecember 31 March 31 June 30 Total 

Total operating revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 74,039 $ 221,162 $265,176 $108,927 $ 669,304 

Net operating revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,405 26,530 36,940 3,792 68,667 
Net earnings (loss) available for common stock(') (4,909) 9,738 16,249 (8,849) 12,229 

Operating margin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  41,597 77,328 94,676 50,123 263,724 

Earnings (loss) per share - diluted(21 . . . . . . . . .  ( . W  .35 .56 (.31) .43 

Year Ended 
June 30.1997 

Quarter Ended 
QeDtember 30 Decembe r31  Mar ch 31 June 30 Total 

Total operating revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 80,830 $ 231,462 $ 316,915 $ 87,824 $ 717,031 

Net operating revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  439 25,565 36,999 8,467 71,470 
Net earnings (loss) available for common stock . (5,405) 9,661 17,678 (2,902) 19,032 

Operating margin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  41,415 76,517 100,921 48,990 267,843 

Earnings (loss) per share -- diluted"' . . . . . . . . .  (.20) .35 .63 ( . I?)  .68 

(1) During the quarter ended June 30,1998. Missouri Gas Energy wrote off $8,163,000 pre-tax in previously recorded regulatoly assets as 

(2) The sum of earnings per share by quarter may not equal the net earnings per common and mmmon share equivalents for the year due 

a result of announced rate orders and court rulings. 

to variations in the weighted average wmrnon and common share equivalents outstanding used in computing such amounts. 

F-23 



SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Msrph' lq qaaa 
FORM 1 0 4  

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 
WASHINGTON, D. C. 20549 

FORM IO-Q 

For the auattzctv Deriod ended 

March 31,1999 

Commission File No. 1-6407 

SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY 

Delaware 
(State or other jurisdiction of 
incorporation or organization) i 

504 Lavaca Street, Eighth Floor 
Austin, Texas 

(Address of ptinapal executive OWS) 

754571592 
(I.R.S. Employer 
Identification No.) 

7aioi 
(Zip Code) 

Registrant's telephone number, Including area code: (512) 477-5852 

Securities ReQistered Pursuant to Section 12@) of the Act: 

Iuumshb 
Common Stock, par value $1 per share 

bluac of each sanae In qhkh r e a l r w  
New York Stock Exchange 

Indicate by check markwhether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was 
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes L 
No - 
The number of shares of the registrenfs Common Stock outstanding on April 30,1999 was 29,692,749. 



SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 

March 31,1999 
Index 

FORM 10-0, 

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Item I. Financial Statements 

Consolidated statements of operations -three, nine and twelve months ended 
March 31,1999 and I998 

Consolidated balance sheet - March 31,1999 and 1998 and June 30,1998 

Consolidated statement of stockholders' equity- nine months ended March 31,1999 

Consolidated statements of cash flows - three, nine and twelve months ended 

Notes to consolidated financial statements 

and twelve months ended June 30, I998 

March 31, I999 and 1998 

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condlon and Results 
of Operations i 

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION 

Item 1. Legal Proceedings 

(See 'CONTINGENCIES" under Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements) 

Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K 

(a) Exhibit 27 - Financial Data Schedule 

@) Reports on Form 8-K - None 

2-4 

5-6 

7 

8-1 0 

11-15 

1622 

14-1 5 

E-I 

- 

I 



h n 

SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS 

Ibret Months Fnded March 31 . 
I898 1998 

(thousands of dollars. except 

Operating revenues ................................................. 
Gas purchase costs ................................................. 

Operating margin ............................................... 
Revenue-related taxes .............................................. 

Net operating margin ............................................ 
Operating expenses: 

Operating. maintenance and general ............................... 
Depreciation and amortization ..................................... 
Taxes. other than on income and revenues .......................... 

Totaloperating expenses ..................................... 
Net operating revenues ....................................... 

Other income (expenses): 
Interest ....................................................... 
Dividends on preferred securibies of subsidiary trust .................... 

Total other expenses. net ..................................... 

Earnings before income taxes .................................. 

Other. net P ..................................................... 

Federal and state Income taxes ....................................... 
Net earnings available for common stock ............................... 
Net earnings per share: 

Basic ......................................................... 
Diluted ........................................................ 

Weighted average shares outstanding: 
Basic ......................................................... 
Diluted ........................................................ 

shares and per share amounts) 

$ 251.863 $ 265.176 
153:757 170:500 
98. 106 94. 676 

14.48715.240 
83. 619 79. 436 

28. 655 29. 143 
I O .  535 9. 775 

3.7823.578 
42.972 2.496 
40.647- 

11.43910.608 

17.62416.249 

29.686.04129.595.855 
91.07 1.277 30.657.152 

See accompanying notes . 

2 



h n 

SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS 

& Months Ended March 31, 
lSS9 1998 

(thousands of dollars, except 
shares and per share amounts) 

Operating revenues ............................................. 
Gaspurchasecos ts ............................................. 

Operating margin ........................................... 
Revenue-reiatedtaxes .......................................... 

Net operating margin ........................................ 

Operating, maintenance and general ........................... 
Depreciation and amortization ................................. 
Taxes, other than on income and revenues ...................... 

Totaloperating expenses ................................. 
Netoperatingrevenues .................................. 

Operating expenses: 

Other income (expenses): 
interest ................................................... 
Dbidends on preferred securities of subsidiary trust ............... 
0ther.net ................................................. 

Total other expenses, net ................................. 
Earnings before income taxes ............................. 

i 

$ 503,543 $ 560,377 
297370 346.775 
211,173 21 3,602 

27.169 29.873 
184,004 183,729 

81,776 79,602 
31,449 28,923 

10.77410.331 
123.999118.856 
6o.oo564.873 

3113.61 0 
(33.642)- 

26,363 34,638 

Federal and state income taxes ................................... 10.41 3 13.761 

Net earnings available for common stock ........................... 15.950 21.077 
Net earnings per share: 

Basic ..................................................... d .54 $ .73 
Diluted .................................................... uu 

Weighted average shares outstanding: 
Basic ..................................................... .29.647.6m 2 8.743.424 
Diluted .................................................... -31.020.30Q 29.84 4 .444 

See accompanying notes. 
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SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS 

m l v e  Months Ended March 31. 
1899 1998 

(thousands of dollars. except 
shares and Der share amounts) 

Operatingrevenues ................................................. 
Gaspurchaseco sts ................................................. 

Operating margin ............................................... 
Revenue-relatedtaxes .............................................. 

Net operating margin ............................................ 
Operating expenses: 

Operating. maintenance and general ............................... 
Taxes. other than on income and revenues .......................... 

Total operating expenses ..................................... 
Netoperating revenues ...................................... 

Depredation and amortization ..................................... 

Other income (expenses): 
Interest ....................................................... 
Dividends on preferred securities of subsidiarytrust ................... 
Write-off of regulatory assets .... C ................................. 
Other. net ..................................................... 

Total other expenses. net ..................................... 
Earnings before income taxes ................................. 

Federal and state income taxes ....................................... 
Net earnings available for common stock ............................... 
Net earnings per share: 

Basic ......................................................... 
Diluted ........................................................ 

Weighted average shares outstanding: 
Basic ......................................................... 
Diluted ........................................................ 

$ 612. 469 
351.174 

261. 295 
32.183 

229.112 

109. 701 
40. 963 

14.649 
165.313 
63.799 

(35. 182) 
(9. 480) 
(8.163) 

763 
AzlQ!zl 
I I . 737 

4.636 

LLlu 

.24 

.23 

$ 2 0 0  648. 
385.609 

262. 591 
35.649 

226. 942 

101.910 
37. 986 

13.706 
153.602 
73.340 

(34.613) 
(9.480) 

741 
-AGLx!a 

29. 988 

11.814 

3L.Aua 

u u 
28.635.171 
29.734.581 

- 

See accompanying notes . 
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 

ASSETS 

March 31. June 30. 
1994 1Bgs 1998 

(thousands of dollars) 
(unaudited) 

Properly, plant and equipment: 
Plant in service ...................................... 
Construction work in progress ......................... 
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization ......... 
Additional purchase cost assigned to utiliEy plant, net ...... 
Net properly, plant and equipment ..................... 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents ........................... 
Accounts receivable, billed and unbilled ................. 
Inventories, prindpally at average cost .................. 
Prepayments and other .............................. 

Total current assets ............................. 
Deferred charges ...................................... 
Investment securities .................................... 
Realestate ............................................ 
Other ................................................ 

Total ......................................... 

$1,093,881 $1,033,862 $1,057,675 
13.1998.064 7.783 
I .I 07.080 1.041.926 1.065.458 . .  . .  

k3Eiz3 1351. 084) 1355.430) 
730.451 690.842 71 0.028 
135:317 136:965 138:381 

865.768 827.8 OZ 848.40% 

- 765 __ - 
101,553 11 8.828 53,760 
25.716 17,643 26,160 
23 4.747 

129.448138.349 84.867 
90,218 103,698 94,550 

10,000 5,000 5.000 

9,438 9,762 9,741 

7.9535.321 5.397 

f 1 .I 12.825 $ I .089.937 &I ,047.764 

See accompanying notes. 
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SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (Continued) 

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

March 31. June 50. 
1999 1998 1998 

(thousands of dollars) 
(unaudited) 

Common stockholders' equity: 
Common stock, $1 par value; authorized 

50,000,000 shares; issued 29.741.197 shares ........ 
Premium on capital stock ............................ 
Less treasury stock, at cost ........................... 

Total common stockholders* equity. .................... 
Retainedeamings .................................. 

Company-obliiated mandatorily redeemable preferred 
securities of cubddiary trust holding solely subordinated 
notes of Southern Union ............................. 

Long-term debt and capital lease oblii$on ................. 
Total capitalization .................................. 

Current liabiliies: 
Long-term debt and capital lease obligation due within 

oneyear ....................................... 
Notes payable ..................................... 
Accounts payable ................................... 
Federal, state and local taxes ......................... 
Accrued interest .................................... 
Customer deposfts .................................. 
Deferred gas purchase costs ......................... 
Other ............................................. 

Total current liabilities ............................ 
Deferred credits and other ............................... 
Accumulated deferred income taxes ....................... 
Commitments and contingendes .......................... 

Total ............................................. 

$ 29.741 $ 18,848 
260.167 261,995 

(794) 
5.588 

(794) 
23.790 

312,904 305,637 

100,000 100,000 

411.460 398.217 
824,364 803,854 

2,033 1,367 
18,603 17,000 
49,917 61,515 
28,448 29.890 

5,256 5,190 
18,352 17,914 
14.968 2,191 

16.642- 

154219156.781 
71,763 71,989 
62,479 57,313 

$ 28,252 
252,638 

(794) 
6.738 

296,634 

100,000 

406.407 
803.241 

1,777 
1,600 

26,570 
14,017 
12,699 
17,686 
12,257 

21.095 

m 
74,217 
62,605 

See accompanying notes. 
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SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY 

Common Premlum 
S h h  on Treasury Unrealized 
$1 Par Capltal Stock. Retained Holding 
Value Stock atCost Gainllossl Total 

(thousands of dollars) 

Balance July 1,1997 .............. 
Net earnings ................. 
5% stock didend ............. 
Three-for-two stock split ....... 
Issuance of stock for acquisition . 
Unrealized holding gain or loss . . 

Exercise of stock options ....... 

Balance June 30,1998 ............ 
? 

$17,171 

- 
856 

9,400 

756 

- 
69 

28.252 

$225,252 

- 

19,802 

(9,400) 

17.285 

- 

3 
252.638 

Net earnings - - - 
5% stock diidend ............. 1,411 7,483 

Exerdseofstockopiions ....... 78 46 - 

................. 
- 

Balance March 31. I999 ........... aUu$260.167- 

$ 267,462 

12,229 

- 
(2) 

18.041 

(664) 

A 
296,834 

15,950 

(4) 

124 

5312.904 

See accompanying notes. 
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SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

Jhree Months Ended March 31. 
1999 1948 

(thousands of dollars) 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Net earnings ..................................................... 

Depreciation and amortization ................................ 
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash flows from operating 

activities: 

Deferred income taxes ...................................... 
Provision for bad debts ...................................... 
Deferral and amortization of interest and other expenses .......... 
Other .................................................... 
Changes in assets and liabilities. net of acquisitions and dispositions: 

Accounts receivable. billed and unbiiled ..................... 
Accounts payable ....................................... 
Taxes and other liabilities ................................. 
Customerdeposits ...................................... 
Deferred gas purchase costs ............................. 
Inventories ............................................ 
Other ................................................. 

Net cash flow from operadng activities .......................... 
Additions to property. plant and equipment ............................ 
AcquMIon of operations. net of cash received .......................... 
Purchase of Investment securities .................................... 
Increase (decrease) In customer advances ............................ 
Increase (decrease) in deferred charges and credits ..................... 
Other ........................................................... 

Net cash flows used In investing activities .......................... 
Repayment of debt and capital lease obligation ......................... 
Net payments under revoMng credit facility ............................ 
Decrease In cash overdrafls ........................................ 
Other ........................................................... 

Net cash flows used in financing activities .......................... 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period .......................... 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period ............................... 

Cash flows used In investing activities: 

Cash flows used In financing activities: 

Changelncashandcashequivalents .................................... 

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow Information: 
Cash pald during the period for. 

Interest ...................................................... 
lncometaxes ................................................. 

$ 17. 624 

I O .  535 
I. 133 
I. 192 

153 
358 

(980) 
1. 429 
6.714 
(31 1) 

I O .  554 
I O .  718 
725 
59.844 

(1 5. 433) 

(5. 000) 
(98) 

(I. 024) 
a33) 
--GLZw 

(477) 
(31. 400) 
(6. 250) 
71 m 

$ 

- 

- - 

$ 16. 249 

9. 775 
I. 332 
2. 259 
(574) 
259 

13. 411 
(1 0. 766) 

1.812 
394 

31. 155 
20.2 01 

3.090 
88.597 

(12. 653) 
7. 247 

567 
555 

2 
0 

(341) 
(76. 800) 
(6. 122) 
8 
(83.255) 

265 

u 

- 

- 

$ 15.6% $ 15.744 
- 3 2 5  

See accompanying notes . 
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n A. 

SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

Nlne Months Ended March 31 . 
1999 1998 
(thousands of dollars) 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Netearnings ..................................................... 
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash flows from operating 

activities: 
Depreciation and amortization ................................ 
Deferred income taxes ...................................... 
Provision for bad debts ...................................... 
Deferral and amorbiation of interest and other expenses .......... 
Gain on sale of investment securities ........................... 
Other .................................................... 
Changes in assets and liabilities. net of acquisib’ons and dispositions: 

Accounts receivable. billed and unbilled ..................... 
Taxes and other liabilities ................................. 
Customer deposits ...................................... 
Deferred gas purchase costs ............................. 
Inventories ............................................ 

Net cash flow from operating activities .......................... 
Additions to propew. plant and equipment ............................ 
Acquisition of operations. net of cash received .......................... 
Purchase of investment securities .................................... 
Proceeds from sale of investment securities ............................ 
Net change in customer advances ................................... 
Net change in deferred charges and credits ............................ 
Other ........................................................... 

Net cash flows used in investing activities .......................... 
Repayment of debt and capital lease obligation .................... : ..... 
Net borrowings under revoMng credit fad l i i  ........................... 
Decrease in cash overdrafts ........................................ 
Other ........................................................... 

Net cash flows from financlng activities ............................ 
Changeincashandcashequivalents .................................... 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period .......................... 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period ............................... 

Accountspayable ....................................... 

Other ................................................. 
Cash flows used in investing activities: 

Cash flows from finandng activities: 

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow Information: 
Cash paM (refunded) during the period for: 

Interest ...................................................... 
lncometaxes ................................................. 

$ 15. 950 $ 21. 077 

31. 449 28.923 
1. 071 
4. 311 

(1 27) 
2. 371 

517 (1. 246) 
- (1.088) 

1.069 759 

(50. 165) 
23. 368 
6. 989 

665 
2.710 

445 
1.393 

36.634 
(SO. 398) 

(5. 000) 

1.610 
71 

1.518 m 

- 
- 

(63. 787) 
27. 739 

8.51 1 
429 

(1. 374) 
4. 157 
2 
32.659 

(51. 828) 
6. 502 

(5.000) 
6. 531 
2. 823 

(3.195) 
5 

(45.463 

33.43433.317 
(933) $ 2975 

See accompanying notes . 
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SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

Twelve Months En ded Mar ch 31 . 
ISSS ISSB 
(thousands of dollars) 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Net earnings ................................................... 
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash flows from operating 

Depreciation and amortization .............................. 
Deferred income taxes .................................... 
Provision for bad debts .................................... 
Deferral and amortization of interest and other expenses ........ 
Write-off of raguiatoly assets ............................... 
Gain on sale of investment securities ......................... 
Other .................................................. 
Changes in assets and liabilities. net of acquisitions and dispos8ons: 

Accounts receivable. billed and unbilled ................... 
Accountspayable ..................................... 
Taxes and other liabiliies ............................... 
Customer deposits .................................... 
Deferred gas purchase costs ........................... 
Inventories ........ ................................. 
Other ............................................... 

Net cash flow from operating activities ........................ 
Additions to property. plant and equipment .......................... 
Acquidtion of operations. net of cash received ........................ 
Purchase of investment securities .................................. 
Proceeds from sale of Investment securities 
Increase in customer advances .................................... 
Deferred charges and credits ..................................... 
Other ......................................................... 

Repayment of debt and capital lease obliiation ....................... 
Net borrowings (payments) under revoMng credii fad l i i  ............... 
Increase In cash overdraft ........................................ 
Other ......................................................... 

Net cash flows used in financing activities ........................ 
Changeincashandcashequivalents .................................. 

activities: 

Cash flows used in investing activities: 

......................... 

Proceeds from sale of distribution and transmission properties .......... 
Net cash flows used in investing activities ........................ 

Cash flows used in financing activities: 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period ........................ 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period ............................. 
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information: 

Cash paid during the period for: 
Interest .................................................... 
Income taxes ............................................... 

$ 7. 101 $ 18.174 

40.963 37. 986 
5.165 2. 359 
3.521 5. 631 

92 (694) 
8.163 - 

(1. 088) 
1. 760 1. 139 

13. 754 (6. 409) 
(1 1. 437) 7. 683 
(1. 376) 2. 332 

437 104 
12. 777 8.802 
(8.073) (3.286) 

0 2 . 5 2 6  
72.23275.259 

- 

(75. 588) (73.738) - 5. 803 
(5.000) (5. OW) - 9. 547 
2.349 3. 537 
1.480 (10. 050) - 1. 130 
4.389 s m m  

(2.004) (1. 009) 
1. 603 (3.800) 

-117 
33 

(265) (634) 
285899 
L U  

603 - 

See accompanying notes . 
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SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The interim finanaal statements are unaudited but, in the opinion of management, reflect all adjustments (including both 
normal recurring as well as any non-recurring) necessary for a fair presentation of the results of operations for such 
periods. Because ofthe seasonal nature of the Company's operations, the results of operations for any interim period 
are not necessarily indicative of results for the full year. 

These finanaal statements should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes thereto contained in 
Southern Union Company's (Southern Union and, together with its wholly-owned subsidiaries, the Company) Annual 
Report on Form 10-K forthe fiscal year ended June 30,1998. Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to 
conform with the current period presentation. 

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENT NOT YET ADOPTED 

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting forDerivafive lnsfrumenfs andHedging 
Acbirities, which k required to be adopted h years beginning after June 15,1999, The Statement permits early adoption 
as of the beginning of any fiscal quarter after Its Issuance. The Statement will require the Company to recognize all 
derivatives on the balance sheet at fair value. Derivatives that are not hedges must be adjusted to fair value through 
income. lfthe derivative is a hedge, depending on the nature of the hedge, changes in the fair value of derivatives will 
either be offset against the change in fair ~ l u e  of the hedged assets, liabilities, or firm commitments through earnings 
or recognbed in other comprehenshre i m m e  until the hedged Item is recognized in earnings. The ineffective portion 
of a derivafive's change in fairvalue will be immediately recognized in earnings. The Company has not yet determined 
what the effect of this statement will have on the earnings and finanaal position of the Company. 

ACQUISITION ACTMTlES 

Southwest Gas CorporaUon On February I. 1999. Southern Union submitted a proposal to the Board of Directon 
of Southwest Gas Corporafion (Southwest Gas) to acquire all of Southwest Gas' outstanding common stock for $32.00 
per share. Southwest Gas then had a pending merger agreement with ONEOK, Inc. CONEOK') at $28.50 per share. 
On Fekuary 22,1999, Southern Union and Southwest Gas both publicly announced Southem Union's proposal. after 
the Southwest Gas Board of Directors detexinhed that Southern Union's proposal was a Superior Proposal (as defined 
in the Southwest Gas merger agreementwith ONEOK). On Apdl25,1999, Southwest Gas' Board of Directors rejected 
Southern Unlon's $32.00 per share offer and accepted an amended offer of $30.00 per share from ONEOK. On 
Aprfl27,1999, Southern Unlon increased its offer to $33.50 per share and agreed to pay interest which, together with 
dvldends, would provide Southwest Gas shareholdem with a 6% annual rate of return on Its $33.50 offer, comrnendng 
February 15,2000, until closing. Southem Union's revised proposal has also been rejected by the Southwest Gas 
Board of Directors. Presently, Southern Union, Southwest Gas and ONEOK are parties to litigation to determine the 
scope of Southem Union's permitted adhities with respectto its effort to acquire Southwest Gas securities. In one such 
proceeding brought by ONEOK, the Company is the subject of a preliminary Injunction with respect to Its compliance 
with the standstill provisions of Its February 21, I999 confidentiality letter agreement with Southwest Gas. Southem 
Union Intends to appeal that decislon and to continue to evaluate its legal alternatives with respect to the acquisition of 
Southwest Gas securities and related proceedings. 

AUanUc UMitieS Effective December 31,1997. the Company acquired Atlantic Utjliies Corporation and Subsidiaries 
(Atlantic) for 755,650 pre-splii and pre-stock dividend shares of common stock valued at $18,041,000 and cash of 
$4,436,000. Atlantic k operated as South Florida Natural Gas, a natural gas division of Southern Union. and Atlantic 
Gas Corporation, a propane subbidiary of the Company. Atlantic's results of operations have been Included In the 
Company's statements of consolidated operations and cash flows since January 1.1998. On the date of acquisition, 
Atlank had $11,683.W0 of cash and cash equivalents. The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method. 
The acklknal purchase cost aslgned to utillly plant of approkirnately $10,000,000 reflects the excess of the purchase 
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SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

price over the historical book carrying value of the net assets acquired. The additional purchase cost is amortized on 
a straight-line basis over forty years. 

WRITE-OFF OF REGULATORY ASSETS 

Pursuant to a 1989 Missouri Public Selvice Commission (MPSC) order, Missouri Gas Energy (MGE) is engaged in a 
major gas safely program. In connection with this program, the MPSC issued an accounting authority order in 1994 
which authorized MGE to defer canying Costs at a rate of 10.54%. The MPSC rate order of January 22,1997, however, 
retroactively reduced the 10.54% carrying cost rate used since early 1994 to an Allowance for Funds Used During 
ConsbucGon (AFUDC) rate of approximately 6%. The Company filed an appeal of this portion of the rate order in the 
h/hssouri State Court of Appeals, Westem Distrid. and on August 18,1998 was notified that the appeal was denied. This 
resulted In a pre-tax non-cash charge of $5,942,000 of previously deferred costs as of June 30, 1998. See 
Contingencies. 

On August21.1998, MGE was notified by the MPSC of its decision to grant a $13,300,000 rate increase but disallowed 
certain previously recorded deferred costs, requiring an additional pre-tax non-cash write-off of $2,221,000. Though 
the Company will recelve a rehearing on portions of these disallowances, generally accepted accounting principles 
required the Company to record thls charge to earnings, which Southern Union did as of June 30,1998. See uti@ 
Regulation and Rates. 

EARNINGS PER SHARE i 

Average shares outstanding for basic earnings per share were 29,686.041 and 29,595,655 for the threemonth period 
ended March 31,1999 and 1998, respecfively. 29,647.698 and 28,743,424 for the nine-month period ended March 31, 
I999 and 1998, respecfively. and 29,637,869 and 28,635,171 for the twelve-month period ended March 31,1999 and 
1998, respectively. Diluted earnings per share Includes average shares outstanding as well as common stock 
equivalents fmm stock options and warrants. During the three-, nine- and twelve-month periods ended March 31,1999 
and 1998, no adjustments were required in net earnings available for common stock for the earnings per share 
calculations. Common stock equhralents were 1,385,236 and 1,061,497 for the threemonth period ended March 31, 
I999 and 1998, respectively, 1,372,610 and 1,101,020 forthe ninemonth period ended March 31. I999 and 1998. 
respeclively, and 1,315,217 and 1,099,410 for the twelve-month period ended March 31,1999 and 1998, respectively. 

INVESTMENT SECURITIES 

At March 31,1999, all securities owned by the Company are accounted for under the cost method. These securities 
conslst of prefwed stock In a non-pubk company. Realbed gains and losses on sales of investments, as determlned 
on a spedlic IdenMcaUon bsk.  are Induded In the Comriated Statement of Operations when Incurred, and divklends 
are recognized as Income when received. 

PREFERRED SECURITIES OF SUBSIDIARY TRUST 

On May 17.1995. Southern Union Financing I (Subsidiary Trust). a consolidated wholly-omed subskliary of Southern 
Union, issued $1 00,000,000 of 9.48% Trust Originated Preferred Securities preferred Securities). In conneclion with 
the Subsidiary Trust's Issuance of the Preferred Securities and the related purchase by Southern Unlon of all of the 
Subsidiary TNst's common securities (Common Securities), Southem Union h u e d  to the Subsidiary Trust 
$103,092,800 ptindpal amount of Its 9.48% Subordinated Deferrable Interest Notes, due 2025 (Subordinated Notes). 
The sole assets of the Subsidiary T ~ s t  are the Subordinated Notes. The interest and other payment dates on the 
Subordinated Notes correspond to the distribution and other payment dates on the Preferred Securities and the 
Common Securities. Under certain drcumstances. the Subordinated Notes may be dktributed to holders of the 
Preferred Securities and holden of the Common Secudes In liquidation of the Subsidiary Trust The Subordinated 

12 



SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Notes are redeemable at the option of the Company on or afkr May 17.2000, at a redemption price of $25 per 
Subordinated Note plus accrued and unpaid interest. The Preferred Securities and the Common Securities will be 
redeemed on a pro rata basis to the same extent as the Subordinated Notes are repaid, at $25 per Preferred Security 
and Common Secuiily plus accumulated and unpaid distributions. Southem Union's obligations under the Subordinated 
Notes and related agreements, taken together, constitute a full and unconditional guarantee by Southem Union of 
payments due on the Preferred Securities. As of March 31,1999 and 1998,4,000,000 shares of Preferred Securities 
were outstanding. 

DEBT AND CAPITAL LEASE 

March 51, June 50, 
1999 1998 
(thousands of dollars) 

7.60% Senior Notesdue2024 ........................................... $ 384.515 $ 384.515 

Totaldebtand capitallease 413,493 408,184 
.............................................................. Other 28.978 23.669 

Less current portion ................................................. so 
Totallong-termdebtandcapitallease &2lu&! 

............................................. 
..................................... 

The Company has availability under Iy revolving credit facilities (the "Revolving Credit Facilities') undeMlritten by a 
syndicate of tanks. Of the ReMMng Credit Facilities, $40,000,000 k a short-term facility which expires June 30,1999, 
while $60.OOO.O00 is a long-term fadlity which expires June 30,2001. The Company has additional availability under 
uncommitted line of credltfadl i i  (Uncommitted Fadliities) with various banks. Covenants under the Revolving Credit 
Facilities allow for up to $35,000.000 of borrowings under Uncommitted Facilities at any one time. Borrowings under 
the fadiies are available for Southem Union's worldng capital, letter of credit requirements and other general corporate 
purposes. Amounts outstanding under these facilities at March 31,1999 and April 30,1999 were $18,603,000 and 
$3,000, respectively. 

Capitsr Lease The Company completed the installation of an Automated Meter Reading (AMR) system at MGE during 
the first quarter of fiscal year 1999. The installation of the AMR system Involved an Investment of approximately 
$30,000,000 which k accounted for as e capital lease obligation. As of March 31.1999, the capital lease obligation 
outstanding was $27,324,000. 

UTILITY REGULATION AND RATES 

Under the order of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, e major supplier of gas to MGE k allowed recovery of 
certain unrecovered deferred gas costs with a remaining balance of $1,175,000 at March 31,1999. MGE k allowed 
to recover these costs from b customem through a purchase gas adjustment mechanism approved by the MPSC. The 
receivable and liability associated with these costs have been recorded as a deferred charge end a deferred credit. 
respectively, on the consoriated balance sheet as of March 31,1999 and 1998. 

On May 21,1996, Southem Union Gas filed with the Railroad Commission of Texas (Commisslon) an appeal of the diy 
of El Paso's acbions to reduce the Compeny's rates and require a onefime cost of gas refund. The Company requested 
a $1,964.OOO base rate Increase and a finding that no cost of gas refund was warranted. On December 21,1998, the 
Commission k u e d  its order knplemenfing an SB84.OOO one-time cost of gas refund and a $99.000 base rate reduction. 

On August 21,1998, MGE was notified by the MPSC of b decision to grant e $13,300,000 rate increase which also 
disallowed certain previously recorded deferred costs, In which MGE requested a rehearing on significant portions of 
these bsallowances. On December 8,1998, the MPSC denied rehearing requests made by all parties other than MGE 
and granted a portion of MGE's reheating request The MPSC will conduct further proceedings to take d o n a 1  
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SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

evidence on those mattersforwhich itgranted MGE a reheating. lfthe MPSC adopts MGEs positions on rehearing, then 
MGE would be authorized an additional base revenue increase in the amount of approximately $2,200,000 (from the 
$13,300,000 initially authorized in its August 21,1998 order to $15,500,000). The MPSC's orders may be subject to 
judiaal review and although certain parties may argue for a redudon in MGEs authorized base revenue increase on 
judicial review, MGE expects such arguments to be unsuccessful. 

STOCK DMDEND 

On December 9,1998, Southem Union distributed its annual 5% common stock dividend to stockholders of record on 
November 23,1998. A portion of the 5% stock dividend was characterized as a distribution of capital due to the level 
of the Company's retained earnings availaMe for d ~ b u ( i o n  as of the declaration date. Unless otherwise stated, all per 
share data included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements and in these Notes to Consolidated 
Finandal Statements has been restated to give effect to the stock dividend. 

CONTINGENCIES 

Southern Union and Western Resources entered into an Environmental Uabilii Agreement (Environmental Uabilii 
Agreement) at the closing of the Missouri Acquisition. Subject to the accuracy of certain representations made by 
Western Resources In the Missouri Asset Purchase Agreement, the Environmental Uabilii Agreement provides for a 
tiered approach to the allocation of substantially all liabiliies under environmental laws that may exist or arise with 
respect to MGE. At the present time and based upon information available to management. the Company believes 
that the costs of any remediation effolts that may be required for these sites for which it may ulUmately have 
responslbilii will not exceed the aggregate amount subject to substantial sharing by Western Resources. 

In addition to the various MGE sites described above, the Company is investigating the possibility that the Company or 
predecessor companies may have been associated with Manufactured Gas Plant (MOP) sites in other of lk former 
seNice territories, principally in Arizona and New Medco, and present service territories in Texas. At the present time, 
the Company is aware of certain plant sites in some of these areas and k investigating those and certain other locations. 

While the Company's evaluation of these Texas, Arizona and New Medco MOP sites is in its preliminary stages, It is 
likely that some compliance costs may be identified and become subject to reasonable quantification. To the extent 
that such potential costs are quantified, the Company expects to provide any appropriate accruals and seek recovery 
for such remediition cask thmugh all appropriate means, Including insurance and regulatory relief. Although significant 
chargesto earnings could be required priorto rate recovery, management does not believe that environmental expendi- 
tures for such MGP sites will have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial podon, results of operations 
or cash flows. 

As previously dkclosed In the Company's 1998 Annual Report on Form 104. on August 18.1998, the Missouri State 
Court of Appeals denied the Company's appeal of the MPSC January 22.1997 rate order which retroadively reduced 
the canying cost rate applied by the Company on the expenditures Incurred on the M i o u r i  Safety Program dnce early 
1994 resulting in a one-time noncash wiaeoff of $5,942,000 of previously recorded deferred costs whlch was recorded 
in tiscal year 1998. Southem Union sought a transfer of the case to the Missouri Supreme Courtwhlch was denied on 
November24.1998. 

In August 1998, a jury in Ediiburg, Texas conduded deliberations on the City of Edinburg's franchke fee lawsuit against 
PG&E Gas Transmission. Texas Corporation (formerly Valero Energy Corporation (valero)) and a number of its 
subsidiaries, as well as former Valero subsidiary Rio Grande Valley Gas Company (RGV) and RGVs successor 
company, Southem Union Company. The case, based upon events that occurred between 1985-1987, centers on 
spedhc contradual language in the I985 franchise agreement between RGV and the City of Edinburg. Southern Union 
purchased RGV from Valero In October 1993. The jury awarded the plalnthT damages. against all defendants under 



SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

several largely overlapping but mutually exclusive claims, totaling approximately $1 3,000,000. The trial judge 
subsequently reduced the award to approximately $700,000 against Southern Union and $7,800,000 against Valero 
and Southem Union together. The Company is pursuing reversal on appeal. The Company believes it will ultimately 
prevail and thus has not provkled for any loss relative to this matter in its financial statements. Furthermore, the 
Company has not determined what impact, if any, this jury decision may have on other city franchises in Texas. 

Southern Union and its subsidiaries are parties to other legal proceedings that management considers to be normal 
adonstowhich an enterprise of its size and nature might be subject, and not to be material to the Companfs overall 
business or financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. 

i 
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SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

The Company's pdnapal line of business is the distribution of natural gas as a public utility through Southern Union Gas, 
Missouri Gas Energy (MGE). and Atlantic Utilities, doing business as South Florida Natural Gas (SFNG), each of which 
is a division ofthe Company. In addtion, subsidiaries of Southem Union have been established to support and expand 
natural gas sales and to capitalize on the Company's gas energy experlise. These subsidiaries operate natural gas 
pipeline systems, market natural gas to end-users and distribute propane. By providing "one-stop shopping," the 
Company can serve its various cwtomers'specific energy needs, which encompass substantially all of the natural gas 
distribuhn and sales businesses from natural gas sales to specialzed energy consulting services. Certain subsidiaries 
own or hold interests in real estate and other assets, which are primarily used in the Company's utility business. 

Several of these business activities are subject to regulation by federal, state or local authorities where the Company 
operates. Thus, the Company's financial condition and results of operations have been and will continue to be 
dependent upon the receipt of adequate and timely adjustments in rates. In addition, the Company's business is 
affected by seasonal weather impacts, competitive factors within the energy industry and economic development and 
residential growth in its service areas. 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Three Months Ended March 31,1999 and 1998 

The Company recorded net earnings available for common stock of $17.624.000 for the three-month period ended 
March 31.1999 compared with net earnings of $16,249,000 for the same period in 1998. Earnings per diluted share, 
based on weighted average common and common share equivalents outstanding during the period were 5.57 in 1999 
compared with earnings per diluted share of $.53 in 1998. 

Operating revenues were $251,863.000 for the three-month period ended March 31,1999, compared with operating 
revenues of $265,176,000 in 1998. Gas purchase costs for the three-month period ended March 31, I999 were 
$153,757,~. comparedhith $170.500.000 In 1998. The Companfs operating revenues are affected by the level of 
sales volumes and by the pass-through of Increases or decreases in the Companfs gas purchase costs through its 
purchased gas adjustment clauses. Additionally, revenues are affected by Increases or decreases in gross receipts 

(revenuwelated taxes) which are levied on sales revenue as collected from customers and remitted to the various 
taxing authoritias. The decrease in both operating revenues and gas purchase costs between periods was primarily the 
result of a 7% decrease in the average cost of gas from $3.59 per Mcf In 1998 to $3.33 per Mcf in 1999. Changes In 
the average wst of gas result from seasonal impacts on demands for natural gas and the ensuing competitive pridng 
wlthin the Industry. Addlonally, operating revenues and gas purchase costs were affected by a 2% decrease In gas 
sales volume to 46,068 MMd In I999 from 47,077 MMcf In 1998. The decrease in sales volumes was due to 
dgniticantly warmer weather primarily In the Texas service areas during the three-month period ended March 31,1999. 
Slightly offsetling these factors was a $1 3.300.000 annual increase to revenues In the Missouri service territories granted 
bythe Missouri Public Service Commission (MPSC) effeclive as of September 2,1998. The impact from this rate order 
was marginal as it is earned volumetrically and therefore was affected by the unusually warm weather. 

Weather for MGEs service tenitories was 87% of a w a r  measure for the threemonth period ended March 31,1999, 
compared with 85% In 1998. Southem Union Gas service territories experienced weather that was 65% of a 30-year 
measure in 1999, compared viith 84% in 1998. About half of the customers sewed by Southem Union Gas are weather 
normalized. 

Net operating margin (operafing mafgin less revenue-related taxes) increased 54,183,000 to $83,619,000 for the three- 
month period ended March 31,1999 compared viith the same period in 1998. Net operating margin increased primarily 
due to a $13.300,000 annual increase to revenues In the Missouri service territories granted by the MPSC effective as 
of September 2.1998. 
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Operating expenses, which include operating, maintenance and general expenses. depredation and amortization and 
taxes, other than on income and revenues, were $42,972,000 for the three-month period ended March 31,1999, an 
increase of $476,000, compared with $42,496.000 in 1998. The increase k primarily a result of an increase in 
depredation and amorthation and an increase in property taxes pursuant to the September 2,1998 Missouri rate order, 
discussed above, which included certain costs into rate base that had been previously deferred. 

Interest expense was $8,962.000 for the three-month period ended March 31.1999, compared with $8,970.000 in 
1998. See 'Debt and Capital Lease" in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included herein. 

Other expense of $252,000 for the three-month period ended March 31, I999 primarily consisted of net expense of 
$153,000 related to the amortization and current deferral of Interest and other expenses assodated with the MGE Safety 
Program. Other income of $1,257,000 for the three-month period ended March 31. 1998 primarily conskted of 
$526.000 related to the deferral of interest and other expenses associated with the MGE Safety Program and net rental 
income from Lavaca Realty Company (Lavaca Realty), the Company's real estate subsidiary. of $269,000. 

The Company's consolidated federal and state effective income tax rate was 39% for the three-month periods ended 
March 31.1999 and 1998. 

Nine Months Ended March 31,1999 and 1998 

The Company recorded net earnings available for common stock of $15,950,000 for the ninemonth period ended 
March 31,1999, compared with net earnings of $21,077.000 for the same period in 1998. Earnings per diluted share, 
based on welghted average common and common share equivalents outstanding during the period. were $ S I  In 1999 
compared with earnings per diluted share of $.71 in 1998. Weighted average common and common share equivalents 
increased 4% d u m  I999 compared with 1998 due to the issuance of 755,650 pra-splt and pre-stock dMdend shares 
of the Company's common stock on December 31. 1997 in connection with the acquisition of Atlantic Utilles 
Corporation and Subsidiaries (Atlantic Utilities) in Florida. 

Operating revenues were $503,543,000 for the ninemonth period ended March 31,1999. compared with operating 
revenues of $560,377,000 in 1998. Gas purchase costs for the ninemonth period ended March 31,1999 were 
$292,370,000 cornpared with $346,775,000 in 1998. The decrease in both operating revenues and gas purchase costs 
between periods was the result of an 8% decrease In the average cost of gas from $3.56 in 1998 to $326 per Mcf in 
1999. due to changes in average spot market gas plices. Addinally. operating revenues and gas purchase costs were 
affected by an 8% decrease In gas sales volume to 88,940 MMcf in I999 from 96,672 MMcf in 1098. The decrease 
in sales volumes was due to significantly warmer weather In the Mssoud and Texas service areas during the ninemonth 
period ended March 31,1999. The decrease in Operating revenues was partially offset by'a $13,300,000 annual 
increase to revenues granted to MGE, effedjve as of September 2,1998. The Impact from thk rate order was marginal 
as It k earned volumebically and, therefore, was affected by the unusually warm weather. 

MGEs service territories experienced weather which was 84% of a 30-year measure for the nine months ended 
March 31,1999 cornpared with 91 % in 1998. Weather for Southem Union Gas service tenitorles for the ninemonth 
period ended March 31, I999 was 73% of a 30-year measure compared with 97% in 1998. 

Net operating margin Increased $275.000 to $184,004,000 for the ninemonth period ended March 31, I999 compared 
with the same period In 1998. Net operating margin increased primarily due to a $13,300,000 annual Increase to 
revenues in the Mssouri senrice tenitok granted by the MPSC effective as of September 2,1998 which was partially 
offset by reduced gas sales volumes as a result of significantly warmer weather, previously discussed. 

i 
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Operating expenseswere $123,999,000 for the nine-month period ended March 31,1999, an increase of $5,143.000, 
compared with $118,856,000 in 1998. The increase is primarily the result of an increase in depreciation and 
amortization and property taxes as a result of including certain costs Into rate base that had been previously deferred. 
Ako contribufing to the increase was the indusion of AUantic Utilities, which was acquired effective December 31,1997, 
as well as increased legal fees and assessments assodated with certain claims and litigation. 

Interest expense was $26,843,000 for the nine-month period ended March 31.1999. compared with $26,544,000 In 
1998. The increase is primarily due to the addiSon of a capital lease obiiiation for the installation of an Automated Meter 
Reading (MAR) system at MGE. See “Debt and Capital Lease’ in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements 
included herein. 

Otherincomeforthenine-monthperiodendedMarch31,1999was$311,000comparedwith $3,619,000in 1998. Other 
income for the nine-month period ended March 31,1999 lnduded net rental income from Lavaca Realty of $935,000, 
which was partially offset by net expense of 5517,000 related to the amortization and current deferral of interest and 
other expenses associated with the MGE Safety Program. Other income for the nine-month period ended March 31, 
1998 included $1.246.000 related to the deferral of Interest and other expenses assodated with the MGE Safety 
Program. realized gains on the sale of investment securilies of 61,088,000 and net rental income from Lavaca Realty 
of $756,000. 

The Company’s consoliated federal an&state effectbe hmme tax rate was and 39% for the nine-month periods ended 
March 31, I999 and 1998, respectively. 

Twelve Months Ended March 31,1999 and 1998 

The Company recorded net earnings available for common stock of $7.101,000 for the twelve-month period ended 
March 31, I999 compared with net earnings of $18,174,000 In 1998. Earnings per diluted share based on weighted 
average common and common share equivalents outstanding during the period were $.23 In I999 compared wlth 
earnings per diluted share of $.61 In 1998. WeQhted average common and common share equivalents increased 4% 
during the twelvemonth period ended March 31,1999 compared with 1998 due to the issuance of common stock in 
the acquisition of Atlantic Utilities. previously d-ed. 

During fiscal year 1998, the Company was Impacted by pretax noncash write-offs totaling $8.163,000 of previously 
recorded regulatoly assets. On August 18,1998, the Missouri Courl of Appeals denied the previously dkclosed appeal 
by the Company of the MPSC’s January 1997 Rate Order granted to MGE. Because of this dedsion. the Company 
recorded a one-time nowcashwrite-off of 8,942,000 of deferred costs recorded since 1994. On August 21,1998, the 
MPSC also granted MGE a rate Increase which, among other things, disallowed certain previously recorded deferred 
costs requiring an additional pre-tax non-cash writeoff of $2,221,000. See Write-off of Regulatory Assets” and 
‘Contingendes” In the Notes to the Consolidated Flnandal Statements included herein. 

Operatkg revenueswere $612,469,000 for the twelvemonth period ended March 31,1999, compared with operating 
revenues of $648,200.000 In 1998. Gas purchase wsk for the twehremonth period ended March 31.1999 were 
$351,174.O00, cornpared kith gas purchase costs of $385,609,000 In 1998. The decrease in both operating revenues 
and gas purchase costs between periods was primarily the result of a 5% decrease In gas sales volume to 108,113 
MMcf In I999 from 114,063 MMcf In 1998. The decrease In sales volumes was due to significantly warmer weather 
in the Mssouri and Texas seenriCe areas during the twelvemonth period ended March 31,1999. Addtionally, operating 
revenues and gas purchase costs were affected by a 4% decrease in the average cost of gas from $3.35 per Mcf In 
1998 to $323 per Mcfln 1999, due to changes In average spot market gas prices. The decrease In operating revenues 
was pattally offset by a $13,300,000 annual Increase to revenues granted to MGE, effective as of September 2,1998. 
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The impact from this rate increase was marginal as it is earned volumetrically and, therefore, was also affected by the 
unusually warm weather. 

MGEs service territories experienced weather that was 84% of the 30-year measure for the twelvemonth period ended 
March 31,1999 compared with 95% in 1998. Weather for Southern Union Gas service territories for the twelve-month 
period ended March 31,1999 was 75% of a 30-year measure compared with 103% in 1998. 

Net operating margin increased $2,170,000 to $229.1 12.000 for the twelve-month period ended March 31, 1999 
compared with the same period in 1998. Net operating margin increased primarily due to a $13,300,000 annual 
increase to revenues in the Missouri service territories granted by the MPSC effective as of September 2,1998 which 
was partially offset by reduced gas sales volumes as a result of significantly warmer weather as previously discussed. 

Operating expenses were $165,313,000 for the twelve-month period ended March 31, 1999, an increase of 
$11,711.O00, compared with operating expenses of $153,602,000 in 1998. The increase is a result of increased legal 
fees and exqenses assodated with valious claims and rigation. increased employee benefits costs, increased general 
and administralive ads. the indusion of operating expenses for Atlantic Utilities, acquired effective December 31,1997. 
as well as acquired and q n d e d  propane acthrities. Also contributing to the increase was an increase in depreciation 
and amortiration and property taxes as a result of Including certain costs into rate base that had been previously 
deferred. 

Interest e n s e w a s  $35,182,000 for the twelvemonth period ended March 31,1999, compared with $34,613.000 in 
1998. The increase k primarily due to the addition of a capital lease obligation for the installation of an AMR system 
at MGE, previously discussed. See "Debt and Capital Lease" in the Notes to the Consolidated Finandal Statements 
included herein. 

Other income for the twelvemonth period ended March 31, I999 was $763,000 compared with $741,000 in 1998. 
Other income forthe twelvemonth period ended March 31, I999 Included $1,298,000 in net rental income from Lavaca 
Realty. Other Income forthetwelvemonth period ended March 31, I998 included $1,088.000 in realized gains on the 
sale of lrwsbnent securiliss, net rental Income from Lavaca Realty of $1,017,000 and $694,000 related to the deferral 
of interest and other expenses assodated with the MGE Safety Program. This was partially offset by $2,150.000 for 
the settlement of certain Mlling errors at MGE. 

The Company's consordated federal and state effective income tax rate was 39% for the twelve-month periods ended 
March 31,1999 and 1998. 

? 
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The following table sets forth certain information regarding the Company's gas utility operations for the three- and 
twelve-month periods ended March 31,1999 and 1998: 

Avenge number of gas sales custormtx served: 
Residential .................... ......... 
Commercial . . . . . . . . .  ................... 
I n d u M I  and higation ........................... 
Pipdine d marketing .................................. 
Public authorities and other .............................. 

Total wsrPge customers served ....................... 

Residential ........................................... 
commercial . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  .................... 
Indusbinlandhigation ...... .................... 
P ~ s n d d e t i r g  ...... .................... 
Public authdes and other .............................. 

Gassalesbilled ................................... 
Net change in unt4led gas sales. .......................... 

Total gas sales .... ......................... 

Gas sales in millions of cubic feet (MMd): 

5 

Gas sales revmuas (mousSndS of ddlus): 
R e s i d d  ........................................... 
commerdsl ................................... 
Indusbinlmdhigation .................................. 
Pipdiudmarketirg .................................. 
PubkaumoritiwandDmsr .............................. 

G u u l a s ~ b a k d  ............................ 
Net- h Wlbd gaa sa!as T B M M ~ ~ ~  ................... 

Total gas sales mvenugl ............................ 
ousak .~ (moussndsofdo l la rs )  ......................... 
Gas d e s  m w  permoursnd abiofeet(Md) bilbd: 

RCd4l lW ........................................... 
l2UMmmhl .......................................... 
lndusbinlandlfrlgdm .................................. 
pi- and nurkeling .................................. 
Publicauthuihs andomer .............................. 

W&r: 
. .  Degree days: .................. . .  .%Ahern Unbn Gas smiwtemtams 

M i i G u E n a g y s m i w -  .................. 
~ U ~ G S S s m i w ~  .................. 
M i i d  Gas Energy smiw tdbxies .................. 

Gasbamported in millions ofcubio feet (MMd) ................... 

P W O S l t d ~ . b M l 3 O - y ~ ~ :  

Gashnsp&&m . nwenwa(mousSndSofdOl*rs). ................ 

Three Months 
Ended March 31. 

1999 1998 

906.268 896,600 
91,432 91.152 

572 560 
237 226 

2.8872.841 
J s ! a i ? E m  

30,156 31.393 
12.415 12,820 
394 504 

5,807 5,113 
1.0761.280 

49.848 51,110 
13.780)- 
46.06847.077 

t 172,746 s 1a2.328 
68.446 72.750 

1,913 2484 
13.232 12025 

3.9324.918 
260.289 274,505 -- Lam 

- L a ! a  

s 5.728 f 5.808 
5.513 5.675 
4.858 4.928 
2279 2.352 
3.654 3.842 

8M) 
2429 

1.055 
2388 

65% 84% 
87% 85% 

16.700 15,231 
S 6.351 S 6,221 

Twelve Months 
Ended March 31. 

1Bs9 1998 

892.196 
86.308 

569 
233 

2.&11 
984.147 

51.- 
25.624 

1.520 
20.- 

2.3p 
107,242 

f 368,947 
141,510 

6,- 
47.714 

8.818 
573.789 

4.261 
a?ua 

S 6.423 
5.523 
4.473 
2346 
3.798 

1.609 
4,418 

75% 
84% 

55,314 
s 19,663 

877,103 
86,941 

569 
2?3 

2.743 

84.833 
28.m 

1.- 
18.707 

2714 
114.189 
2 
114.063 

s 398,140 
153.824 

7.736 
39.484 

1.212 
L J l l s  

S 6.141 
5.440 
4.668 
2363 
4.112 

2131 
4.882 
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FINANCIAL CONDITION 

The Company's gas utility operations are seasonal in nature with a significant percentage of the annual revenues and 
earnings occurring in the traditional heating-load months. This seasonality results in a high level of cash flow needs 
during the peakwinter heating Season months, resulbing from the required payments to natural gas suppliers in advance 
of the receipt of cash payments from the Company's customers. The Company has hktorically used internally 
generated funds and its revolving loan and credt facilities to provide funding for .tS seasonal working capital. continuing 
construction and maintenance programs and operational requirements. 

The prindpal source of funds during the three-month period ended March 31, I999 included $59,844,000 In cash flow 
from operations. This source provided funds for addiionsto property, plant and equipment of $15,433,000. $5,000,000 
for the purchase of investment securities and $31,400,000 in net repayments under the Company's revolving credfi 
facility. 

The principal sources of funds during the nine-month period ended March 31, I999 included $36,634,000 in cash flow 
from operations and $17,003,000 from the Company's revolving and uncommltted credt facilities. These sources 
provided funds for additions to properly, plant and equipment of $50,398,000 and $5,000,000 for the purchase of 
investment securities. 

The effeclive interest rate under the Company's current debt structure k 7.67% (including Interest and the amortization 
of debt issuance cosk and redemption premiums on refinanced debt). 

The Company has availability under two revolving credit facilities (the 'RevoMng Credit Fadlities') underwritten by a 
syndicate of banks. Ofthe Revolving Credit Facilities, $40,000,000 is a short-term fadlii which expires June 30.1999, 
W e  ~ , O O O , O O O  is a long-term facility which expires June 30.2001. The Company has additional avallablli under 
uncommitted line of credit facilities (Uncommitted Facilities) with various banks. Cbvenants under the Revolving Credit 
Fadlles allow for up to $35.000.000 of borrowings under Uncommitted FadlKies at any one time. Bormwings under 
the fadGties are available for Southem Union's wow capital. letter of credit requirements and other general corporate 
purposes. Amounts outstanding under these faalities at March 31,1999 and &til 30.1999 were $18.603.000 and 
$3,000. respectively. 

YEAR 2000 

Similar to all business enfities, the Company will be impacted by the Inability of computer application software programs 
to distinguish between the year 1900 and 2000 due to a commonly-used programming convention. Unless such 
programs are modified or replaced prior to 2000, calculations and Interpretations based on date-based a&hmetic or 
logical operations performed by such programs may be incorrect 

Managementk plan addressing the Impact of the Year 2000 issue on the Company focuses on the following areas: 
applidion systems, process control systems (embedded chips), technology infrastructure, physical Infrastructure, and 
third parly business partners and suppliers with which the Company has significant relationships. Management's 
analysis and review of these areas is compmed primarily of five phases: developing an Inventory of hardware, software 
and embedded chips; assessing the degree to which each area is currently Year 2000 ready; performing renovations 
and repairs as needed to attain Year 2000 readiness; testing to ensure Year 2000 readiness; and developing a 
contingency plan if repair and renovation effork are either unsuccessful or untimely. 

Management has completed the inventory phase and has substantially completed the assessment phase regarding 
appI i ion systems, process control systems and technology infrastructure, and is performing renovations, repairs and 
testing In each of these categories. The review of physical hfrastructure and critical budness partners. gas transporters 
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and suppliers is in the assessment stage. The company's inventory efforts were completed prior to the end of calendar 
year 1998. The Company's assessment, renovation and repair efforts are substantially complete. The testing of 
affected areaswill continue through calendar year 1999. Costs incurred to date have primarily consisted of labor from 
the redeployment of exiding information technology, legal and operational resources. The Company expects to spend 
approximately $6,500,000 for these Year 2000 readiness efforts. Included in this estimate are equipment leasing 
expnses that will be incurred over the life of the equipment. To the extent that such costs are incurred in Year 2000 
readiness efforts, the Company will attempt recovery for such costs through regulatory relief. 

During the past several years the Company has replaced most of its finandal and operating soflware programs. In 
addition, the Company is currently in the process of replacing those remaining programs to be able to be Year 2000 
ready. These new programs have significantly reduced the costs the Company expects to Incur to become Year 2000 
ready. AddiGonally. the Company has formed a planning team to develop a contingency plan in the event that supplier 
or internal operational failures do occur. The costs associated with this effort are being evaluated and cannot yet be 
determined. Although the Company does not presenlly anticipate a material business Interruption as a result of the Year 
2000. the worst case scenario if all of the Company's Year 2000 efforts failed, including the failure of third paw 
providers to deliver services, could result In daily lost revenuas of approximately $3,200,000. This estimate k based 
on historical revenues recognized In the months of January, February and March. 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOWNG INFORMATION 

This Management's Discussion and Anelysk of Finandal Condition and Results of Operations and other sections of thii 
Form 1O-Q contaln forwardlooldng statemenkthat are term! on current expectations, estimates and projections about 
the lndusby in which the Company operates, management's beliefs and assumptions made by management. Words 
such as 'expects,' "antidpates," Wends,' 'plans.' 'believes,' 'seeks.' 'estimates.' variations of such words and dmllar 
expressions are Intended to ldentiry such forward-looking statements. These statements are not guarantees of future 
performance and involve certain risks. uncertainties and assumptions, whlch are difficult to predict and many of which 
are outslde the Company's control. Therefore, actual outcomes and results may differ materially from what is 
expssed or forecasted In such forwardlookng statements. The Company undertakes no obligation to update publicly 
any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new lnformatlon, future events or otherwise. Readers are 
cautioned not to put undue reliance on such forward-looking statements. Stockholders may review the Company's 
reports filed in the Mure with the Securities and Exchange Commission for more current descriptions of developments 
that could cause actual results to differ materially from such forward-looldng statements. 

Factors that could causa or contribute to adual results tiiffeting materially from such forward-looking statements Include 
the following: cost of gas; gas sales volumes; waather conditions in the Company's setvlce territories; the achievement 
of operating efficiendes and the purchases and implementation of new technologies for attaining such effidendes: 
impact of relations with labor unions of bargainingunk employees; the receipt of timely and adequate rate relief; the 
outcome of pendhg and Mure Diglieation: garemmental regulations and proceedings affecting or involving the Company: 
and the nature and Impact of any extraordinary transactions such as any acquisition or divestiture of a business unit or 
any assets. These are representative of the factors that could affect the outcome of the forward-looking statements. 
In addi0ion, such statements could be affected by general Industry and market conditions, and general economic 
conditions, Including Interest rate fluctuations, federal, state and local laws and regulations affecting the retail gas 
industry or the energy Industry generally, and other factors. 

i 
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be 
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized. 

SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY 
(Registrant) 

Date Mav 17.1999 BY R O W  D J FNDRFS 
Ronald J. Endres 
Executive Vice President and Chief Finandal Officer 

Date Mav17.lQ99 i BY PBYlcLL KWPl' 
David J. Kvadl 
Senior Mca President and Corporate Controller 
(Prindpal Accounting Officer) 
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Exhibit B 
SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY and PENNSYLVANIA ENTERPRISES INC. 

2000 and 2001 Sources and Uses of Funds Forecast 
(thousands of dollars) 

2000 2001 
(Note 1) 

Depreciation and amortization 5 57,100 5 61,000 
Deferred income taxes 8,000 8,000 

Total 5 65,100 5 69,000 

Construction expenditures (Note 2) 5 85,700 5 79,800 

Long-term debt maturities 2.000 2 inn - -, . -- ~. ~~ 

Total capital requirements 5 87,700 5 81,900 

NOTES 

1) Projected amounts do not include any effect of potential changes in retail base rates 
or other regulated activities which could cause the projections to change. 

2) All of the estimated construction expenditures are subject to continuing review and 
adjustment and actual construction expenditures may vary from these estimates 
due to factors such as changes in customers, energy sales, business and economic 
conditions, construction and design requirements, energy supply and costs, 
availability of labor, supplies and materials, regulatory treatment, environmental and 
conservation requirements and existing and proposed legislation. Southern Union 
Company and Pennsylvania Enterprises Inc. is keeping its construction program 
as flexible as possible with the intention of accommodating those factors that may 
develop or change. 
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Exhibit C 

AGREEMENT OF MERGER 

between 

SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY 

and 

PENNSYLVANIA ENTERPRISES, INC. 

Dated as of June 7, 1999 
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AGREEMENT OF MERGER 

This AGREEMENT OF MERGER (this “Agreement”) is made as of the 7th day of June, 
1999, by and between SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY, a Delaware corporation (“SUG), and 
PENNSYLVANIA ENTERPRISES, INC., a Pennsylvania corporation (“PNT”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of each of SUG and PNT has approved and deems 
it advisable and in the best interests of their respective shareholders to consummate the merger of 
PNT with and into SUG upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth herein; and 

WHEREAS, in furtherance thereof, the Board of Directors of each of SUG and PNT has 
approved this Agreement and the merger of PNT with and into SUG, with SUG being the 
surviving corporation (the “Merger”); 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and 
agreements herein contained, and intending to be legally bound hereby, SUG and PNT hereby 
agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.1 Certain Def ied  Terms. For purposes of this Agreement, the following 
terms have the meanings specified or referred to in this Article I (such definitions to be equally 
applicable to both the singular and plural forms of the terms defined): 

“Acquired Companies”-- PNT and its Subsidiaries, collectively, and each, an “Acquired 
Company.” 

“Applicable Contract”--any Contract (a) under which any Acquired Company has any 
rights, @) under which any Acquired Company has any obligation or liability, or (c) by which any 
Acquired Company or any of the assets owned or used by it is bound. 

“Average Trading Price”--of SUG Common Stock, as of any date, will equal the average 
of the reported closing market prices of such stock for the ten consecutive trading days ending on 
the third trading day prior to such date (counting from and including the trading day immediately 
preceding such date). The closing market price for each day in question will be the last sale price, 
regular way or, if no such sale takes place on such day, the average of the closing bid and asked 
prices, regular way, in either case as reported in the principal consolidated transaction reporting 
system of the principal national securities exchange on which SUG Common Stock is listed or 
admitted to trading. 

“CERCLA”--the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act 
of 1980, as amended. 

“Closing Date”--the date on which the Closing actually takes place. 



“COBW--the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985, as amended, or 
any successor law, and regulations and rules issued pursuant to that act or any successor law, and 
also the requirements of Part 6 of Subtitle B of Title I of ERISA. 

“Consent‘--any approval, consent, ratification, waiver, or other authorization (including 
any Governmental Authorization). 

“Confract”--any agreement, contract, document, instrument, obligation, promise or 
undertaking (whether written or oral) that is legally binding. 

“DGCL”--the Delaware General Corporation Law 

Encumbrance”--any charge, adverse claim, lien, mortgage, pledge, security interest or 
other encumbrance. 

“Environment”--soi1, land surface or subsurface strata, surface waters (including navigable 
waters, Ocean waters, streams, ponds, drainage basins, and wetlands), groundwaters, drinking 
water supply, stream sediments, ambient air (including indoor air), plant and animal life, and any 
other environmental medium or natural resource. 

“Environmental Law“--any Legal Requirement that requires or relates to: 

(a) advising appropriate authorities, employees, and the public of intended or 
actual releases of pollutants or hazardous substances or materials, violations of discharge 
limits, or other prohibitions and of the commencements of activities, such as resource 
extraction or construction, that could have significant impact on the Environment; 

(b) preventing or reducing to acceptable levels the release of pollutants or 
hazardous substances or materials into the Environment; 

(c) reducing the quantities, preventing the release, or minimizing the hazardous 
characteristics of wastes that are generated; 

(d) reducing to acceptable levels the risks inherent in the transportation of 
hazardous substances, pollutants, oil, or other potentially harmful; or 

(e) making responsible parties pay private parties, or groups of them, for damages 
done to their health or the Environment, or permitting self-appointed representatives of the 
public interest to recover for injuries done to public assets or for damages to natural 
resources. 

“ERIsA”--the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, or any 
successor law, and regulations and rules issued pursuant to that act or any successor law. 
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‘‘Ecchange Act‘--the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or any successor law, 
and regulations and rules issued by the SEC pursuant to that act or any successor law. 

“Facilkies”--any real property, leaseholds, or other interests currently or formerly owned 
or operated by any Acquired Company and any buildings, plants, structures, or equipment 
(including motor vehicles, tank cars, and rolling stock) currently or formerly owned or operated 
by any Acquired Company. 

“FERC‘--the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission or any successor agency. 

“Final OrdeY--an action by a Governmental Body as to which: (a) no request for stay of 
the action is pending, no such stay is in effect and if any time period is permitted by statute or 
regulation for filing any request for such stay, such time period has passed; (b) no petition for 
rehearing, reconsideration or application for review of the action is pending and the time for filing 
any such petition or application has passed; (c) such Governmental Body does not have the action 
under reconsideration on its own motion and the time in which such reconsideration is permitted 
has passed; and (d) no appeal to a court, or a request for stay by a court of the Governmental 
Body’s action is pending or in effect and the deadline for filing any such appeal or request has 
passed. 

“GAAP--generally accepted United States accounting principles, applied on a consistent 
basis. 

“Governmental Authorization”--any approval, consent, license, franchise, certificate of 
public convenience and necessity, permit, waiver or other authorization issued, granted, given, 
or otherwise made available by or under the authority of any Governmental Body or pursuant to 
any Legal Requirement. 

“Governmental Body”-any : 

(a) nation, state, county, city, town, village, district or other jurisdiction of any 
nature; 

(b) federal, state, county, local, municipal or other government; 

(c) governmental or quasi-governmental authority of any nature (including any 
governmental agency, branch, department, official or entity and any court or other 
tribunal); or 

(d) body exercising, or entitled to exercise, any administrative, executive, judicial, 
legislative, police, regulatory or taxing authority or power of any nature. 

“Hazardous Activity”--the distribution, generation, handling, importing, management, 
manufacturing, processing, production, refinement, Release, storage, transfer, transportation, 
treament, or use (including any withdrawal or other use of groundwater) of Hazardous Materials 
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in, on, under, about, or from the Facilities or any part thereof into the Environment, any other 
act, business, operation, or thing that increases the danger, or risk of danger, or poses an 
unreasonable risk of harm to persons or property on or off the Facilities, or that may affect the 
value of the Facilities or the Acquired Companies. 

“Hazardous Materials”--any waste or other substance that is listed, defined, designated, 
or classified as, or otherwise determined to be, hazardous, radioactive, or toxic or a pollutant or 
a contaminant under or pursuant to any Environmental Law, including any admixture or solution 
thereof, and specifically including petroleum and all derivatives thereof or synthetic substitutes 
therefor and asbestos or asbestos-containing materials. 

“HSR Ad--the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended, or 
any successor law, and regulations and rules issued by the U.S. Department of Justice or the 
Federal Trade Commission pursuant to that act or any successor law. 

“IRC--the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

“IRS”--the Internal Revenue Service or any successor agency 

“Knowledge”--an individual will be deemed to have “Knowledge” of a particular fact or 
other matter if such individual is actually aware of such fact or other matter. A Person (other than 
an individual) will be deemed to have “Knowledge” of a particular fact or other matter if any 
individual who is serving as a director or officer of such Person or any material Subsidiary of it 
or other management employee with direct responsibility for such particular fact or other matter 
of such Person or any material Subsidiary of it (or in any similar capacity) has actual knowledge 
of such fact or other matter. 

“Legal Requirement”--any federal, state, county, local, municipal, foreign, international, 
multinational, or other administrative order, constitution, law, ordinance, principle of common 
law, regulation, rule, tariff, franchise agreement, statute or treaty. 

“Material Contracr”--a Contract involving a total commitment by or to any party thereto 
of at least $100,000 on an annual basis or at least $500,000 on its remaining term which cannot 
be terminated on no more than sixty (60) days’ notice without penalty or additional cost to the 
Acquired Company as the terminating party. 

“Occupational Safety and Health Lav”--any Legal Requirement designed to provide safe 
and healthful working conditions and to reduce occupational safety and health hazards, and any 
program, whether governmental or private (including those promulgated or sponsored by industry 
associations and insurance companies), designed to provide safe and healthful working conditions. 

“Order“--any award, decision, injunction, judgment, order, ruling, subpoena, or verdict 
entered, issued, made, or rendered by any court, administrative agency, or other Governmental 
Body or by any arbitrator. 
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“Ordinary Course of Business”--an action taken by a Person will be deemed to have been 
taken in the “Ordinary Course of Business” only if: 

(a) such action and authorization therefor is consistent with the past practices of 
such Person and is taken in the ordinary course of the normal day-to-day operations of 
such Person; and 

(b) such action is not required by law to be authorized by the board of directors 
(or similar authority) of such Person or of such Person’s parent company (if any). 

“Organiza?ional Documents”--(a) the articles or certificate of incorporation and the bylaws 
of a corporation; (b) the partnership agreement and any statement of partnership of a general 
partnership; (c) the limited partnership agreement and the certificate of limited partnership of a 
limited partnership; (d) the certificate of formation and the members, operating or similar 
agreement of a limited liability company; (e) any charter or similar document adopted or filed in 
connection with the creation, formation or organization of a Person; and (f) any amendment to 
any of the foregoing. 

“PBCL”--the Pennsylvania Business Corporation Law. 

“Person”--any individual, corporation (including any non-profit corporation), general or 
limited partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, estate, trust, association, 
organization, labor union, organized group of persons, entity of any other type, or Governmental 
Body. 

“PG Pr@erred Stock’-each series of the cumulative preferred stock, par value $100.00 per 
share, of PG Energy. 

“PNT Balance Sheet”--the audited consolidated balance sheet of the Acquired Companies 
at December 31, 1998 (including the notes thereto), provided by PNT to SUG as part of the PNT 
Financial Statements. 

“PNT Common Stock--the common stock, no par value, of PNT. 

“PNT Disclosure Schedule”--the disclosure schedule delivered by PNT to SUG concurrently 
with the execution and delivery of this Agreement. 

“PNTMaerial Adverse Egecr -- a material adverse effect (i) on the business, operations, 
financial condition or results of operations of PNT and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or (ii) 
on the ability of PNT and its Subsidiaries to consummate the Mergers in accordance with this 
Agreement. 

“PNT Permiffed Liens”--Encumbrances securing Taxes, assessments, governmental charges 
or levies, or the claims of materialmen, mechanics, carriers and like persons, all of which are not 
yet due and payable or which are being contested in good faith; Encumbrances (other than any 
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Encumbrance imposed by ERISA) incurred on deposits made in the Ordinary Course of Business 
in connection with worker’s compensation, unemployment insurance or other types of social 
security; the Encumbrances created by and the Encumbrances permitted under the Indenture of 
Mortgage and Deed of Trust, dated as of March 15, 1946, between PG Energy (formerly known 
as Scanton-Spring Brook Water Service Company) and Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New 
York (formerly known as Guaranty Trust Company of New York), as Trustee, as amended or 
supplemented from time to time; in the case of leased real property, Encumbrances (not 
attributable to an Acquired Company as lessee) affecting the landlord’s (and any underlying 
landlord’s) interest in any leased real property; and such other Encumbrances which are not, 
individually or in the aggregate, reasonably likely to have a PNT Material Adverse Effect. 

“Proceeding”--any action, arbitration, hearing, litigation or suit (whether civil, criminal, 
administrative, investigative, or informal) commenced, brought, conducted, or heard by or before, 
or otherwise involving, any Governmental Body or arbitrator. 

“PUHCA”-the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935, as amended, or any successor 
law, and regulations and rules issued by the SEC pursuant to that act or any successor law. 

“Related Documents”--any Contract provided for in this Agreement to be entered into by 
one or more of the parties hereto or their respective Subsidiaries in connection with the Mergers. 

“Release“--any spilling, leaking, emitting, discharging, depositing, escaping, leaching, 
dumping, or other releasing into the Environment, whether intentional or unintentional. 

“Representative”--with respect to a particular Person, any director, officer, employee, 
agent, consultant, advisor, or other representative of such Person, including legal counsel, 
accountants, and financial advisors. 

“sEc’--the United States Securities and Exchange Commission or any successor agency. 

“Securities Act”--the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or any successor law, and 
regulations and rules issued by the SEC pursuant to that act or any successor law. 

“Subsidialy”--with respect to any Person (the “Owner”), any Person of which securities or 
other interests having the power to elect a majority of that other Person’s board of directors or 
similar governing M y ,  or otherwise having the power to direct the business and policies of that 
corporation or other Person (other than securities or other interests having such power only upon 
the happening of a contingency that has not occurred) are held by the Owner or one or more of 
its Subsidiaries; when used without reference to a particular Person, “Subsidiary” means a 
Subsidiary of PNT. 

“SUG Balance Sheet”--the audited consolidated balance sheet of SUG at June 30, 1998 
(including the notes thereto), provided by SUG to PNT as part of the SUG Financial Statements. 

“SUG Common Stock”--the Common Stock, par value $1.00 per share, of SUG. 
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“SUG Disclosure Schedule”--the disclosure schedule delivered by SUG to PNT 
concurrently with the execution and delivery of this Agreement. 

“SUG Material Adverse Effect”--a material adverse effect (i) on the business, operations, 
financial condition or results of operations of SUG and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or (ii) 
on the ability of SUG to consummate the Mergers in accordance with this Agreement. 

“SUG Permifred Liens”--Encumbrances securing Taxes, assessments, governmental charges 
or levies, or the claims of materialmen, mechanics, carriers and like persons, all of which are not 
yet due and payable or which are being contested in good faith; Encumbrances (other than any 
Encumbrance imposed by ERISA) incurred on deposits made in the Ordinary Course of Business 
in connection with worker’s compensation, unemployment insurance or other types of social 
security; in the case of leased real property, Encumbrances (not attributable to SUG as lessee) 
affecting the landlord’s (and any underlying landlord’s) interest in any leased real property; and 
such other Encumbrances which are not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably likely to have 
an SUG Material Adverse Effect. 

“Tar”--any tax (including any income tax, capital gains tax, value-added tax, sales and use 
tax, franchise tax, payroll tax, withholding tax or property tax), levy, assessment, tariff, duty 
(including any customs duty), deficiency, franchise fee or payment, payroll tax, utility tax, gross 
receipts tax or other fee or payment, and any related charge or amount (including any fine, 
penalty, interest or addition to tax), imposed, assessed or collected by or under the authority of 
any Governmental Body or payable pursuant to any tax-sharing agreement or any other Contract 
relating to the sharing or payment of any such tax, levy, assessment, tariff, duty, deficiency or 
fee. 

“Tar Return”--any return (including any information return), report, statement, schedule, 
notice, form, or other document or information filed with or submitted to, or required to be filed 
with or submitted to, any Governmental Body in connection with the determination, assessment, 
collection, or payment of any Tax or in connection with the administration, implementation, or 
enforcement of or compliance with any Legal Requirement relating to any Tax. 

“Threat of Release”--a reasonable likelihood of a Release that will require action under 
Environmental Laws in order to prevent or mitigate damage to the Environment that may result 
from such Release. 

“Threatened‘--a claim, Proceeding, dispute, action, or other matter will be deemed to have 
been “Threatened if any demand or statement has been made (orally or in writing) or any notice 
has been given (orally or in writing), or if any other event has occurred or any other circumstance 
exists, that would lead a director, officer or management employee of a comparable gas 
distribution company to conclude that such a claim, Proceeding, dispute, action, or other matter 
is likely to be asserted, commenced, taken or otherwise pursued in the future. 
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Section 1.2 Other Defined Terms. In addition to the terns defined in Section 1.1, 
certain other terms are defined elsewhere in this Agreement as indicated below and, whenever 
such terms are used in this Agreement, they shall have their respective defined meanings. 

TERM 

4.10% PG Preferred Stock 

5.75% PG Preferred Stock 

Acquired Company Option Plans 

Agreement 

Business Combination 

Cash Consideration 

Certificates 

Closing 

Confidentiality Agreement 

Conversion Price 

Dissenting Shares 

Effective Time 

Employees 

Exchange Ratio 

Honesdale 

Honesdale Merger 

Indemnified Parties 

Initial Termination Date 

Maximum Value 

Merger 

Merger Consideration 

Mergers 

Minimum Value 

NYSE 

Paying Agent 

PBGC 

SECTION 

5.2 

5.2 

3.4 

Introductory Paragraph 

6.l(h)(4) 

3.1 (a)(2) 

3.2(b) 

2.3 

6.l(c) 

3.l(a) 

3.3 

2.2 

6.2(b) 

3.1 (a)(l) 

2.6 

2.6 

9.l(a) 

8.l(j) 

3.l(a) 

Recitals 

3.l(a) 

2.6 

3.l(a) 

3.4 

3.2(a) 

4.18(b) 
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PG Energy 

PG Energy Merger 

PNT 

PNT Benefit Plans 

PNT Commonly Controlled Entity 

PNT Financial Statements 

PNT Meeting 

PNT Options 

PNT Proxy Statement 

PNT Rights 

PNT Rights Agreement 

PNT SEC Documents 

PNT Shareholders’ Approval 

Registration Statement 

Rule 145 Affiliates 

Rule 145 Letters 

Stock Consideration 

SUG 

SUG Benefit Plans 

SUG Commonly Controlled Entity 

SUG Financial Statements 

SUG Meeting 

SUG Proxy Statement 

SUG SEC Documents 

SUG Shareholders’ Approval 

Superior Proposal 

Surviving Corporation 

Third Party Beneficiary 

2.6 

2.6 

Introductory Paragraph 

5.18(a) 

5.18(e) 

5.9 

6.1Ci)(l) 

3.4 

4.23 

3.1(a) 

3.l(a) 

5.9 

5.25 

4.23 

6.l(k) 

6.l(k) 

3. W(1) 

Introductory Paragraph 

4.18(a) 

4.18(e) 

4.9 

6.2(m) 

4.23 

4.9 

4.24 

6.l(h) 
2.1 

10.11 
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ARTICLE I1 
THE MERGER: OTHER TRANSACTIONS 

Section 2.1 The Merger. Upon the terms and subject to the conditions of this 
Agreement, at the Effective Time (as defined in Section 2.2), PNT will be merged with and into 
SUG in accordance with the laws of the State of Delaware and the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania. SUG will be the surviving corporation in the Merger (the “Surviving Corporation”) 
and will continue its corporate existence under the laws of the State of Delaware. The Merger 
will have the effect as provided in the applicable provisions of the DGCL and the PBCL. Without 
limiting the generality of the foregoing, upon the Merger, all the rights, privileges, immunities, 
powers and franchises of PNT and SUG will vest in the Surviving Corporation and all obligations, 
duties, debts and liabilities of PNT and SUG will be the obligations, duties, debts and liabilities 
of the Surviving Corporation. 

Section 2.2 Effective Time of the Merger. On the Closing Date, with respect to the 
Merger, (i) a duly executed certificate of merger complying with the requirements of the DGCL 
will be executed and filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware and (ii) a duly 
executed articles of merger and plan of merger complying with the requirements of the PBCL will 
be filed with the Secretary of State of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The Merger will 
become effective upon filing the certificate of merger with the Secretary of State of the State of 
Delaware and the articles of merger and plan of merger with the Secretary of State of the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (the “Effective Time”). 

Section 2.3 Closing. Unless this Agreement has been terminated and the transactions 
contemplated herein have been abandoned pursuant to Article VI11 hereof, the closing of the 
transactions contemplated by this Agreement (the “Closing”) will take place at 1O:OO a m . ,  Eastern 
Time, on the Closing Date to be specified by the parties, which shall be no later than the tenth 
business day after satisfaction or waiver of all of the conditions set forth in Article VI1 hereof 
(other than Sections 7.l(a), 7.l(b), 7.l(c), 7.1(D, 7.l(g), 7.l(h), 7.l(k), 7.1(1), 7.2(a), 7.2(b), 
7.2(c), 7.2(e), 7.2(f) and 7.2(h), which shall be satisfied or waived on the Closing Date) at the 
offices of Fleischman and Walsh, L.L.P., counsel to SUG, unless another date or place is agreed 
to in writing by the parties hereto. 

Section 2.4 Certificate of Incorporation; By-laws. Pursuant to the Merger, the 
Restated Certificate of Incorporation of SUG, as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time, 
shall be the Certificate of Incorporation of the Surviving Corporation until thereafter amended as 
provided by law and (ii) the By-laws of SUG as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time, 
shall be the By-laws of the Surviving Corporation until thereafter amended as provided by law. 

Section 2.5 Directors and Officers. The directors and officers of SUG immediately 
prior to the Effective Time will be the directors and officers of the Surviving Corporation, each 
to hold office in accordance with the Certificate of Incorporation and By-laws of the Surviving 
Corporation. 
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Section 2.6 Other Transactions. Immediately after the Effective Time on the Closing 
Date, the Surviving Corporation shall cause Honesdale Gas Company (“Honesdale”), a wholly-owned 
Subsidiary of PG Energy, Inc., a Subsidiary of PNT (“PG Energy”), to merge with and into PG 
Energy by complying with the requirements of the PBCL (the “Honesdale Merger”). Immediately 
after the consummation of the Honesdale Merger on the Closing Date, the Surviving Corporation 
shall cause PG Energy to merge with and into SUG, as the Surviving Corporation, by complying with 
the requirements of the PBCL and the DGCL (the “PG Energy Merger”). The Merger, the 
Honesdale Merger and the PG Energy Merger shall hereinafter be referred to collectively as the 
“Mergers.” 

ARTICLE I11 
CONVERSION OF SHARES 

Section 3.1 Effect of the Merger. As of the Effective Time, by virtue of the Merger 
and without any action on the part of the holders of any shares of PNT Common Stock: 

(a) Each issued and outstanding share of PNT Common Stock (other than 
Dissenting Shares (as defined in Section 3.3) covered by Section 3.3) and each associated stock 
purchase right (collectively, the “PNT Rights”) issued pursuant to the Rights Agreement, dated 
as of April 26, 1995 between PNT and Chemical Bank, as Rights Agent (the “PNT Rights 
Agreement”), which will be terminated at the Effective Time (any reference in this Agreement to 
PNT Common Stock will be deemed to include the associated PNT Rights), will be converted into 
the right of each holder thereof to receive the following consideration (the “Merger 
Consideration”) : 

(1) that number of fully paid and nonassessable shares of SUG Common 
Stock (the “Stock Consideration”) equal to $32.00 divided by the Conversion Price (as 
defined below) rounded to the nearest hundred-thousandth (the “Exchange Ratio”); and 

(2) an amount in cash without interest (the “Cash Consideration”) equal 
to the sum of $3.00, plus, if the Average Trading Price of SUG Common Stock as of the 
Closing Date is less than $19.46250, the product of (x) the amount of such shortfall not 
to exceed $2.16250 and (y) the Exchange Ratio. 

“Conversion Price” shall mean the Average Trading Price of SUG Common Stock as of 
the Closing Date. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Conversion Price as calculated 
pursuant to the preceding sentence and without regard to this sentence (i) is less than the 
Minimum Value, then the Conversion Price will be equal to the “Minimum Value,” or (ii) 
is greater than the “Maximum Value,” then the Conversion Price will be equal to the 
“Maximum Value.” “Minimum Value” will be $19.46250 and “Maximum Value” will be 
$22.70625. 

Each holder of PNT Common Stock shall surrender all such holder’s certificates formerly 
representing ownership of PNT Common Stock in the manner provided in Section 3.2. All such 
shares of PNT Common Stock, when so converted, shall no longer be outstanding and shall be 
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canceled and automatically converted into the right to receive the Merger Consideration therefor 
upon the surrender of such certificate in accordance with Section 3.2. Any payment made 
pursuant to this Section 3.l(a) shall be made net of applicable withholding taxes to the extent such 
withholding is required by law. 

(b) No fractional share of SUG Common Stock shall be issued in connection 
with the Merger. Each holder of shares of PNT Common Stock shall be entitled to receive in lieu 
of any fractional share of SUG Common Stock to which such holder otherwise would have been 
entitled pursuant to this Section 3.1 (after taking into account all shares of PNT Common Stock 
then held of record by such holder) a cash payment in an amount equal to the product of (i) the 
fractional interest of a share of SUG Common Stock to which such holder otherwise would have 
been entitled and (ii) the closing price of a share of SUG Common Stock on the NYSE on the 
trading day immediately prior to the Effective Time. Payment of such amounts shall be made by 
SUG. 

Section 3.2 Exchange of PhT Common Stock Certificates and PG Preferred Stock 
Certificates. 

(a) SUG’s registrar and transfer agent, or such other bank or trust company 
as may be selected by SUG and be reasonably acceptable to PNT, will act as paying agent 
(“Paying Agent”) for the holders of PNT Common Stock in connection with the Merger, pursuant 
to an agreement providing for the matters set forth in this Section 3.2 and such other matters as 
may be appropriate and the terms of which shall be reasonably satisfactory to SUG and PNT, to 
receive the consideration to which holders of PNT Common Stock become entitled pursuant to 
Section 3.1. Contemporaneous with the Effective Time, SUG will deposit in trust with the Paying 
Agent for the benefit of holders of PNT Common Stock, the aggregate Cash Consideration and 
the SUG Common Stock necessary to pay the aggregate Merger Consideration as contemplated 
by Section 3.l(a) with respect to each share of PNT Common Stock. 

(b) At the Effective Time of the Merger, SUG will instruct the Paying Agent 
to promptly, and in any event not later than three (3) business days following the Effective Time, 
mail (and to make available for collection by hand) to each holder of record of a certificate or 
certificates, which immediately prior to the Effective Time represented outstanding shares of PNT 
Common Stock (the “certificates”), whose shares of PNT Common Stock were converted pursuant 
to Section 3.l(a) into the right to receive the Merger Consideration (i) a letter of transmittal 
(whjch shall specify that delivery shall be effected, and risk of loss and title to the Certificates 
shall pass, only upon delivery of the Certificates to the Paying Agent and shall be in such form 
and have such other provisions as SUG may reasonably specify) and (ii) instructions (which shall 
provide that at the election of the surrendering holder Certificates may be surrendered, and 
payment therefor collected, by hand delivery) for use in effecting the surrender of the Certificates 
in exchange for payment of the Merger consideration. Upon surrender of a Certificate for 
cancellation to the Paying Agent or to such other agent or agents as may be appointed by SUG, 
together with such letter of transmittal, duly executed, the holder of such Certificate shall be 
entided to receive in exchange therefor the Merger Consideration for each share of PNT Common 
Stock formerly represented by such Certificate, to be mailed (or made available for collection by 
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hand if so elected by the surrendering holder) within three (3) business days of receipt thereof, 
and the Certificate so surrendered shall forthwith be canceled. If payment of the Merger 
Consideration is to be made to a Person other than the Person in whose name the surrendered 
Certificate is registered, it shall be a condition of payment that the Certificate so surrendered shall 
be properly endorsed or shall be otherwise in proper form for transfer and that the Person 
requesting such payment shall have paid any transfer and other Taxes required by reason of the 
payment of the Merger Consideration to a Person other than the registered holder of the Certificate 
surrendered or shall have established to the satisfaction of the Surviving Corporation that such Tax 
either has been paid or is not applicable. Until surrendered as contemplated by this Section 3.2, 
each Certificate (other than Certificates representing PNT Common Stock held by SUG or 
Dissenting Shares) shall be deemed at any time after the Effective Time to represent only the right 
to receive the Merger Consideration as contemplated by this Section 3.2. 

(c) The Paying Agent shall invest the funds representing the aggregate Cash 
Consideration, as directed by SUG, in (i) direct obligations of the United States of America, (ii) 
obligations for which the full faith and credit of the Unitd States of America is pledged to provide 
for the payment of principal and interest or (iii) commercial paper rated the highest quality by 
either Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., or Standard and Poor’s Ratings Services, a division of The 
McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. Any net earnings with respect to such finds shall be the property 
of and paid over to SUG as and when requested by SUG; provided. however, that any such 
investment or any such payment of earnings may not delay the receipt by holders of Certificates 
of the Merger Consideration. 

(d) In the event any Certificate shall have been lost, stolen or destroyed, upon 
the making of an affidavit of that fact by the Person claiming such Certificate to be lost, stolen 
or destroyed, the Paying Agent will issue in exchange for such lost, stolen or destroyed Certificate 
the Merger Consideration deliverable in respect thereof as determined in accordance with this 
Article 111, provided that the Person to whom the Merger Consideration is paid shall, as a 
condition precedent to the payment thereof, give the Paying Agent a bond in such sum as it may 
o r d d y  require and indemnify the Surviving Corporation in a manner satisfactory to it against 
any claim that may be made against the Surviving Corporation with respect to the Certificate 
claimed to have been lost, stolen or destroyed. 

(e)  After the Effective Time, the stock transfer books of PNT shall be closed 
and there shall be no transfers on the stock transfer books of the Surviving Corporation of shares 
of PNT Common Stock that were outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time. If, after 
the Effective Time, Certificates are presented to the Surviving Corporation, they shall be canceled 
and exchanged for the Merger Consideration as provided in this Article 111. 

(f) Any portion of the funds held by the Paying Agent that remain undistributed 
to the former shareholders of PNT for eighteen (18) months after the Effective Time shall be 
delivered by the Paying Agent to the Surviving Corporation, which shall thereafter act as the 
Paying Agent, and any former shareholders of PNT who have not complied with this Article 111 
prior to eighteen (18) months after the Effective Time shall thereafter look only as a general 
creditor to the Surviving Corporation for payment of their claim for the Merger Consideration. 
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(g) The Surviving Corporation shall not be liable to any holder of PNT 
Common Stock for Merger Consideration delivered to a public official pursuant to any applicable 
abandonment, escheat or similar law. Any amounts remaining unclaimed by holders of any such 
shares of PNT Common Stock seven years after the Effective Time (or such earlier date 
immediately prior to the time at which such amounts would otherwise escheat to or become 
property of any Governmental M y )  shall, to the extent permitted by applicabIe law, become the 
property of the Surviving Corporation, free and clear of any claims or interest of any such holders 
or their successors, assigns or personal representatives previously entitled thereto. 

Section 3.3 Dissenting Shares. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the 
contrary, shares of PNT Common Stock outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time the 
holder of which filed with PNT, prior to the vote to secure the PNT Shareholders’ Approval, a 
written notice of intention to demand payment (collectively, the “Dissenting Shares”), shall not 
be converted into the right to receive the Merger Consideration, as provided in Section 3.l(a) 
hereof, unless and until such holder fails to perfect or effectively withdraws or otherwise loses his 
right to appraisal and payment under the PBCL. If, after the Effective Time, any holder of PNT 
Common Stock fails to perfect or effectively withdraws or loses his right to appraisal, such 
Dissenting Shares shall thereupn be treated as if they had been converted as of the Effective Time 
into the right to receive the Merger Consideration to which such holder is entitled, without interest 
or dividends thereon. PNT shall give SUG prompt notice of any demands received by PNT for 
appraisal of PNT Common Stock, and, prior to the Effective Time, SUG shall have the right to 
participate in all negotiations and proceedings with respect to such demands. Prior to the 
Effective Time, PNT shall not, except with the prior written consent of SUG, make any payment 
with respect to or offer to settle, any such demands. 

Section 3.4 PNT Option Plans. Each outstanding option to purchase shares of PNT 
Common Stock or other similar interest (collectively, the “PNT Options”), granted under any stock 
option plans or under any other plan or arrangement of any Acquired Company (the “Acquired 
Company Option Plans”) together with the applicable exercise prices, are disclosed in Section 5.18 
of the PNT Disclosure Schedule. Unless otherwise agreed by the parties hereto, each PNT Option 
under the PNT 1992 Stock Option Plan as to which the holder has consented to a conversion to 
cash and each PNT Option under the PNT Stock Incentive Plan that is outstanding at the Effective 
Time shall be converted at the Effective Time into a right to receive in respect thereof a cash 
payment in an amount equal to the product of (x) the amount by which (i) the sum of the Cash 
Consideration plus the product of (a) the Exchange Ratio and (b) the closing price of a share of 
SUG Common Stock on the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE“) on the trading day 
immediately prior to the date on which the Effective Time occurs exceeds (ii) the exercise price 
of such PNT Option (if less than (i)) and (y) the number of shares of PNT Common Stock subject 
thereto. Such cash payment (net of applicable withholding taxes) shall be made on the Closing 
Date or as promptly thereafter as reasonably practicable. PNT shall use its reasonable best efforts 
to obtain the consent of holders of options outstanding under the 1992 Stock Option Plan to a 
conversion to cash in accordance herewith. PNT Options under the 1992 Stock Option Plan as 
to which consent is not obtained shall be converted into such number of options to purchase SUG 
Common Stock such that the aggregate option value, based on the Merger Consideration, and the 
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aggregate exercise price are preserved and otherwise having the same terms as the PNT Options 
being converted. 

ARTICLE IV 
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

OF SUG 

SUG, as to SUG and its Subsidiaries, represents and warrants to PNT that: 

Section 4.1 Organization, Existence and Qualification. SUG is a corporation duly 
incorporated, validly existing, and in good standing under the laws of the State of Delaware, with 
full corporate power and authority to conduct its business as it is now being conducted, to own 
or use the properties and assets that it purports to own or use, to perform its obligations under all 
Contracts to which it is a party, and to execute and deliver this Agreement. SUG is duly qualified 
to do business as a foreign corporation and is in good standing under the laws of each state or 
other jurisdiction in which either the ownership or use of the properties owned or used by it, or 
the nature of the business conducted by it, requires such qualification as a foreign corporation 
except such failures to be so qualified or in good standing as are not, individually or in the 
aggregate, reasonably likely to have an SUG Material Adverse Effect. 

Section 4.2 Capitalization. The authorized capital stock of SUG consists of (i) 
50,000,000 shares of SUG Common Stock, of which 29,745,234 shares were issued and 
outstanding on May 28, 1999, and (ii) 1,500,000 shares of Cumulative Preferred Stock, no par 
value, none of which are issued or outstanding. The issued and outstanding shares of SUG 
Common Stock have been validly issued and are fully paid and nonassessable. The shares of SUG 
Common Stock to be issued as part of the Merger Consideration have been duly authorized and 
when issued and delivered in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, will have been validly 
issued and will be fully paid and nonassessable and the issuance thereof is not subject to any 
preemptive or other similar right. Except as specifically described in the SUG SEC Documents 
delivered to PNT prior to the date of this Agreement, as of the date of this Agreement, no shares 
of SUG Common Stock are held, in mzisury or otherwise, by SUG or any of its Subsidiaries and 
except as set forth in Section 4.2 of the SUG Disclosure Schedule, there are no outstanding (i) 
securities convertible into SUG Common Stock or other capital stock of SUG or any of its 
material Subsidiaries, (ii) warrants or options to purchase SUG Common Stock or other securities 
of SUG or any of its material Subsidiaries or (iii) commitments to issue shares of SUG Common 
Stock (other than pursuant to the Merger) or other securities of SUG or any of its material 
Subsidiaries. 

Section 4.3 Subsidiaries; Investments. Except as set forth in Section 4.3 of the SUG 
Disclosure Schedule, as of the date of this Agreement, SUG has no Subsidiaries or investments 
in any Person except for marketable securities reflected in the SUG SEC Documents delivered to 
PNT prior to the date of this Agreement, and SUG is the registered owner and holder of all of the 
issued and outstanding shares of capital stock of its Subsidiaries and has good title to such shares. 
The outstanding capital stock of each material Subsidiary of SUG has been validly issued and is 
fully paid and nonassessable. All such capital stock owned by SUG or any of its Subsidiaries is 
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free and clear of any Encumbrance (except for any Encumbrance imposed by federal or state 
securities laws). 

Section 4.4 Authority Relative to this Agreement and Binding Effect. The 
execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the Related Documents by SUG have 
been duly authorized by all requisite corporate action, except, as of the date of this Agreement, 
for the SUG Shareholders’ Approval. Except as set forth in Section 4.4 of the SUG Disclosure 
Schedule, the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the Related Documents 
by SUG will not result in a violation or breach of any term or provision of, or constitute a default 
or accelerate the performance required under, the Organizational Documents of SUG, any 
indenture, mortgage, deed of trust, security agreement, loan agreement, or Material Contract to 
which SUG is a party or by which its assets are bound, or violate any order, writ, injunction or 
decree of any Governmental Body, with such exceptions as are not, individually or in the 
aggregate, reasonably likely to have an SUG Material Adverse Effect. This Agreement constitutes 
and the Related Documents to be executed by SUG when executed and delivered will constitute 
valid and binding obligations of SUG, enforceable against SUG in accordance with their terms, 
except as enforceability may be limited by (i) bankruptcy or similar laws from time to time in 
effect affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally or (ii) the availability of equitable 
remedies generally. 

Section 4.5 Governmental Approvals. Except for the Missouri Public Service 
Commission (with respect to the Mergers), the Florida Public Service Commission (with respect 
to the securities issued and debt assumed by SUG in connection with the Mergers), the 
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission and as required by the HSR Act, no approval or 
authorization of any Governmental Body with respect to performance under this Agreement by 
SUG is required to be obtained by SUG in connection with the execution and delivery by SUG 
of this Agreement or the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, the 
failure to obtain which are, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably likely to have an SUG 
Material Adverse Effect. 

Section 4.6 Public Utility Holding Company Status; Regulation as a Public Utility. 
SUG is a “gas utility company” (as such term is defined in PUHCA). SUG indirectly owns a 
minority interest in a “foreign utility company’’ (as such term is defined in PUHCA) that is exempt 
from, and is deemed not to be a public utility company for purposes of, PUHCA pursuant to 
Section 33 thereof with respect to which SUG has filed with the SEC a Form U-57 notification 
of foreign utility company stam. Except as stated above in this Section 4.6, neither SUG nor any 
of its Subsidiaries is a “holding company,” a “subsidiary company,” a “public utility company” or 
an “affiliate” of a “public utility company,” or a “holding company” within the meaning of such 
terms in PUHCA. 

Section 4.7 Compliance with Legal Requirements; Governmental Authorizations. 

Except as set forth in Section 4.7 of the SUG Disclosure Schedule or 
specifically described in the SUG SEC Documents delivered to PNT prior to the date of this 
Agreement, and subject to Section 4.19 of this Agreement, to the Knowledge of SUG, SUG is not 

(a) 
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in violation of any Legal Requirement that is applicable to it, to the conduct or operation of its 
business, or to the ownership or use of any of its assets, other than such violations, if any, which 
are not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably likely to have an SUG Material Adverse 
Effect. 

(b) The SUG SEC Documents delivered to PNT prior to the date of this 
Agreement accurately describe all material regulation of SUG that relates to the utility business 
of SUG. Except as set forth in Section 4.7 of the SUG Disclosure Schedule, SUG has and is in 
material compliance with all material Governmental Authorizations necessary to conduct its 
business and to own, operate and use all of its assets as currently conducted. 

Section 4.8 Legal Procedngs; Orders. Except as set forth in Section 4.8 of the SUG 
Disclosure Schedule or as specifically described in the SUG SEC Documents delivered to PNT 
prior to the date of this Agreement, there is no pending Proceeding: 

(1) that has been commenced by or against, or that otherwise relates to, 
SUG that is reasonably likely to have an SUG Material Adverse Effect; or 

(2) as of the date of this Agreement, that challenges, or that may have 
the effect of preventing, delaying, making illegal, or otherwise interfering with, 
the Mergers or any of the transactions contemplated hereby. 

To the Knowledge of SUG, no such Proceedings, audits or investigations have been Threatened 
that are, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably likely to have an SUG Material Adverse 
Effect. 

Section 4.9 SEC Documents. SUG has made (and, with respect to such documents 
filed after the date hereof through the Closing Date, will make) available to PNT a true and 
complete copy of each report, schedule, registration statement (other than on Form S-8), and 
definitive proxy statement filed by SUG with the SEC since June 30, 1998 and through the 
Closing Date in substantially the form filed with the SEC (the “SUG SEC Documents”). As of 
their respective dates, the SUG SEC Documents, including without limitation any financial 
statements or schedules included therein, complied (or will comply), in all material respects with 
the requirements of the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, as the case may be, and the rules and 
regulations of the SEC thereunder applicable to such SUG SEC Documents, and did not (or will 
not) contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be 
stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under 
which they were made, not misleading. The audited consolidated financial statements and 
unaudited interim financial statements of SUG included in the SUG SEC Documents (collectively, 
the “SUG Financial Statements”) were (or will be) prepared in accordance with GAAP applied on 
a consistent basis (except as may be indicated therein or in the notes thereto and except with 
respect to unaudited statements as permitted by Form 10-Q) and fairly present (or will fairly 
present) in all material respects the fmncial position of SUG as of the respective dates thereof or 
the results of operations and cash flows for the respective periods then ended, as the case may be, 
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subject, in the case of unaudited interim financial statements, to normal, recurring adjustments 
which are not material in the aggregate. 

Section 4.10 Taxes. Except as set forth in Section 4.10 of the SUG Disclosure Schedule: 

(a) SUG and its Subsidiaries have timely filed all United States federal, state 
and local income Tax Returns required to be filed by or with respect to them or requests for 
extensions to file such Tax Returns have been timely filed, granted and have not expired, and 
SUG and its Subsidiaries have timely paid and discharged all Taxes due in connection with or with 
respect to the p e r i d  or transactions covered by such Tax Returns and have paid all other Taxes 
as are due or made adequate provision therefor in accordance with GAAP except where the 
failures to so fie, pay or discharge are not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably likely to 
have an SUG Material Adverse Effect. There are no pending audits or other examinations relating 
to any Tax matters. There are no Tax liens on any assets of SUG or its Subsidiaries. As of the 
date of this Agreement, SUG and its Subsidiaries have not granted any waiver of any statute of 
limitations with respect to, or any extension of a period for the assessment of, any Tax. The 
accruals and reserves (including deferred taxes) reflected in the SUG Balance Sheet are in all 
material respects adequate to cover all material Taxes accruable through the date thereof (including 
interest and penalties, if any, thereon and Taxes being contested) in accordance with GAAF’. 

(b) Neither SUG nor any of its Subsidiaries is obligated under any Contract with 
respect to industrial development bonds or other obligations with respect to which the excludability 
from gross income of the holder for federal or state income tax purposes could be affected by the 
Merger or any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. 

Section 4.11 Intellectual Property. SUG has no Knowledge of (i) any infringement or 
claimed infringement by it of any patent rights or copyrights of others or (ii) any infringement of 
the patent or patent license rights, trademarks or copyrights owned by or under license to it, 
except for any such infringements of the type described in clause (i) or (ii) that are not, 
individually or in the aggregate, reasonably likely to have an SUG Material Adverse Effect. 

Section 4.12 Title to Assets. Except (i) as set forth in Section 4.12 of the SUG 
Disclosure Schedule, (ii) as specifically described in the SUG SEC Documents delivered to PNT 
prior to the date of this Agreement, (iii) as set forth in Section 4.19 of this Agreement or (iv) as 
set forth in Section 4.19 of the SUG Disclosure Schedule, none of SUG’s assets are subject to any 
Encumbrance other than SUG Permitted Liens. 

Section 4.13 Indebtedness. All outstanding principal amounts of indebtedness for 
borrowed money of SUG as of June 4, 1999 are set forth in Section 4.13 of the SUG Disclosure 
Schedule. 

Section 4.14 Machinery and Equipment. Except for normal wear and tear and with such 
other exceptions as are not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably likely to have an SUG 
Material Adverse Effect, SUG’s machinery and equipment is in good operating condition and in 
a state of reasonable maintenance and repair. 
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Section 4.15 Material Contracts. Except as described in Section 4.15 of the SUG 
Disclosure Schedule or as specifically described in the SUG SEC Documents delivered to PNT 
prior to the date of this Agreement, and with such exceptions as are not, individually or in the 
aggregate, reasonably likely to have an SUG Material Adverse Effect, all of SUG’s Material 
Contracts are in full force and effect and neither SUG nor, to the Knowledge of SUG, any other 
party thereto is in default thereunder nor has any event occurred or is any event occurring that, 
with notice or the passage of time or otherwise, is reasonably likely to give rise to an event of 
default thereunder by any party thereto. 

Section 4.16 Insurance. Section 4.16 of the SUG Disclosure Schedule sets forth a list 
of all policies of insurance held by SUG as of the date of this Agreement. Since June 30, 1994, 
the assets and the business of SUG have been continuously insured with what SUG reasonably 
believes are reputable insurers against all risks and in such amounts normally insured against by 
companies of the same type and in the same line of business as SUG. As of the date of this 
Agreement, no notice of cancellation, non-renewal or material increase in premiums has been 
received by SUG with respect to such policies, and SUG has no Knowledge of any fact or 
circumstance that could reasonably be expected to form the basis for any cancellation, non-renewal 
or material increase in premiums, except for such cancellations, non-renewals and increases which 
are not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably likely to have an SUG Material Adverse 
Effect. SUG is not in default with respect to any provision contained in any such policy or binder 
nor has there been any failure to give notice or to present any claim relating to the business or the 
assets of SUG under any such policy or binder in a timely fashion or in the manner or detail 
required by the policy or binder, except for such defaults or failures which are not, individually 
or in the aggregate, reasonably likely to have an SUG Material Adverse Effect. As of the date of 
this Agreement, there are no outstanding unpaid premiums (except premiums not yet due and 
payable), and no notice of cancellation or renewal with respect to, or disallowance of any claim 
under, any such policy or binder has been received by SUG as of the date hereof, except for such 
non-payments of premiums, cancellations, renewals or disallowances which are not, individually 
or in the aggregate, reasonably likely to have an SUG Material Adverse Effect. 

Section 4.17 Employees. Except as set forth on Section 4.17 of the SUG Disclosure 
Schedule, as of the date of this Agreement, no labor union or other collective bargaining unit has 
been certified or recognized by SUG or its Subsidiaries, and, to the Knowledge of SUG, as of the 
date of this Agreement, there are no elections, organizing drives or material controversies pending 
or Threatened between SUG or its Subsidiaries and any labor union or other collective bargaining 
unit representing SUG’s or its Subsidiaries’ employees. There is no pending or, to the Knowledge 
of SUG, Threatened labor practice complaint, arbitration, labor strike or other material labor 
dispute (excluding grievances) involving SUG or its Subsidiaries which are, individually or in the 
aggregate, reasonably likely to have an SUG Material Adverse Effect. Except as described in 
Section 4.18 or specifically described in the SUG SEC Documents delivered to PNT prior to the 
date of this Agreement, as of the date of this Agreement, neither SUG nor its Subsidiaries are a 
party to any employment agreement with any employee pertaining to SUG or any of its 
Subsidiaries. 
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Section 4.18 Employee Benefit Plans. 

(a) Each of the SUG Benefit Plans has been operated and adminktered in all 
material respects in accordance with its governing documents and applicable federal and state laws 
(including, but not limited to, ERISA and the IRC). For purposes of this Agreement, “SUG 
Benefit Plans” shall mean all employee retirement, welfare or other benefit plans, agreements, 
practices, policies, programs, or arrangements identifed and described in Section 4.18 of the SUG 
Disclosure Schedule, which sets forth all SUG Benefit Plans that are applicable to any employee 
of SUG or its Subsidiaries employed by SUG or its Subsidiaries thirty (30) days prior to the date 
of this Agreement or maintained by or contributed to by SUG or its Subsidiaries. 

(b) As to any SUG Benefit Plan subject to Title IV of ERISA, there is no event 
or condition which presents the material risk of plan termination, no accumulated funding 
deficiency, whether or not waived, within the meaning of Section 302 of ERISA or Section 412 
of the IRC has been incurred for which any liability is outstanding, no reportable event within the 
meaning of Section 4043 of ERISA (for which the notice requirements of Regulation 54043 
promulgated by the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation (“PBGC”) have not been waived) has 
occurred within the last six years, no notice of intent to terminate the SUG Benefit Plan has been 
given under Section 4041 of ERISA, no proceeding has been instituted under Section 4042 of 
ERISA to terminate the SUG Benefit Plan, there has been no termination or partial termination 
of the SUG Benefit Plan within the meaning of Section 411(d)(3) of the IRC within the last six 
years, except with respect to the conversion of the retirement income plan to a cash balance plan 
for which full vesting was granted with respect to affected employees, no event described in 
Sections 4062 or 4063 of ERISA has occurred, all PBGC premiums have been timely paid and 
no liability to the PBGC has been incurred, except for PBGC premiums not yet due. 

(c) There is no matter pending (other than qualification determination 
applications and filings and other required periodic filings) with respect to any of the SUG Benefit 
Plans before the IRS, the Department of Labor, the PBGC or in or before any other governmental 
authority. 

(d) Each trust funding an SUG Benefit Plan, which trust is intended to be 
exempt from federal income taxation pursuant to Section 501(c)(9) of the IRC, satisfies the 
requirements of such section and has, whenever required by law, received a favorable 
determination letter from the IRS regarding such exempt status and, to the Knowledge of SUG has 
not, since receipt of the most recent favorable determination letter, been amended or operated in 
any way which would adversely affect such exempt status. 

(e) With respect to any SUG Benefit Plan or any other “employee benefit plan” 
as defined in Section 3(3) of ERISA which is established, sponsored, maintained or contributed 
to, or has been established, sponsored, maintained or contributed to or, to the Knowledge of SUG, 
with respect to any such plan which has been established, sponsored, maintained or contributed 
to within six years prior to the Closing Date, by SUG or its Subsidiaries or any corporation, trade, 
business or entity under common control or being a part of an affiliated service group with SUG, 
within the meaning of Section 414(b), (c) or (m) of the IRC or Section 4001 of ERISA (“SUG 
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Commonly Controlled Entity”), (i) no withdrawal liability, within the meaning of Section 4201 
of ERISA, has been incurred, which withdrawal liability has not been satisfied and no such 
withdrawal liability is reasonably expected to be incurred, (ii) no liability under Title IV of ERISA 
(including, but not limited to, liability to the PBGC) has been incurred by SUG or any SUG 
Commonly Controlled Entity, which liability has not been satisfied (other than for PBGC 
premiums not yet due), (iii) no accumulated funding deficiency, whether or not waived, within 
the meaning of Section 302 of ERISA or Section 412 of the IRC has been incurred for which any 
liability is outstanding, (iv) there has been no failure to make any contribution (including 
installments) to such plan required by Section 302 of ERISA and Section 412 of the IRC which 
has resulted in a lien under Section 302 of ERISA or Section 412 of the IRC and for which any 
liability is currently outstanding, (v) to the Knowledge of SUG, no action, omission or transaction 
has occurred with respect to any such plan or any other SUG Benefit Plan which could subject 
SUG or the plan or trust forming a part thereof to a material civil liability or penalty under ERISA 
or other applicable laws, or a material Tax under the IRC, (vi) any such plan which is a Group 
Health Plan has complied in all material respects with the provisions of Sections 601-608 of 
ERISA and Section 4980B of the IRC, (vii) there are no pending or, to the Knowledge of SUG, 
Threatened claims by or on behalf of any such plan or any other SUG Benefit Plan, by any 
employees, former employees or plan beneficiaries covered by such plan or otherwise by or on 
behalf of any person involving any such plan (other than routine non-contested claims for benefits) 
which could result in a material liability to SUG and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, and (viii) 
neither SUG nor any SUG Commonly Controlled Entity has engaged in, or is a successor or 
parent corporation to any entity or person that has engaged in, a transaction described in Section 
4069 of ERISA. 

(0 The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the consummation of the 
transactions Contemplated hereby will not (i) require SUG to make a later contribution to, payment 
or transfer of money or property or payment of greater benefits under or with respect to any SUG 
Benefit Plan than SUG or its Subsidiaries are currently required by the terms and provisions of 
such SUG Benefit Plan to do, (ii) create or give rise to any additional eligibility for participation, 
vested rights benefits or service credits under any SUG Benefit Plan, or (iii) in and of themselves 
cause or result in SUG incurring any civil liability or penalty under ERISA or other applicable 
laws or Tax under the IRC. 

(g) SUG is not a party to any Contract nor has it established any policy or 
practice, which would require SUG to make a payment or provide any other form of compensation 
or benefit to any Person performing (or who within the past twelve months performed) services 
for SUG during or upon termination of such services which would not be payable or provided in 
the absence of the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. 

(h) Except as would affect unionized employees and/or retirees who had been 
unionized employees, each SUG Benefit Plan which is an “employee welfare benefit plan,” as such 
term is defined in Section 3(1) of ERISA, may be unilaterally amended or terminated in its 
entirety without any liability being incurred by SUG or any affiliate of SUG, except as to benefits 
accrued thereunder prior to such amendment or termination. 
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(i) Section 4.18 of the SUG Disclosure Schedule contains a true and complete 
list as of the date of this Agreement of each SUG Benefit Plan, all stock option plans of SUG and 
any management, employment, deferred compensation, severance (including any payment, right 
or benefit resulting from a change in control), bonus or other contract for p r s o ~ l  services with 
any current or former officer, director or employee, any consulting contract with any person who 
prior to entering this such contract was a director or officer of SUG or any plan, agreement, 
arrangement or understanding similar to any of the foregoing. 

0) SUG has not contributed nor been obligated to contribute to any "multi- 
employer plan" within the meaning of Section 3(37) of ERISA withii the last six years and has 
no outstanding liability with respect to any such plan. 

Section 4.19 Environmental Matters. Except as set forth in Section 4.19 of the SUG 
Disclosure Schedule or as specifically described in the SUG SEC Documents delivered to PNT 
prior to the date of this Agreement, and with such other exceptions as are not, individually or in 
the aggregate, reasonably likely to have an SUG Material Adverse Effect: 

(a) To the Knowledge of SUG, no Facility owned or operated by SUG is 
currently, or was at any time, listed on the National Priorities List promulgated under CERCLA, 
or on any comparable state list, and SUG has not received any written notification of potential or 
actual liability or a written request for information from any Person under or relating to CERCLA 
or any comparable Legal Requirement with respect to SUG or the Facilities; 

(b) To the Knowledge of SUG, SUG and any Person for whose conduct SUG 
is reasonably likely to be held responsible, and at all times has been, in material compliance with 
any Environmental Law. SUG has not received any Order, notice, or other communication from 
(i) any Governmental Body or private citizen acting in the public interest, or (ii) the current or 
prior owner or operator of any Facilities, of any violation or failure to comply with any 
Environmental Law, or of any obligation to undertake or bear the cost of any environmental 
cleanup, or with respect to any property or Facility at which Hazardous Materials generated by 
SUG or any other Person for whose conduct SUG may be held responsible were transported for 
disposal; 

(c) There are no pending or, to the Knowledge of SUG, Threatened claims or 
Encumbrances arising under or pursuant to any Environmental Law with respect to or affecting 
any of the Facilities or any other properties and assets (whether real, personal, or mixed) in which 
SUG has or had a direct or indirect interest (including by ownership or use); and 

(d) SUG has delivered or made available to PNT true and complete copies and 
results of any environmental site assessments, studies, analyses, tests or monitoring possessed by 
SUG and of which it has Knowledge pertaining to Hazardous Materials or Hazardous Activities 
in, on or under the Facilities, or concerning compliance by SUG or any other Person for whose 
conduct SUG is reasonably likely to be held responsible, with Environmental Laws. 
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Section4.20 No Material Adverse Change. Except as described in the SUG SEC 
Documents that have been provided to PNT prior to the date of this Agreement, since the date of 
the SUG Balance Sheet, there has not been any SUG Material Adverse Effect, and no events have 
occumd or circumstances exist that are, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably likely to have 
an SUG Material Adverse Effect, except that any SUG Material Adverse Effect that results from 
or relates to (a) general business or economic conditions, (b) conditions generally affecting the 
industries in which SUG competes or (c) the announcement of the transactions contemplated by 
this Agreement shall be disregarded. 

Section4.21 Brokers. SUG is not a party to, or in any way obligated under any 
Contract, and there are no outstanding claims against SUG, for the payment of any broker’s or 
finder’s fees in connection with the origin, negotiation, execution or performance of this 
Agreement. 

Section 4.22 Regulatory Proceedings. Except as set forth in Section 4.22 of the SUG 
Disclosure Schedule, other than purchase gas adjustment provisions, SUG (a) has no rates that 
have been or are being collected subject to refund, pending final resolution of any rate proceeding 
pending before a Governmental Body or on appeal to the courts, or (b) is a party to any rate 
proceeding before a Governmental Body that are, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably 
likely to result in any Orders having an SUG Material Adverse Effect. 

Section 4.23 Proxy Statement; Registration Statement. None of the information 
supplied or to be supplied to PNT by or on behalf of SUG for inclusion in the proxy statement, 
in definitive form, relating to the PNT Meeting (as defined in Section 6.10)) to be held in 
connection with the Merger (the “PNT Proxy Statement”), supplied or to be supplied by or on 
behalf of SUG in the proxy statement, in definitive form, relating to the SUG Meeting (as defined 
in Section 6.2(m)) to be held in connection with the Merger (the “SUG Proxy Statement”) or 
supplied by or on behalf of SUG in the Registration Statement on Form S-4 (and any amendments 
thereto) to be filed by SUG with the SEC pursuant to the Securities Act to register the shares of 
SUG Common Stock constituting the Stock Consideration (the “Registration Statement”) will, in 
the case of the Registration Statement, at the effective time of the Registration Statement, at any 
time the Registration Statement is amended or supplemented, at the date the PNT Proxy Statement 
is first mailed to PNT’s shareholders, at any time the PNT Proxy Statement is amended or 
supplemented, at the time of the PNT Meeting and at the Effective Time, in the case of the PNT 
Proxy Statement, at the date the PNT Proxy Statement is first mailed to PNT’s shareholders, at 
any time the PNT Proxy Statement is amended or supplemented and at the time of the PNT 
Meeting, and in the case of the SUG Proxy Statement, at the date the SUG Proxy Statement is 
first mailed to SUG’s shareholders, at any time the SUG Proxy Statement is amended or 
supplemented and at the time of the SUG Meeting (giving effect to any documents incorporated 
by reference therein), contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material 
fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in light of 
the circumstances under which they are made, not misleading. The Registration Statement will 
comply as to form and in substance in all material respects with the applicable provisions of the 
Securities Act and the rules and regulations thereunder. The SUG Proxy Statement will comply 
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as to form and in substance in all material respects with the applicable provisions of the Exchange 
Act and the rules and regulations thereunder. 

Section 4.24 Vote Required. At the SUG Meeting, SUG will seek the approval of the 
Merger (and any other transaction contemplated by this Agreement which requires the approval 
of SUG’s shareholders) by the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of SUG Common 
Stock (the “SUG Shareholders’ Approval”), and no other vote of the holders of any class or series 
of the capital stock of SUG is required to approve this Agreement and the Mergers. 

Section 4.25 Disclaimer of Representations and Warranties EXCEPT FOR THE 
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES CONTAINED IN THIS ARTICLE IV, SUG 
MAKES NO OTHER REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, 
AND SUG HEREBY DISCLAIMS ANY SUCH OTHER REPRESENTATIONS OR 
WARRANTIES, WHETHER BY SUG, ANY SUBSIDIARY OF SUG, OR ANY OF THEIR 
RESPECTIVE OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, EMPLOYEES, AGENTS OR REPRESENTATIVES, 
OR ANY OTHER PERSON, WITH RESPECT TO THIS AGREEMENT AND THE 
TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY, NOTWITHSTANDING THE DELIVERY OR 
DISCLOSURE TO PNT OR ANY OF ITS DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AGENTS 
OR REPRESENTATIVES, OR ANY OTHER PERSON, OF ANY DOCUMENTATION OR 
OTHER INFORMATION BY SUG, ANY SUBSIDIARY OF SUG, OR ANY OF THEIR 
RESPECTIVE DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AGENTS OR REPRESENTATIVES, 
OR ANY OTHER PERSON. WITH RESPECT TO ANY OF THE FOREGOING. 

ARTICLE V 
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF PNT 

PNT, as to the Acquired Companies, represents and warrants to SUG as follows: 

Section 5.1 Organization, Existence and Qualification. 

Each Acquired Company is a corporation duly incorporated, validly 
existing, and in good standing under the laws of its state of incorporation, with full corporate 
power and authority to conduct its business as it is now being conducted, to own or use the 
properties and assets that it purports to own or use, and to perform all its obligations under 
Applicable Contracts. Section 5.l(a) of the PNT Disclosure Schedule sets forth the name of each 
Acquired Company, the state or jurisdiction of its incorporation or formation, and, except as set 
forth on Section 5.l(a) of the PNT Disclosure Schedule, each state or jurisdiction where such 
Acquired Company is duly qualified as a foreign corporation. Each Acquired Company is duly 
qualified to do business as a foreign corporation and is in good standing under the laws of each 
state or other jurisdiction in which either the ownership or use of the properties owned or used by 
it, or the nature of the business conducted by it, requires such qualification as a foreign 
corporation except such failures to be so qualified or in good standing as are not, individually or 
in the aggregate, reasonably likely to have a PNT Material Adverse Effect. 

(a) 
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(b) PNT has delivered to SUG copies of the Organizational Documents, as 
currently in effect, of each Acquired Company. 

Section 5.2 Capitalization. The capital stock of PNT consists of 30,000,000 shares of 
PNT Common Stock, of which 10,835,270 shares were issued and outstanding on May 28, 1999. 
PG Energy is authorized to issue 997,500 shares of PG Preferred Stock, of which (i) 47,451 
shares of the Series 4.10% PG Preferred Stock (the “4.10% PG Preferred Stock), and (ii) 2,396 
shares of the Series 5.75% PG Preferred Stock (the “5.75% PG Preferred Stock”), were issued 
and outstanding on May 28, 1999. The issued and outstanding shares of PNT Common Stock and 
PG Preferred Stock have been validly issued and are fully paid and nonassessable. Except as 
specifically described in the PNT SEC Documents delivered to SUG prior to the date of this 
Agreement, as of the date of this Agreement, no shares of PNT Common Stock or PG Preferred 
Stock are held, in treasury or otherwise, by PNT or any of its Subsidiaries and except as set forth 
in Section 5.2 of the PNT Disclosure Schedule, there are no outstanding (i) securities convertible 
into PNT Common Stock, PG Preferred Stock or other capital stock PNT or any of its material 
Subsidiaries, (ii) warrants or options to purchase PNT Common Stock or other securities of PNT 
or any of its material Subsidiaries or (iii) other commitments to issue shares of any PNT Common 
Stock, PG Preferred Stock or other securities of PNT or any of its material Subsidiaries. 

Section 5.3 Subsidiaries; Investments. Except as set forth in Section 5.3 of the PNT 
Disclosure Schedule, as of the date of this Agreement, PNT has no Subsidiaries or investments 
in any Person (except for marketable securities disclosed to SUG) and, except for the issued and 
outstanding PG Preferred Stock, PNT is the registered owner and holder of all of the issued and 
outstanding shares of capital stock of its Subsidiaries and has good title to such shares. The 
outstanding capital stock of each material Subsidiary has been validly issued and is fully paid and 
nonassessable. All such capital stock owned by any Acquired Company is free and clear of any 
Encumbrance (except for any Encumbrance disclosed in the PNT SEC Documents filed to date, 
or created or incurred by this Agreement in favor of SUG, or imposed by federal or state 
securities laws). 

Section 5.4 Authority Relative to this Agreement and Binding Effect. The 
execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the Related Documents by PNT have 
been duly authorized by all requisite corporate action, except, as of the date of this Agreement, 
for the PNT Shareholders’ Approval, the approval of the Boards of Directors of PG Energy and 
Honesdale of the transactions contemplated hereby and the approval of the holders of common 
stock of each of PG Energy and Honesdale of the transactions contemplated hereby. Except as 
set forth in the schedule to be delivered by PNT to SUG within seven days of the date of this 
Agreement, the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the Related 
Documents by PNT will not result in a violation or breach of any term or provision of, or 
constitute a default or accelerate the performance required under, the Organizational Documents 
of any of the Acquired Companies, any indenture, mortgage, deed of trust, security agreement, 
loan agreement, or Material Contract to which any of the Acquired Companies is a party or by 
which its assets are bound, or violate any order, writ, injunction or decree of any Governmental 
Body, with such exceptions as are not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably likely to have 
a PNT Material Adverse Effect. This Agreement constitutes and the Related Documents to be 
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executed by any of the Acquired Companies when executed and delivered will constitute valid and 
bindiig obligations of such Acquired Company, enforceable against such Acquired Company in 
accordance with their terms, except as enforceability may be limited by (i) bankruptcy or similar 
laws from time to time in effect affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally or (ii) the 
availability of equitable remedies generally. 

Section 5.5 Governmental Approvals. Except as set forth in Section 5.5 of the PNT 
Disclosure Schedule and as required by the HSR Act, no approval or authorization of any 
Governmental Body with mpect to performance under this Agreement by any Acquired Company 
is required to be obtained by PNT in connection with the execution and delivery by PNT of this 
Agreement or the consummation by the Acquired Companies of the transactions contemplated by 
this Agreement, the failure to obtain which are, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably likely 
to have a PNT Material Adverse Effect. 

Section 5.6 Public Utility Holding Company Status; Regulation as a Public Utility. 
PNT is a “holding company” (as such term is defined in PUHCA) exempt from certain provisions 
of PUHCA, and has received no adverse notice from the SEC with respect to the validity of its 
exempt stam, pursuant to Section 3(a)(l) of PUHCA. PG Energy is a “public utility company” 
(as such term is defined in PUHCA). Honesdale is a “public utility company” (as such term is 
defmed in PUHCA). Each of PG Energy and Honesdale is a “subsidiary company” of PNT, and 
an “affiliate“ of the other and of PNT (as such terms are defined in PUHCA). Except as stated 
above in this Section 5.6, none of the Acquired Companies is a “holding company,” a “subsidiary 
company,”a “public utility company,” or an “affiliate” of a “public utility company” or a “holding 
company” within the meaning of such terms in PUHCA. 

Section 5.7 Compliance with Legal Requirements; Governmental Authorizations. 

Except as set forth in Section 5.7(a) of the PNT Disclosure Schedule or as 
specifically described in the PNT SEC Documents delivered to SUG prior to the date of this 
Agreement, and subject to Section 5.19 of this Agreement, to the Knowledge of any Acquired 
Company, no Acquired Company is in violation of any Legal Requirement that is applicable to 
it, to the conduct or operation of its business, or to the ownership or use of any of its assets, other 
than such violations, if any, which are not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably likely to 
have a PNT Material Adverse Effect. 

(a) 

(b) The PNT SEC Documents delivered to SUG prior to the date of this 
Agreement accurately describe all material regulation of each Acquired Company that relates to 
the utility business of any Acquired Company. Except as set forth on Section 5.7(a) of the PNT 
Disclosure Schedule, each Acquired Company has and is in material compliance with all material 
Governmental Authorizations necessary to conduct its business and to own, operate and use all 
of its assets as currently conducted. 

Section 5.8 Legal Proceedings; Orders. Except as set forth in Section 5.8 of the PNT 
Disclosure Schedule or as specifically described in the PNT SEC Documents delivered to SUG 
prior to the date of this Agreement, there is no pending Proceeding: 
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(1) that has been commenced by or against, or that otherwise relates to, 
any Acquired Company that is reasonably likely to have a PNT Material Adverse 
Effect; or 

(2) as of the date of this Agreement, that challenges, or that may have 
the effect of preventing, delaying, making illegal, or otherwise interfering with, 
the Mergers or any of the transactions contemplated hereby. 

To the Knowledge of PNT, except as set forth in Section 5.8 of the PNT Disclosure Schedule, 
as of the date of this Agreement, no such Proceedings, audits or investigations have been 
Threatened that are, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably likely to have a PNT Material 
Adverse Effect. 

Section 5.9 SEC Documents. PNT has made (and, with respect to such documents 
filed after the date hereof through the Closing Date, will make) available to SUG a true and 
complete copy of each report, schedule, registration statement (other than on Form S-8), and 
definitive proxy statement filed by PNT or PG Energy with the SEC since December 31, 1998 
through the Closing Date in substantially the form filed with the SEC (the “PNT SEC 
Documents”). As of their respective dates, the PNT SEC Documents, including without limitation 
any financial statements or schedules included therein, complied (or will comply), in all material 
respects with the requirements of the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, as the case may be, and 
the rules and regulations of the SEC thereunder applicable to such PNT SEC Documents, and did 
not (or will not) contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact 
required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the 
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. The audited consolidated financial 
statements and unaudited interim financial statements of PNT or PG Energy included in the PNT 
SEC Documents (collectively, the “PNT Financial Statements”) were (or will be) prepared in 
accordance with GAAP (except as may be indicated therein or in the notes thereto and except with 
respect to unaudited statements as permitted by Form 10-Q) and fairly present (or will fairly 
present) in all material respects the financial position of PNT and its Subsidiaries, or PG Energy, 
as the case may be, as of the respective dates thereof or the results of operations and cash flows 
for the respective periods then ended, as the case may be, subject, in the case of unaudited interim 
financial statements, to normal, recurring adjustments which are not material in the aggregate. 

Section 5.10 Taxes. 

(a) The Acquired Companies have timely filed all United States federal, state 
and local income Tax Returns required to be filed by or with respect to them or requests for 
extensions to file such Tax Returns have been timely filed, granted and have not expired, and the 
Acquired Companies have timely paid and discharged all Taxes due in connection with or with 
respect to the periods or transactions covered by such Tax Returns and have paid all other Taxes 
as are due or made adequate provision therefor in accordance with GAAP except where failures 
to so file, pay or discharge are not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably likely to have a 
PNT Material Adverse Effect. There are no pending audits or other examinations relating to any 
Tax matters. There are no Tax liens on any assets of the Acquired Companies. As of the date 
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of this Agreement, none of the Acquired Companies has granted any waiver of any statute of 
limitations with respect to, or any extension of a period for the assessment of, any Tax. The 
accruals and reserves (including deferred taxes) reflected in the PNT Balance Sheet are in all 
material respects adequate to cover all material Taxes accruable through the date thereof (including 
interest and penalties, if any, thereon and Taxes being contested) in accordance with GAAP. 
Prior to the date of this Agreement, no Acquired Company has at any time adopted a plan of 
complete liquidation within the meaning of Section 332 of the IRC. 

(b) None of the Acquired Companies is obligated under any Contract with 
respect to industrial development bonds or other obligations with respect to which the excludability 
from gross income of the holder for federal or state income tax purposes could be affected by the 
Merger or any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. 

Section 5.11 Intellectual Property. Except as set forth in Section 5.11 of the PNT 
Disclosure Schedule, no Acquired Company has any Knowledge of (i) any infringement or 
claimed infringement by it of any patent rights or copyrights of others or (ii) any infringement of 
the patent or patent license rights, trademarks or copyrights owned by or under license to it, 
except for any such infringements of the type described in clause (i) or (ii) that are not, 
individually or in the aggregate, reasonably likely to have a PNT Material Adverse Effect. 

Section 5.12 Title to Assets. Except (i) as set forth in Section 5.12 of the PNT 
Disclosure Schedule, (ii) as specifically described in the PNT SEC Documents delivered to SUG 
prior to the date of this Agreement, (iii) as set forth in Section 5.19 of this Agreement or (iv) as 
set forth in Section 5.19 of the PNT Disclosure Schedule, none of the Acquired Companies' assets 
are subject to any Encumbrance other than PNT Permitted Liens. 

Section 5.13 Indebtedness. All outstanding principal amounts of indebtedness for 
borrowed money of the Acquired Companies as of June 4, 1999 are set forth in Section 5.13 of 
the PNT Disclosure Schedule, except for inter-company indebtedness. 

Section 5.14 Machinery and Equipment. Except for normal wear and tear, and with 
such exceptions as are not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably likely to have a PNT 
Material Adverse Effect, the machinery and equipment of the Acquired Companies is in good 
operating condition and in a state of reasonable maintenance and repair. 

Section 5.15 Material Contracts. Except as specifically described in the PNT SEC 
Documents delivered to SUG prior to the date of this Agreement, and with such exceptions as are 
not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably likely to have a PNT Material Adverse Effect, 
all Material Contracts of the Acquired Companies are in full force and effect and no Acquired 
Company nor, to the Knowledge of PNT, any other party thereto is in default thereunder nor has 
any event occurred or is any event occurring that with notice or the passage of time or otherwise, 
is reasonably likely to give rise to an event of default thereunder by any party thereto. 

Section 5.16 Insurance. Section 5.16(a) of the PNT Disclosure Schedule sets forth a list 
of all policies of insurance held by the Acquired Companies as of the date of this Agreement. 
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Except as set forth in Section 5.16(b) of the PNT Disclosure Schedule, since June 30, 1994, the 
assets and the business of the Acquired Companies have been continuously insured with what PNT 
reasonably believes are reputable insurers against all risks and in such amounts normally insured 
against by companies of the same type and in the same line of business as any of the Acquired 
Companies. As of the date of this Agreement, no notice of cancellation, non-renewal or material 
increase in premiums has been received by any of the Acquired Companies with respect to such 
policies, and no Acquired Company has Knowledge of any fact or circumstance that could 
reasonably be expected to form the basis for any cancellation, non-renewal or material increase 
in premiums, except for such cancellations, non-renewals and increases which are not, 
individually or in the aggregate, reasonably likely to have a PNT Material Adverse Effect. None 
of the Acquired Companies is in default with respect to any provision contained in any such policy 
or binder nor has there been any failure to give notice or to present any claim relating to the 
business or the assets of the Acquired Companies under any such policy or binder in a timely 
fashion or in the manner or detail required by the policy or binder, except for such defaults or 
failures which are not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably likely to have a PNT Material 
Adverse Effect. As of the date of this Agreement, there are no outstanding unpaid premiums 
(except premiums not yet due and payable), and no notice of cancellation or renewal with respect 
to, or disallowance of any claim under, any such policy or binder has been received by the 
Acquired Companies as of the date hereof, except for such non-payments of premiums, 
cancellations, renewals or disallowances which are not, individually or in the aggregate, 
reasonably likely to have a PNT Material Adverse Effect 

Section 5.17 Employees. Section 5.17(a) of the PNT Disclosure Schedule sets forth a 
list as of no more than thirty (30) days prior to the date of this Agreement of all the present 
officers and employees of the Acquired Companies. Except as set forth in Section 5.17(b) of the 
PNT Disclosure Schedule, as of the date of this Agreement, no labor union or other collective 
bargaining unit has been certified or recognized by any of the Acquired Companies, and, to the 
Knowledge of the Acquired Companies, as of the date of this Agreement, there are no elections, 
organizing drives or material controversies pending or Threatened between any of the Acquired 
Companies and any labor union or other collective bargaining unit representing any of the 
Acquired Companies' employees. There is no pending or, to the Knowledge of PNT, Threatened 
labor practice complaint, arbitration, labor strike or other material labor dispute (excluding 
grievances) involving any of the Acquired Companies which are, individually or in the aggregate, 
reasonably likely to have a PNT Material Adverse Effect. Except for collective bargaining 
agreements or as described in or pursuant to Section 5.18 and Section 6.l(a)(16) or as attached 
as an exhibit to, or as specifically described in, the PNT SEC Documents delivered to SUG prior 
to the date of this Agreement, as of the date of this Agreement, to the Knowledge of PNT, none 
of the Acquired Companies is a party to any employment agreement with any employee pertaining 
to any of the Acquired Companies. 

Section 5.18 Employee Benefit Plans. 

(a) Except as set forth in Section 5.18 of the PNT Disclosure Schedule, each 
of the PNT Benefit Plans has been operated and administered in all material respects in accordance 
with its governing documents and applicable federal and state laws (including, but not limited to, 
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ERISA and the IRC). For purposes of this Agreement, “PNT Benefit Plans” shall mean all 
employee retirement, welfare or other benefit plans, agreements, practices, policies, programs, 
or arrangements identified and described in Section 5.18 of the PNT Disclosure Schedule, which 
sets forth all PNT Benefit Plans that are applicable to any employee of the Acquired Companies 
identified in Section 5.17 of the PNT Disclosure Schedule or maintained by or contributed to by 
any of the Acquired Companies. 

(b) Except as set forth in Section 5.18 of the PNT Disclosure Schedule, as to 
any PNT Benefit Plan subject to Title IV of W S A ,  there is no event or condition which presents 
the material risk of plan termination, no accumulated funding deficiency, whether or not waived, 
within the meaning of Section 302 of ERISA or Section 412 of the IRC has been incurred for 
which any liability is outstanding, no reportable event within the meaning of Section 4043 of 
ERISA (for which the notice requirements of Regulation 54043 promulgated by the PBGC have 
not been waived) has occurred within the last six years, no notice of intent to terminate the PNT 
Benefit Plan has been given under Section 4041 of ERISA, no proceeding has been instituted 
under Section 4042 of ERISA to terminate the PNT Benefit Plan, there has been no termination 
or partial termination of the PNT Benefit Plan within the meaning of Section 41 l(d)(3) of the IRC 
within the last six years, no event described in Sections 4062 or 4063 of ERISA has occurred, all 
PBGC premiums have been timely paid and no liability to the PBGC has been incurred, except 
for PBGC premiums not yet due. 

(c) There is no matter pending (other than qualification determination 
applications and filings and other required periodic filings) with respect to any of the PNT Benefit 
Plans before the IRS, the Department of Labor, the PBGC or in or before any other governmental 
authority. 

(d) Except as set forth in Section 5.18 of the PNT Disclosure Schedule, each 
trust funding a PNT Benefit Plan, which trust is intended to be exempt from federal income 
taxation pursuant to Section 501(c)(9) of the IRC, satisfies the requirements of such section and 
has received a favorable determination letter from the IRS regarding such exempt status and to the 
Knowledge of any Acquired Company has not, since receipt of the most recent favorable 
determination letter, been amended or operated in any way which would adversely affect such 
exempt status. 

(e) Except as otherwise set forth in Section 5.18 of the PNT Disclosure 
Schedule, with respect to any PNT Benefit Plan or any other “employee benefit plan” as defined 
in Section 3(3) of ERISA which is established, sponsored, maintained or contributed to, or to the 
Knowledge of the Acquired Companies, with respect to any such plan which has been established, 
sponsored, maintained or contributed to within six years prior to the Closing Date, by the 
Acquired Companies or any corporation, trade, business or entity under common control or being 
a part of an affiliated service group with any of the Acquired Companies, within the meaning of 
Section 414(b), (c) or (m) of the IRC or Section 4001 of ERISA (“PNT Commonly Controlled 
Entity”), (i) no withdrawal liability, within the meaning of Section 4201 of ERISA, has been 
incurred, which withdrawal liability has not been satisfied and no such withdrawal liability is 
reasonably expected to be incurred, (ii) no liability under Title IV of ERISA (including, but not 

30 



A n 

limited to, liability to the PBGC) has been incurred by the Acquired Companies or any PNT 
Commonly Controlled Entity, which liability has not been satisfied (other than for PBGC 
premiums not yet due), (iii) no accumulated funding deficiency, whether or not waived, within 
the meaning of Section 302 of ERISA or Section 412 of the IRC has been incurred for which any 
liability is outstanding, (iv) there has been no failure to make any contribution (including 
installments) to such plan required by Section 302 of ERISA and Section 412 of the IRC which 
has resulted in a lien under Section 302 of ERISA or Section 412 of the IRC and for which any 
liability is currently outstanding; (v) to the Knowledge of any Acquired Company, no action, 
omission or transaction has occurred with respect to any such plan or any other PNT Benefit Plan 
which could subject any of the Acquired Companies, the plan or trust forming a part thereof, or 
SUG to a material civil liability or penalty under ERISA or other applicable laws, or a material 
Tax under the IRC, (vi) any such plan which is a Group Health Plan has complied in all material 
respects with the provisions of Sections 601-608 of ERISA and Section 4980B of the IRC, (vii) 
there are no pendiig or, to the Knowledge of any of the Acquired Companies, Threatened claims 
by or on behalf of any such plan or any other PNT Benefit Plan, by any employees, former 
employees or plan beneficiaries covered by such plan or otherwise by or on behalf of any person 
involving any such plan (other than routine non-contested claims for benefits) which could result 
in a material liability to the Acquired Companies taken as a whole and (viii) neither the Acquired 
Companies nor any PNT Commonly Controlled Entity has engaged in, or is a successor or parent 
corporation to any entity or person that has engaged in, a transaction described in Section 4069 
of ERISA. 

(0 Except as otherwise set forth in Section 5.18 of the PNT Disclosure 
Schedule, the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions 
contemplated hereby will not (i) require SUG to make a later contribution to, payment or transfer 
of money or property or payment of greater benefits under or with respect to any PNT Benefit 
Plan than any of the Acquired Companies is currently required by the terms and provisions of such 
PNT Benefit Plan to do, (ii) create or give rise to any additional eligibility for participation, vested 
rights benefits or service credits under any PNT Benefit Plan, or (iii) in and of themselves cause 
or result in SUG incurring any civil liability or penalty under ERISA or other applicable laws or 
Tax under the IRC . 

(g) Except as otherwise set forth in Section 5.18 of the PNT Disclosure 
Schedule, none of the Acquired Companies is a party to any Contract nor has it established any 
policy or practice, which would require it or SUG to make a payment or provide any other form 
of compensation or benefit to any Person performing (or who within the past twelve months 
performed) services for any of the Acquired Companies during or upon termination of such 
services which would not be payable or provided in the absence of the consummation of the 
transactions contemplated by this Agreement. 

(h) Except as would affect retirees and unionized employees and as otherwise 
set forth in Section 5.18 of the PNT Disclosure Schedule, each PNT Benefit Plan which is an 
“employee welfare benefit plan,” as such term is defined in Section 3(1) of ERISA, may be 
unilaterally amended or terminated in its entirety without any liability being incurred by any of 
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the Acquired Companies, SUG or any affiliate of SUG, except as to benefits accrued thereunder 
prior to such amendment or termination. 

(i) Section 5.18 of the PNT Disclosure Schedule contains a true and complete 
list as of the date of this Agreement of each PNT Benefit Plan, all Acquired Company Option 
Plans and any management, employment, deferred compensation, severance (including any 
payment, right or benefit resulting from a change in control), bonus or other contract for personal 
services with any current or former officer, director or employee, any consulting contract with 
any person who prior to entering this such contract was a director or officer of any Acquired 
Company or any plan, agreement, arrangement or understanding similar to any of the foregoing. 

None of the Acquired Companies has contributed nor been obligated to 
contribute to any “multi-employer plan” within the meaning of Section 3(37) of ERISA within the 
last six years, and none of the Acquired Companies has any outstanding liability with respect to 
any such plan. 

(j) 

Section 5.19 Environmental Matters. Except as set forth in Section 5.19 of the PNT 
Disclosure Schedule or as specifically described in the PNT SEC Documents delivered to SUG 
prior to the date of this Agreement, and with such other exceptions as are not, individually or in 
the aggregate, reasonably likely to have a PNT Material Adverse Effect: 

(a) To the Knowledge of any Acquired Company, no Facility owned or 
operated by any Acquired Company is currently, or was at any time, listed on the National 
Priorities List promulgated under CERCLA, or on any comparable state list, and no Acquired 
Company has received any written notification of potential or actual liability or a written request 
for information from any Person under or relating to CERCLA or any comparable Legal 
Requirement with respect to any Acquired Company or the Facilities; 

(b) To the Knowledge of any Acquired Company, each Acquired Company and 
any Person for whose conduct any Acquired Company is reasonably likely to be held responsible, 
and at all times has been, in material compliance with any Environmental Law. No Acquired 
Company has received any Order, notice, or other communication from (i) any Governmental 
Body or private citizen acting in the public interest, or (ii) the current or prior owner or operator 
of any Facilities, of any violation or failure to comply with any Environmental Law, or of any 
obligation to undertake or bear the cost of any environmental cleanup, or with respect to any 
property or Facility at which Hazardous Materials generated by any Acquired Company were 
transported for disposal; 

(c) There are no pending or, to the Knowledge of any of the Acquired 
Companies, Threatened claims arising under or pursuant to any Environmental Law with respect 
to or affecting any of the Facilities or any other properties and assets (whether real, personal, or 
mixed) in which any Acquired Company has or had a direct or indirect interest (including by 
ownership or use); and 
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(d) PNT has delivered or made available to SUG true and complete copies and 
results of any environmental site assessments, studies, analyses, tests or monitoring possessed by 
any Acquired Company of which any Acquired Company has Knowledge pertaining to Hazardous 
Materials or Hazardous Activities in, on or under the Facilities, or concerning compliance by any 
Acqired Company or any other Person for whose conduct any Acquired Company is reasonably 
likely to be held responsible, with Environmental Laws. 

Section 5.20 No Material Adverse Change. Since the date of the PNT Balance Sheet, 
except as specifically described in the PNT SEC Documents delivered to SUG prior to the date 
of this Agreement, there has not been any PNT Material Adverse Effect, and no events have 
occurred or circumstances exkt that are, individually or the aggregate, reasonably likely to have 
a PNT Material Adverse Effect, except that any PNT Material Adverse Effect that results from 
or relates to (a) general business or economic conditions, (b) conditions generally affecting the 
indwries in which the Acquired Companies compete or (c) the announcement of the transactions 
contemplated by this Agreement shall be disregarded. 

Section 5.21 Brokers. No Acquired Company is a party to, or in any way obligated 
under any Contract, and there are no outstanding claims against any Acquired Company, for the 
payment of any broker’s or finder’s fees in connection with the origin, negotiation, execution or 
performance of this Agreement. 

Section 5.22 PNT Rights Agreement. Prior hereto, PNT has delivered to SUG a true 
and complete copy of the PNT Rights Agreement. The consummation of the transactions 
contemplated by this Agreement will not result in the triggering of any right or entitlement of the 
holders of the PNT Common Stock or other PNT securities under the PNT Rights Agreement or 
any similar agreement to which PNT or any of its Subsidiaries is a party. 

Section 5.23 Regulatory Proceedings. Except as set forth in Section 5.23 of the PNT 
Disclosure Schedule, other than purchase gas adjustment provisions, none of PNT or its 
Subsidiaries all or part of whose rates or services are regulated by a Governmental Body (a) has 
rates that have been or are being collected subject to refund, pending final resolution of any rate 
proceeding pending before a Governmental Body or on appeal to the courts, or (b) is a party to 
any rate proceeding before a Governmental Body that are, individually or in the aggregate, 
reasonably likely to result in any Orders having a PNT Material Adverse Effect. 

Section 5.24 Proxy Statement; Registration Statement. None of the information 
supplied or to be supplied by or on behalf of PNT and its Subsidiaries in either the PNT Proxy 
Statement or supplied or to be supplied by PNT to SUG for inclusion in either the SUG Proxy 
Statement or the Registration Statement, will, with respect to the Registration Statement, at the 
effective time of the Registration Statement, at any time the Registration Statement is amended 
or supplemented, at the date the PNT Proxy Statement is first mailed to PNT’s shareholders, at 
any time the PNT Proxy Statement is amended or supplemented, at the time of the PNT Meeting 
and at the Effective Time, in the case of the PNT Proxy Statement, at the date the PNT Proxy 
Statement is first mailed to PNT’s shareholders, at any time the PNT Proxy Statement is amended 
or supplemented and at the time of the PNT Meeting and in the case of the SUG Proxy Statement, 
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at the date the SUG Proxy Statement is first mailed to SUG’s shareholders, at any time the SUG 
Proxy Statement is amended or supplemented and at the time of the SUG Meeting (giving effect 
to any documents incorporated by reference therein), contain any untrue statement of a material 
fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make 
the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they are made, not misleading. 
The PNT Proxy Statement will comply as to form and in substance in all material respects with 
the applicable provisions of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations thereunder. 

Section 5.25 Vote Required. Other than the approval of the Merger by the holders of 
a majority of the outstanding shares of PNT Common Stock (the “PNT Shareholders’ Approval”) 
and the approval by the holders of common stock of each of PG Energy and Honesdale, no vote 
of the holders of any class or series of the capital stock of any Acquired Company is required to 
approve this Agreement and the Mergers. 

Section 5.26 Opinion of Financial Advisor. PNT has provided (or promptly upon 
receipt of a written copy thereof, will provide) SUG a copy of the opinion of Legg Mason Wood 
Walker, Incorporated, dated as of the date hereof, with respect to the Merger Consideration to be 
received by the holders of PNT Common Stock pursuant to the transactions contemplated by this 
Agreement. 

Section 5.27 Disclaimer of Representations and Warranties. EXCEPT FOR THE 
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES CONTAINED IN THIS ARTICLE V, PNT 
MAKES NO OTHER REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, 
AND PNT HEREBY DISCLAIMS ANY SUCH OTHER REPRESENTATIONS OR 
WARRANTIES, WHETHER BY PNT, ANY SUBSIDIARY OF PNT, OR ANY OF THEIR 
RESPECTIVE OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, EMPLOYEES, AGENTS OR REPRESENTATIVES, 
OR ANY OTHER PERSON, WITH RESPECT TO THIS AGREEMENT AND THE 
TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY, NOTWITHSTANDING THE DELIVERY OR 
DISCLOSURE TO SUG OR ANY OF ITS DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AGENTS 
OR REPRESENTATIVES, OR ANY OTHER PERSON, OF ANY DOCUMENTATION OR 
OTHER INFORMATION BY PNT, ANY SUBSIDIARY OF PNT, OR ANY OF THEIR 
RESPECTIVE DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AGENTS OR REPRESENTATIVES, 
OR ANY OTHER PERSON, WITH RESPECT TO ANY OF THE FOREGOING. 

ARTICLE VI 
COVENANTS 

Section 6.1 
covenants and agreements: 

Covenants of PNT. PNT agrees to observe and perform the following 

(a) 1. With respect to the 
Acquired Companies, except (i) as contemplated in this Agreement, (ii) for a sale by PNT of 
Keystone Pipeline Services, Inc. or by Keystone Pipeline Services, Inc. of its assets, or the sale 
by any of the Acquired Companies of any real property owned by any of them that is not used or 
useful in the Acquired Companies’ utility operations, (iii) the redemption or repurchase of the PG 
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Preferred Stock prior to the Effective Time, (iv) as required by law or regulation or (v) as 
otherwise expressly consented to in writing by SUG which consent will not be unreasonably 
withheld or delayed, prior to the Closing, PNT will cause each Acquired Company to: 

business; 
(1) Not make or permit any material change in the general nature of its 

(2) Maintain its Ordinary Course of Business in accordance with prudent 
business judgment and consistent with past practice and policy, and maintain its assets in 
good repair, order and condition, reasonable wear and tear excepted, subject to retirements 
in the ordinary Course of Business; 

(3) Preserve the Acquired Company as an ongoing business and use 
reasonable efforts to maintain the goodwill associated with the Acquired Company; 

(4) Preserve all of the Acquired Companies’ franchises, tariffs, 
certificates of public convenience and necessity, licenses, authorizations and other 
governmental rights and permits; 

(5) Not enter into any material transaction or Material Contract other 
than in the Ordinary Course of Business; 

(6)  Not purchase, sell, lease, dispose of or otherwise transfer or make 
any contract for the purchase, sale, lease, disposition or transfer of, or subject to lien, any 
of the assets of the Acquired Company other than in the Ordinary Course of Business; 

(7) Not hire any new employee unless such employee is a bona fide 
replacement for a presently-filled position with the Acquired Company as of the date 
hereof except for no more than ten (10) new employees to be hired by PG Energy 
Services, Inc. for the conduct of the electric and natural gas marketing business; 

(8 )  Not file any material applications, petitions, motions, orders, briefs, 
settlement or agreements in any material proceeding before any Governmental Body which 
involves the Acquired Company, and appeals related thereto without, to the extent 
reasonably practicable, consulting SUG; provided, however, that if such Proceeding is 
reasonably likely to have a PNT Material Adverse Effect, PNT shall not make any such 
filing without the consent of SUG, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or 
delayed. 

(9) Not engage in any new (other than intercompany short-term 
financing arrangements in the Ordinary Course of Business), or modify any existing, 
intercompany transactions involving Keystone Pipeline Services, Inc., and not engage in 
or modify, except in the Ordinary Course of Business, any material intercompany 
transactions involving any other Acquired Company, except as set forth in Section 
6.l(a)(9) of the PNT Disclosure Schedule; 
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(IO) Not voluntarily change in any material respect or terminate any 
insurance policies disclosed on Section 5.16(a) of the PNT Disclosure Schedule that 
presently are in effect unless equivalent coverage is obtained; 

(1 1) Except as disclosed or specifically contemplated in this Agreement 
or in Section 6.l(a)(ll) of the PNT Disclosure Schedule, and with respect to budgeted 
expenditures known and specifically disclosed in writing to SUG, subject to adjustments 
in the Ordinary Course of Business and other deviations (which in the aggregate shall not 
exceed 5% on an annualized basis during the period from the date of this Agreement until 
the Closing Date), not make any capital expenditure or capital expenditure commitment; 

Not make any changes in financial policies or practices, or strategic 
or operating policies or practices, in each case which involve any Acquired Company, 
except as required by law, rule or regulation; 

(12) 

(13) Comply in all material respects with all applicable material Legal 
Requirements and permits, including without limitation those relating to the filing of 
reports and the payment of Taxes due to be paid prior to the Closing, other than those 
contested in good faith; 

(14) Not adopt, amend (other than amendments that reduce the amounts 
payable by SUG or any of its subsidiaries or amendments required by law) or assume an 
obligation to contribute to any PNT Benefit Plan or collective bargaining agreement or 
enter into any employment, severance or similar contract with any Person (including 
without limitation, contracts with management of any Acquired Company or any of its 
affiliates that might require payments be made upon consummation of the transactions 
contemplated hereby) or amend any such existing contracts to increase any amounts 
payable thereunder or benefits provided thereunder; 

(15) Except in the Ordinary Course of Business or in accordance with the 
terms of any existing Contract, PNT Benefit Plan or collective bargaining agreement, not 
grant any increase or change in total compensation, benefits or pay any bonus to any 
employees; 

(16) Not grant or enter into any Contract, written or oral, with respect 
to continued employment for any employee, officer or director; 

(17) Not make (i) any loan or advance to any officer, director, 
stockholder or employee other than in the Ordinary Course of Business or (ii) make any 
other loan or advance to any Person other than in the Ordinary Course of Business; 

(18) Not terminate any existing gas purchase, exchange or transportation 
contract necessary to supply firm gas at all city gate delivery points or enter into any new 
contract for the supply, transportation, storage or exchange of gas with respect to the 
Acquired Companies’ regulated gas distribution operations or renew or extend or negotiate 
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any existing contract providing for the same where such contract is not terminable within 
sixty (60) days without penalty unless specifically agreed to by SUG; 

(19) Not amend any of its Organizational Documents; and 

(20) Subject to Section 6.1(1), not issue or assume any note, debenture 
or other evidence of indebtedness which by its terms does not mature within two year(?.) 
(except that PG Energy shall have no more than $11,999,999 of indebtedness which 
matures within one year from the date of any such issuance or assumption) from the date 
of execution or issuance thereof, unless otherwise redeemable or subject to prepayment at 
any time at the option of the Acquired Company on not more than thirty (30) days notice 
without penalty for such redemption or prepayment. 

cb) Customer NotificatiqIIS . At any time and from time to time reasonably 
requested by SUG prior to the Closing Date, each Acquired Company will permit SUG at SUG’s 
expense to insert preprinted single-page customer education materials into billing documentation 
to be delivered to customers affected by this Agreement; provided that, PNT has reviewed in 
advance and consented to the content of such materials, which consent shall not be unreasonably 
withheld. Other means of notifying customers may be employed by either party, at the expense 
of the initiating party, but in no event shall any notification be initiated without the prior consent 
of the other party (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld). 

(c) Access to the Aca uired Companies’ Offices. P roperties and Records: 

(1) From and after the date hereof and until the Closing Date, the 
Acquired Companies shall permit SUG and its Representatives to have, on reasonable 
notice and at reasonable times, reasonable access to such of the offices, properties and 
employees of the Acquired Companies, and shall disclose, and make available to SUG and 
its Representatives all books, papers and records to the extent that they relate to the 
ownership, operation, obligations and liabilities of or pertaining to the Acquired 
Companies and their businesses and assets. Without limiting the application of the 
Confidentiality Agreement dated May 10, 1999 between PNT and SUG (the 
“Confidentiality Agreement”), all documents or information furnished by the Acquired 
Companies hereunder shall be subject to the Confidentiality Agreement. 

(2) PNT will notify SUG as promptly as practicable of any significant 
change in the Ordinary Course of Business or operation of any of the Acquired Companies 
and of any material complaints, investigations or hearings (or communications indicating 
that the same may be contemplated) by any Governmental Body, or the institution or overt 
threat or settlement of any material Proceeding involving or affecting any of the Acquired 
Companies or the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, and shall use reasonable 
efforts to keep SUG fully informed of such events and permit SUG’s Representatives 
access to all materials prepared in connection therewith, consistent with any applicable 
Legal Requirement or Contract. 
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(3) As promptly as practicable after SUG's request, PNT will furnish 
such financial and operating data and other information pertaining to the Acquired 
Companies and their businesses and assets as SUG may reasonably request; p K ,  
however, that nothing herein will obligate any of the Acquired Companies to take actions 
that would unreasonably disrupt its ordinary Course of Business or violate the terms of 
any Legal Requirement or Contract to which the Acquired Company is a party or to which 
any of its assets is subject in providing such information, or to incur any costs with respect 
to SUG's external auditors (or the Acquired Companies' external auditors in the event a 
report by such auditors is requested by SUG) providing accounting services with respect 
to issuing an auditor's report required by or for SUG. 

(d) G o v e r m l  ADD rovals: Third Party Cons- . PNT will use its 
reasonable best efforts to obtain all necessary consents, approvals and waivers from any Person 
required under any license, lease, permit or Contract applicable to the Acquired Companies, 
including, without limitation, the approvals of those Governmental Bodies and the consents of 
those third parties listed in Section 5.4 and Section 5.5 of the PNT Disclosure Schedule and as 
required by the HSR Act. 

(e) Dividends. PNT shall not, nor shall it permit any of its Subsidiaries to: (i) 
declare or pay any dividends on or make other distributions in respect of any of its or their capital 
stock other than (A) dividends by a wholly owned Subsidiary to PNT or another wholly owned 
subsidiary, (B) dividends by a less than wholly owned Subsidiary consistent with past practice, 
(C) regular quarterly dividends on PNT Common Stock with usual record and payment dates that 
do not exceed the current rate of $1.20 per fiscal year, or (D) regular cumulative cash 
distributions on the 4.10% PG Preferred Stock not to exceed an annual rate of $4.10 per share or 
on the 5.75% PG Preferred Stock not to exceed an annual rate of $5.75 per share; (ii) split, 
combine or reclassify any capital stock or the capital stock of any Subsidiary or issue or authorize 
or propose the issuance of any other securities in respect of, or in substitution for, shares of capital 
stock or the capital stock of any Subsidiary; or (iii) redeem, repurchase or otherwise acquire any 
shares of capital stock of any Subsidiary other than (A) redemptions, repurchases and other 
acquisitions of shares of capital stock in connection with the administration of employee benefit 
and dividend reinvestment and customer stock purchase plans as in effect on the date hereof in the 
ordinary course of the operation of such plans consistent with past practice, (B) intercompany 
acquisitions of capital stock, (C) required redemptions of the 5.75 % PG Preferred Stock, (D) the 
redemption or repurchase of the PG Preferred Stock as contemplated herein or (E) as set forth in 
Section 6.1(1) of this Agreement. 

(0 . .  Issuance of Securities . PNT shall not, nor shall it permit any of its 
Subsidiaries to, issue, agree to issue, deliver, sell, award, pledge, dispose of or otherwise 
encumber or authorize or propose the issuance, delivery, sale, award, pledge, disposal or other 
encumbrance of, any shares of its or their capital stock of any class or any securities convertible 
into or exchangeable for, or any rights, warrants or options to acquire, any such shares or 
convertible or exchangeable securities, other than as provided for in the PNT Benefit Plans, 
Acquired Company Option Plans (including options to be granted to directors of PNT pursuant 
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to such PNT Benefit Plans and Acquired Company Option Plans) and any dividend reinvestment 
or customer stock purchase plans of PNT in effect as of the date hereof. 

(g) Accounting. PNT shall not, nor shall it permit any of its Subsidiaries to, 
make any changes in their accounting methods, principles or practices except as required by law, 
rule, regulation or GAAP. 

(h) N o .  

(1) PNT shall not, and shall not authorize or permit any of its (or any 
of its Subsidiaries’) officers, directors, agents, financial advisors, attorneys, accountants 
or other representatives to, directly or indirectly, solicit, initiate or encourage submission 
of proposals or offers from any Person relating to, or that could reasonably be expected 
to lead to, a Business Combination or participate in any negotiations or discussions 
regarding, or furnish to any other Person any information with respect to, or otherwise 
cooperate in any way with, or assist or participate in, facilitate or encourage, any effort 
or attempt by any other Person to do or seek a Business Combination; provided. howeva, 
that, prior to the PNT Shareholders’ Approval, PNT may, in response to an unsolicited 
written proposal from a third party with respect to a Business Combination that PNT’s 
Board of Directors determines, in its good faith judgment, after consultation with and the 
receipt of the advice of its financial advisor and outside counsel with customary 
qualifications, is a Superior Proposal, (i) furnish information to, and negotiate, explore or 
otherwise engage in substantive discussions with such third party, only if PNT’s Board of 
Directors determines, in its good faith judgment after consultation with its financial 
advisors and outside legal counsel, that it is reasonably necessary in order to comply with 
its fiduciary duties under applicable law and (ii) take and disclose to PNT’s shareholders 
a position with respect to another Business Combination proposal, or amend or withdraw 
such position, pursuant to Rule 1 4 - 9  and 14e-2 under the Exchange Act, or make such 
disclosure to PNT’s shareholders which in the good faith judgment of PNT’s Board of 
Directors is required by applicable law, based on the advice of its outside counsel. Prior 
to furnishing any non-public information to, entering into negotiations with or accepting 
a Superior Proposal from such third party, PNT will (i) provide written notice to SUG to 
the effect that it is furnishing information to or entering into discussions or negotiations 
with such third party and (ii) receive from such third party an executed confidentiality 
agreement containing substantially the same terms and conditions as the Confidentiality 
Agreement. PNT will immediately cease and cause to be terminated any existing 
solicitation, initiation, encouragement, activity, discussion or negotiations with any parties 
conducted heretofore by PNT or any of its representatives with respect to any Business 
Combination. 

(2) Except as expressly permitted by this Section 6.l(h), neither the 
PNT Board of Directors nor any committee thereof may, (i) withdraw or modify, or 
propose publicly to withdraw or modify, in a manner adverse to SUG, the approval or 
recommendation by such Board of Directors or such committee of the Merger or this 
Agreement, (ii) approve or recommend, or propose publicly to approve or recommend, 
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a Business Combination or (5 )  cause PNT to enter into any letter of intent, agreement in 
principle, acquisition agreement or other similar agreement related to any Business 
Combination. Notwithstanding the foregoing, prior to the time at which the PNT 
Shareholders’ Approval has been obtained, in response to an unsolicited Business 
combination proposal from a third party, if PNT’s Board of Directors determines, in its 
good faith judgment, after consultation with and the receipt of the advice of its financial 
advisor and outside counsel with customary qualifications, that such proposal is a Superior 
Proposal and that failure to do any of the actions set forth in clauses (i), (ii) or (iii) above 
would create a reasonable possibility of a breach of the fiduciary duties of PNT’s Board 
of Directors under applicable law, PNT’s Board of Directors may (i) withdraw or modify 
its approval or recommendation of the Merger or this Agreement, approve or recommend 
a Business Combination or cause PNT to enter into a Business Combination and (ii) 
negotiate with a third party with respect to such Business Combination proposal and, 
subject to PNT having paid to SUG the fees described in Section 8.3(a) hereof and having 
entered into a definitive agreement with respect to such Business Combination proposal, 
terminate this Agreement; provided, hpwever, that prior to entering into a definitive 
agreement with respect to a Business Combination proposal, the Company shall give SUG 
at least five (5 )  day’s notice thereof, and shall cause its representatives to, negotiate with 
SUG to make such adjustments in the terms and conditions of this Agreement as would 
enable PNT to proceed with the transactions contemplated herein on such adjusted terms; 
p.wx&kd, lklhex, that if PNT and SUG are unable to reach an agreement on such 
adjustments within five (5) days after such notice from PNT, PNT may enter into such 
definitive agreement, subject to the provisions of Article VIII. 

(3) PNT shall notify SUG orally and in writing of any such inquiries, 
offers or proposals (including, without limitation, the material terms and conditions of any 
such offer or proposal and the identity of the Person making it), within one business day 
of the receipt thereof, shall use all reasonable efforts to keep SUG informed of the status 
and details of any such inquiry, offer or proposal and shall give SUG two (2) day’s 
advance notice of the first delivery of non-public information to such Person. If any such 
inquiry, offer or proposal is in writing, PNT shall promptly deliver to SUG a copy of such 
inquiry, offer or proposal 

(4) For purposes of this Agreement, (i) “Business Combination” means 
(other than the transactions contemplated or permitted by this Agreement) (A) a merger, 
consolidation or other business combination, share exchange, sale of shares of capital 
stock, tender offer or exchange offer or similar transaction involving PNT or any of its 
Subsidiaries, (B) acquisition in any manner, directly or indirectly, of a material interest 
in any capital stock of, or a material equity interest in a substantial portion of the assets 
of, PNT or any of its Subsidiaries, including any single or multi-step transaction or series 
of related transactions that is structured to permit a third party to acquire beneficial 
ownership of a majority or greater equity interest in PNT or any of its Subsidiaries, or (C) 
the acquisition in any manner, directly or indirectly, of any material portion of the 
business or assets (other than immaterial or insubstantial assets or inventory in the ordinary 
course of business or assets held for sale) of PNT or any of its Subsidiaries and (ii) 
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“Superior Proposal” means a proposed Business Combination involving at least 50% of the 
shares of capital stock or a material portion of the assets of PNT that PNT’s Board of 
Directors determines, after consulting with PNT’s financial advisors and outside counsel, 
is financially superior to the transactions contemplated hereby and it appears that the party 
making the proposal is reasonably likely to have the funds necessary to consummate the 
Business Combination. 

(0  f Proxies: PNT Proxv State mea .  Subject to Section 6.l(h), 
PNT shall use its reasonable best efforts to solicit from its shareholders proxies in favor of the 
Merger and shall take all other action necessary or, in the reasonable opinion of SUG, advisable 
to secure the PNT Shareholders’ Approval. PNT shall cause PG Energy and Honesdale to 
approve the Honesdale Merger and the PG Energy Merger. 

0) PNT Shareholder App roval . 

(1) Subject to the provisions of Section 6.l(h) and Section 6.1@(2), 
PNT shall, as soon as reasonably practicable after the date hereof (i) take all steps 
necessary to duly call, give notice of, convene and hold a meeting of its shareholders 
(including all adjournments thereof, the “PNT Meeting“) for the purpose of securing the 
PNT Shareholders’ Approval, (ii) distribute to its shareholders the PNT Proxy Statement 
in accordance with applicable federal and state law and with its Organizational Documents, 
(iii) subject to the fiduciary duties of its Board of Directors, recommend to its shareholders 
the approval of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby and (iv) 
cooperate and consult with SUG with respect to each of the foregoing matters. 

(2) The PNT Meeting for the purpose of securing the PNT 
Shareholders’ Approval, including any adjournments thereof, will be held on such date or 
dates as PNT and SUG mutually determine. 

(k) Pule 145 Letters. PNT shall promptly identify to SUG all officers and 
directors of any Acquired Company and any other persons who are “affiliates” withiin the meaning 
of such term as used in Rule 145 under the Securities Act (“Rule 145 Affiliates”), and PNT shall 
use its reasonable efforts to provide to SUG-undertakings from such persons (“Rule 145 Letters”) 
to the effect that no disposition of shares of SUG Common Stock received in the Merger will be 
made by such persons except within the limits and in accordance with the applicable provisions 
of said Rule 145, as amended from time to time, or except in a transaction which, in the opinion 
of legal counsel satisfactory to SUG, is exempt from registration under the Securities Act. 

(1) Financing Activities. PNT shall, and shall cause its Subsidiaries to, 
cooperate, to the fullest extent commercially reasonable and practicable, with SUG’s requests with 
respect to refinancing by the Acquired Companies of the current maturities of any of their 
indebtedness, and any repurchase, redemption or prepayment by any of the Acquired Companies 
of any of its indebtedness or preferred stock that may be required prior to or because of the 
Mergers or that SUG may request that the Acquired Companies effect prior to the Mergers, so as 
to permit SUG to have the maximum opportunity to refinance, on or promptly after the Closing 
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Date without any penalw except as may be due pursuant to the terms of the Acquired Companies’ 
indebtedness and preferred stock as in effect on the date of this Agreement, any of the Acquired 
Companies’ indebtedness or preferred stock outstanding on the Closing Date, including, but not 
limited to, the redemption or repurchase by PG Energy (or purchase by PNT) by the Effective 
Time of all outstanding shares of PG Preferred Stock; pm.~&~!, however, that no Acquired 
Company shall be required to consummate prior to the Effective Time any such refinancing, 
repurchase, redemption or repayment requested by SUG. 

(m) PNTD isclosure Sched ulc. On the date hereof, PNT has delivered to SUG 
the PNT Disclosure Schedule, accompanied by a ceaifcate signed by an executive officer of PNT 
stating the PNT Disclosure Schedule is being delivered pursuant to this Section 6.l(m). The PNT 
Disclosure Schedule constitutes an integral part of this Agreement and modifies the 
representations, warranties, covenants or agreements of PNT contained herein to the extent that 
such representations, warranties, covenants or agreements expressly refer to the PNT Disclosure 
Schedule. 

Section 6.2 
covenants and agreements: 

Covenants of SUG. SUG agrees to observe and perform the following 

(a) Governmental ADD rovals: Third Pam Co nsents. SUG will use its 
reasonable best efforts at SUG’s sole expense to obtain all necessary consents, approvals and 
waivers from any Person required under any license, lease, permit, Contract or agreement 
applicable to SUG, including, without limitation, the approvals of the Missouri Public Service 
Commission, the Florida Public Service Commission and the Pennsylvania Public Utility 
Commission as described in Section 4.5 and as required by the HSR Act. 

(b) Emplovees: Benefits. With respect to the employees (excluding unionized 
employees) listed in Section 5.17(a) of the PNT Disclosure Schedule (or their successors employed 
pursuant to Section 6.l(a)(7) above) (the “Employees”), except as otherwise specified herein, SUG 
agrees as follows: 

(1) During the 12 months immediately following the Closing Date, to 
make available to the Employees who continue their service with the Surviving 
Corporation or any Subsidiary of the Surviving Corporation Benefit Plans that are no less 
favorable, in the aggregate, than the Benefit Plans Iisted in Section 5.18 of the PNT 
Disclosure Schedule offered to the Employees immediately prior to the Effective Time. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, SUG’s obligations under PNT’s Directors’ Retirement 
Plan, Directors’ 1995 Stock Compensation Plan and Directors’ Deferred Compensation 
Plan shall be limited to obligations accrued through and including the Effective Time, 
including, but not limited to, the change in control provisions contained in such plans. 

(2) For purposes of eligibility, vesting and benefit accrual under all 
benefit plans provided to the Employees after the Closing Date, SUG will recognize the 
tenure of employment, as recognized by the Acquired Companies as of the Closing Date. 



n 

(3) All vacation time earned by the Employees prior to the Closing Date 
must be taken by the end of the calendar year of the Closing Date, except where the 
Employee is requested by PNT or SUG to forego their vacation for business-related 
reasons. For purposes of awarding vacation time at the beginning of each calendar year 
following the Closing Date, SUG will recognize the tenure of employment, as recognized 
by the Acquired Company as of the Closing Date. 

(4) SUG will permit each of the Employees to carry forward all days 
of sick leave accrued prior to the Closing Date. 

6 )  Rule 16b-2 . SUG will take all reasonable steps so that the acquisition of the 
Merger Consideration by officers and directors of PNT (including Merger Consideration with 
respect to PNT Common Stock held under PNT Benefit Plans), and cash payments or substitute 
SUG options issued in exchange for PNT Options in accordance with Section 3.4, will be exempt 
from Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act by reason of Rule 16b-3 promulgated thereunder. 

(d) Tax Matters. SUG will not take, or fail to take, any action before or after 
the Closing Date that will adversely affect the qualification of the Merger(s) as a reorganization 
under Section 368(a)(l)(A) of the IRC. 

( e )  Blue Skv Perm its. SUG shall use its best efforts to obtain, prior to the 
effective date of the Registration Statement, all necessary state securities laws or “blue sky” 
permits and approvals required to carry out the transactions contemplated by the Agreement, and 
will pay all expenses incident thereto. 

. lication. Prior to the Closing, SUG shall cause the shares of (f) L l s t l n g D  

SUG Common Stock constituting the Stock Consideration and any other such shares required to 
be reserved for issuance in connection with the Merger to be listed on the NYSE, subject to 
official notice of issuance thereof. 

. .  

(g) Directors. After the Effective Time on the Closing Date, three individuals 
to be selected prior to the Closing Date by SUG from the Board of Directors of PNT immediately 
prior to the Effective Time shall be elected to the Board of Directors of SUG as the Surviving 
Corporation, and thereafter nominated and recommended for reelection if necessary such that each 
of them shall have a term of at least three years from the Closing Date, and each such individual 
shall hold office in accordance with the Certificate of Incorporation and By-laws of SUG as the 
Surviving Corporation; provided m, any such individual who is also an officer or employee of 
the Surviving Corporation shall be required to resign as a director of the Surviving Corporation 
if he resigns or is terminated as an officer or employee of the Surviving Corporation. 

Q B c  hnoloev: Pennsvlvania Opera tions. SUG will give full consideration to 
using or retaining PNT’s technology and management systems for the PNT operations after the 
Effective Time, if SUG determines that they are superior to such technology and management 
systems being used by SUG in its other operations and it is in the best interests of SUG and PNT’s 
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operations. SUG intends to operate the Acquired Companies’ utility operations in Pennsylvania 
as a separate division of the Surviving Corporation headquartered in Pennsylvania. 

(i) SUG will maintain PNT’s charitable contributions 
of at least the amount given and/or committed in 1998 for at least the next three calendar years. 

Collecti ve B a w n g  Agreements . At the Effective Time, SUG agrees to 
assume all collective bargaining agreements covering employees of any Acquired Company, and 
shall discharge when due any and all liabilities of any Acquired Company under such collective 
bargaining agreements relating to periods after the Effective Time. 

6) . .  

. . .  esmctiom on Unusual Dismbutions: -. Except for an annual 
5% stock dividend, SUG will not, prior to the Effective Time, declare any stock dividend, stock 
split, reclassification, recapitalization, combination or distribution of assets, securities or other 
property to holders of, or affecting, SUG Common Stock. 

. .  . .  . 
(k) 

n . SUG shall use its reasonable 
best efforts to solicit from SUG’s shareholders proxies in favor of the Merger and shall take all 
other action necessary or, in the reasonable opinion of PNT, advisable to secure the SUG 
Shareholders’ Approval. All Lindemann family members who own shares of SUG Common 
Stock as of the date of this Agreement have provided PNT with a commitment and irrevocable 
proxy to vote all of their shares of SUG Common Stock in favor of the Merger, the form of which 
is attached hereto as Schedule 6.2(1). 

. .  . 
(1) 

(m) SUG Shar eholde r ADD roval. 

(1) Subject to the provisions of Section 6.2(m)(2), SUG shall, as soon 
as reasonably practicable after the date hereof (i) take all steps necessary to duly call, give 
notice of, convene and hold a meeting of its shareholders (including all adjournments 
thereof, the “SUG Meeting”) for the purpose of securing the SUG Shareholders’ Approval, 
(ii) distribute to its shareholders the SUG Proxy Statement in accordance with applicable 
federal and state law and with its Organizational Documents, (iii) subject to the fiduciary 
duties of its Board of Directors, recommend to its shareholders the approval of this 
Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby and (iv) cooperate and consult with 
PNT with respect to each of the foregoing matters. 

(2) The SUG Meeting for the purpose of securing the SUG 
Shareholders’ Approval, includmg any adjournments thereof, will be held on such date or 
dates as PNT and SUG mutually determine. 

(n) SUG Disclosure Schedule. On the date hereof, SUG has delivered to PNT 
the SUG Disclosure Schedule, accompanied by a certificate signed by an executive officer of SUG 
stating that the SUG Disclosure Schedule is being delivered pursuant to this Section 6.2(n). The 
SUG Disclosure Schedule constitutes an integral part of this Agreement and modifies the 
representations, warranties, covenants or agreements of SUG contained herein to the extent that 
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such representations, warranties, covenants or agreements expressly refer to the SUG Disclosure 
Schedule. 

(0) Conduct of the Business Prior to the Closinc Ila& Except as contemplated 
in this Agreement, as required by law or regulation or as otherwise expressly consented to in 
writing by PNT which consent will not be unreasonably withheld, prior to the Closing, SUG will: 

Not make or permit any material change in the general nature of its (1) 
business: 

(2) Maintain its present operations in the Ordinary Course of Business 
in accordance with prudent business judgment and consistent with past practice and policy, 
and maintain its assets in good repair, order and condition, reasonable wear and tear 
excepted, subject to retirements in the Ordinary Course of Business; 

(3) Preserve SUG as an ongoing business and use reasonable efforts to 
maintain the goodwill associated with SUG; and 

(4) Preserve all of SUG’s franchises, tariffs, certificates of public 
convenience and necessity, licenses, authorizations and other governmental rights and 
permits. 

(P) Acces s to SUG ’s Offices. Properties and Records: Upda tino Inform ation. ’ 

(1) From and after the date hereof and until the Closing Date, SUG and 
its Subsidiaries shall permit PNT and its Representatives to have, on reasonable notice and 
at reasonable thes ,  reasonable access to such of the offices, properties and employees of 
SUG and its Subsidiaries, and shall disclose, and make available to PNT and its 
Representatives all books, papers and records to the extent that they relate to the 
ownership, operation, obligations and liabilities of or pertaining to SUG, its Subsidiaries 
and their respective businesses and assets. Without limiting the application of the 
Confidentiality Agreement, all documents or information furnished by SUG and its 
Subsidiaries hereunder shall be subject to the Confidentiality Agreement. 

(2) SUG will notify PNT as promptly as practicable of any significant 
change in the Ordinary Course of Business or operation of SUG or any of its Subsidiaries 
and of any material complaints, investigations or hearings (or communications indicating 
that the same may be contemplated) by any Governmental Body, or the institution or overt 
threat or settlement of any material Proceeding involving or affecting SUG or any of its 
Subsidiaries or the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, and shall use reasonable 
efforts to keep PNT fully informed of such events and permit PNT’s Representatives 
access to all materials prepared in connection therewith consistent with any applicable 
Legal Requirement or Contract. 
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(3) As promptly as practicable after PNT’s request, SUG will furnish 
such financial and operating data and other information pertaining to SUG, its Subsidiaries 
and their respective businesses and assets as PNT may reasonably request; provided, 
however, that nothing herein will obligate SUG or any of its Subsidiaries to take actions 
that would unreasonably disrupt its Ordinary Course of Business or violate the terms of 
any Legal Requirement or Contract to which SUG or any of its Subsidiaries is a party or 
to which any of its assets is subject in providing such information, or to incur any costs 
with respect to PNT’s external auditors (or SUG’s external auditors in the event a report 
by such auditors is requested by PNT) providing accounting services with respect to 
issuing an auditor’s report required by or for PNT. 

Section 6.3 Additional Agreements. 

(a) The Repistrati on Statem ent. the PNT Proxv Sta temen t and th e SUG Proxy 
St&mmt. As soon as practicable after the date hereof, PNT and SUG shall take such reasonable 
steps as are necessary for the prompt preparation and filing with the SEC of (i) the PNT Proxy 
Statement by PNT, (ii) the SUG Proxy Statement by SUG and (iii) the Registration Statement, 
which will include information contained in the PNT Proxy Statement, by SUG. The foregoing 
shall include without limitation: (i) obtaining and furnishing the information required to be 
included therein, (ii) after consultation between PNT and SUG, responding promptly to any 
comments made by the SEC with respect to the PNT Proxy Statement, the SUG Proxy Statement 
and the Registration Statement and any amendments and preliminary version thereof and (iii) 
causing the Registration Statement to become effective, the PNT Proxy Statement to be mailed 
to PNT’s shareholders at the earliest practicable date and the SUG Proxy Statement to be mailed 
to SUGs shareholders at the earliest practicable date. PNT agrees, as to information with respect 
to PNT, its officers, directors, shareholders and Subsidiaries contained in the Registration 
Statement, the PNT Proxy Statement and the SUG Proxy Statement, and SUG agrees, as to 
information with respect to SUG, its officers, directors, shareholders and Subsidiaries contained 
in the Registration Statement, the PNT Proxy Statement and the SUG Proxy Statement, that such 
information, in the case of the PNT Proxy Statement at the time of the mailing of the PNT Proxy 
Statement and (as then amended or supplemented) at the time of the PNT Meeting, in the case of 
the SUG Proxy Statement, at the time of the mailing of the SUG Proxy Statement and (as then 
amended or supplemented) at the time of the SUG Meeting or in the case of the Registration 
Statement at the time of the mailing of the PNT Proxy Statement (as then amended or 
supplemented), at the time of the PNT Meeting and at the effective time of the Registration 
Statement, will not contain any untrue statement of material fact required to be stated therein or 
necessary in order to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they 
are made, not misleading. No representation, warranty, covenant or agreement is made by or on 
behalf of PNT with respect to information supplied by any other party for inclusion in the PNT 
Proxy Statement, the SUG Proxy Statement or the Registration Statement. No representation, 
warranty, covenant or agreement is made by or on behalf of SUG with respect to information 
supplied by any other party for inclusion in the PNT Proxy Statement, the SUG Proxy Statement 
or the Registration Statement. No filing of, or amendment or supplement to, the PNT Proxy 
Statement, the SUG Proxy Statement or the Registration Statement shall be made by any party 
hereto without providing the other party with the opportunity to review and comment thereon 
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(except for any ongoing SEC reporting required of SUG, PNT or PG Energy that will be 
incorporated by reference). If at any time prior to the Effective Time any information relating 
to any party hereto or any of their respective officers, directors, shareholders or Subsidiaries, 
should be discovered by any party hereto which should be set forth in an amendment or 
supplement to the PNT Proxy Statement, the SUG Proxy Statement or the Registration Statement 
so that the PNT Proxy Statement, the SUG Proxy Statement or the Registration Statement would 
not include any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact necessary to 
make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not 
misleading, the party which discovers such information shall promptly notify the other party 
hereto and an appropriate amendment or supplement describing such information shall be promptly 
prepared, fded with the SEC and, to the extent required by law, disseminated to the shareholders 
of PNT andlor the shareholders of SUG, as may be necessary. 

(b) Further Assurances . Each of SUG, PNT and any Acquired Company agrees 
to take all such reasonable and lawful action as may be necessary or appropriate in order to 
effectuate the Merger in accordance with this Agreement as promptly as possible. If, at any time 
after the Effective Time, any such further action is necessary or desirable to carry out the purpose 
of this Agreement and to vest PNT or SUG with full right, title and possession to all assets, 
property, rights, privileges, powers and franchises of the Acquired Companies, PNT’s 
shareholders and the officers and directors of the Acquired Companies immediately prior to the 
Effective Time are fully authorized in the name of their respective corporations or otherwise to 
take, and will take, all such lawful and necessary action. 

ARTICLE VI1 
CONDITIONS 

Section 7.1 Conditions to SUG’s Obligation to Effect the Merger. The obligation 
of SUG to effect the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall be subject to fulfillment 
at or prior to the Closing of the following conditions: 

(a) Representations a nd Warrant ies True as of the Clos ine - D a .  PNT’s 
representations and warranties in this Agreement shall have been accurate in all material respects 
as of the date of this Agreement and shall be accurate in all material respects as of the Closing 
Date as if made on the Closing Date, subject to changes expressly contemplated and permitted by 
this Agreement; provided m, any such representation or warranty that is qualified by any 
standard of materiality (including, but not limited to, PNT Material Adverse Effect) shall have 
then been, and shall then be, accurate in all respects. 

(b) Compliance with Agreements. The covenants, agreements and conditions 
required by this Agreement to be performed and complied with by any of the Acquired Companies 
shall have been performed and complied with in all material respects prior to or at the Closing 
Date. 
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(c) Certificate. PNT shall execute and deliver to SUG a certificate of an 
authorized officer of PNT, dated the Closing Date, stating that the conditions specified in Sections 
7.l(a) and 7.l(b) of this Agreement applicable to the Acquired Companies have been satisfied. 

(d) Governmental AD provals. All approvals, consents, opinions or rulings of 
all Governmental Bodies required in order to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby 
shall have been obtained by Final Order in such form as is, and with no conditions that are, 
individually or in the aggregate, reasonably likely to have a PNT Material Adverse Effect or a 
material adverse effect on the business, operations, properties, financial condition or results of 
operations of the Surviving Corporation. The applicable waiting period under the HSR Act with 
respect to the transactions contemplated hereby shall have expired or have been terminated. 

(e) m Party c o m  . Each of the consents required under Section 5.4 of 
this Agreement shall have been obtained to the reasonable satisfaction of SUG, other than any 
such consents which, if not obtained, are not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably likely 
to result in a PNT Material Adverse Effect after the Closing. In addition, all consents and 
approvals required, under the terms of any note, bond or indenture listed on the schedule to be 
delivered pursuant to Section 5.4, to which any of the Acquired Companies is a party, shall have 
been obtained. 

(t) hiunctions. On the Closing Date, there shall be no Orders which operate 
to restrain, enjoin or otherwise prevent the consummation of this Agreement or the Mergers. 

(g) 
’ . Each director of each Acquired Company shall, if requested 

by SUG, resign any position as a director of an Acquired Company effective as of the Closing 
Date in accordance with such Subsidiary’s Organizational Documents and applicable provisions 
of the PBCL; pmrided that, such resignations shall not cause the termination of any such Person’s 
employment as an employee of an Acquired Company or reduce any such employee’s then current 
level of compensation. 

(h) Qpinion of Tax Counsel . On the Closing Date, SUG shall have received 
from Roberts and Holland, L.L.P., special tax counsel to SUG, an opinion to the effect that the 
Merger will constitute a “reorganization” within the meaning of IRC Section 368(a)(l)(A), that 
the Honesdale Merger and the PG Energy Merger will each constitute “reorganizations” within the 
meaning of IRC Section 368(a)(l)(A) or “liquidations” within the meaning of IRC Section 332, 
and that no gain or loss will be recognized by SUG or any of the Acquired Companies with 
respect to the Mergers. 

(i) Shareholder Approvals. The SUG Shareholders’ Approval and the PNT 
Shareholders’ Approval shall have been obtained, and all of the outstanding shares of the PG 
Preferred Stock shall have been redeemed in accordance with the Organizational Documents of 
PG Energy, purchased by PNT or repurchased by PG Energy. 
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(i) Dissenter’s RI ’ghts. Demand for payment of dissenters’ rights by 
shareholders of PNT with respect to the Merger shall not equal or exceed seven percent of the 
outstanding shares of PNT Common Stock entitled to vote thereon. 

(k) Rule 145 Letters. Each Rule 145 Affiiiate shall have executed and delivered 
to SUG a Rule 145 Letter, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to SUG and its counsel. 

(1) -ration State- . The Registration Statement shall have become 
effective, no stop order suspending the effectiveness of the Registration Statement shall have been 
issued and no proceedings for that purpose shall have been initiated or threatened by the SEC. 

(m) Listin0 of SUG Common Stock . The shares of SUG Common Stock 
constituting the Stock Consideration and any other shares of SUG Common Stock required to be 
issued or reserved hereunder to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall 
have been authorized for listing, upon official notice of issuance, on the NYSE. 

Section 7.2 Conditions to PNT’s Obligations to Effect the Mergers. The obligation 
of PNT to effect the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall be subject to fulfillment 
at or prior to the Closing of the following conditions: 

(a) &presentations and Warranties Tru e as of the Clpsi ne - Dak . SUG’s 
representations and warranties in this Agreement shall have been accurate in all material respects 
as of the date of this Agreement and shall be accurate in all material respects as of the Closing 
Date as if made on the Closing Date, subject to changes expressly contemplated and permitted by 
this Agreement; provided that, any such representation or warranty that is qualified by any 
standard of materiality (including, but not limited to, SUG Material Adverse Effect) shall have 
then been, and shall then be, accurate in all respects. 

(b) Compliance with Agreements. The covenants, agreements and conditions 
required by this Agreement to be performed and complied with by SUG shall have been performed 
and complied with in all material respects prior to or at the Closing Date. 

(C) Certificate. SUG shall execute and deliver to PNT a certificate of an 
authorized officer of SUG, dated the Closing Date, stating that the conditions specified in Sections 
7.2(a) and 7.2(b) of this Agreement applicable to SUG have been satisfied. 

(d) Governmental Appro val s . All approvals, consents, opinions or rulings of 
all Governmental Bodies required in order to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby 
shall have been obtained by Final Order in such form as is, and with no conditions that are, 
individually or in the aggregate, reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the 
business, operations, properties, financial condition or results of operations of the Surviving 
Corporation. The applicable waiting period under the HSR Act with respect to the transactions 
contemplated hereby shall have expired or have been terminated. 

49 



(e) Injunctions. On the Closing Date, there shall be no Orders which operate 
to restrain, enjoin or otherwise prevent the consummation of this Agreement or the Mergers. 

(0 Ouinion of C o w  el. On the Closing Date, PNT shall have received from 
Hughes Hubbard & Reed LLP, counsel to PNT, an opinion to the effect that the Merger will be 
treated for federal income tax purposes as a “reorganization” within the meaning of IRC Section 
368(a), and that no gain or loss will be recognized for federal income tax purposes by the 
shareholders of PNT upon their receipt of the Merger Consideration, except that any realized gain 
will be recognized to the extent of the amount of cash received. 

(g) s hareholder ADpro v & . The SUG Shareholders’ Approval and the PNT 
Shareholders’ Approval shall have been obtained. 

(h) Reeistration Stateme nt: The Registration Statement shall have become 
effective, no stop order suspending the effectiveness of the Registration Statement shall have been 
issued and no proceedings for that purpose shall have been initiated or threatened by the SEC. 

of SUG Common Stock. The shares of SUG Common Stock 
constituting the Stock Consideration and any other shares of SUG Common Stock required to be 
issued or reserved hereunder to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall 
have been authorized for listing, upon official notice of issuance, on the NYSE. 

. .  
( 0  

ARTICLE VI11 
TERMINATION 

Section 8.1 Termination Rights. This Agreement may be terminated in its entirety at 
any time prior to the Closing: 

By the mutual written consent of SUG and PNT; 

(b) By PNT, on the one hand, or SUG, on the other hand, in writing if there 
shall be in effect a non-appealable order of a court of competent jurisdiction prohibiting the 
consummation of the Mergers in accordance with this Agreement; 

(c) By PNT if there is a breach of any representation, warranty, covenant or 
agreement of SUG, which breach cannot be cured and would cause the conditions set forth in 
Section 7.2(a) to be incapable of being satisfied; 

(d) By SUG if there is a breach of any representation, warranty, covenant or 
agreement of PNT, which breach cannot be cured and would cause the conditions set forth in 
Section 7.l(a) to be incapable of being satisfied; 

(e) By PNT, by written notice to SUG in accordance with Section 6.l(h)(2); 
provided. however, that the termination described in this clause (e) shall not be effective unless 
and until PNT shall have paid SUG the fee described in Section 8.3(a) and PNT has substantially 
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contemporaneously entered into a definitive agreement with respect to a Business Combination 
Proposal; 

(f) By PNT, in writing if the PNT Shareholders’ Approval is not obtained at 
the PNT Meeting or the SUG Shareholders’ Approval is not obtained at the SUG Meeting or by 
SUG in writing if the PNT Shareholders’ Approval is not obtained at the PNT Meeting provided 
W there has not been a material misrepresentation or a material breach of covenant, warranty 
or agreement contained herein on the part of the party asserting its right to terminate pursuant to 
this Section 8.1(Q; 

(g) 
Closing is lower than $17.3oooO. 

By PNT, if the Average Tradiig Price of the SUG Common Stock as of the 

(h) By SUG, by written notice to PNT, if the Board of Directors of PNT or any 
committee thereof (i) withdraws or modifies, or proposes publicly to withdraw or modify, in a 
manner adverse to SUG, the approval or recommendation by the Board of Directors or such 
committee of the Merger or this Agreement, (ii) approves or recommends, or proposes publicly 
to approve or recommend, a Business Combination, (iii) causes PNT to enter into a definitive 
agreement related to any Business Combination, (iv) resolves to take any of the actions specified 
in clause (i), (ii) and (iii) above or (v) fails by the Effective Time to cause PG Energy to redeem 
or repurchase all of the outstanding shares of PG Preferred Stock; 

(i) By SUG, by written notice to PNT, if a third party, including a group (as 
defmed under the Exchange Act) acquires securities representing greater than 50% of the voting 
power of the outstanding voting securities of PNT; or 

6) By either party in writing at any time after 5:OO p.m., Eastern Time on June 
7, 2000, (the “Initial Termination Date”) if the Closing has not occurred prior thereto; pmudd, 
however, that the right to terminate this Agreement under this Section 8.10) will not be available 
to any party that is in material breach of its representations, warranties, covenants or agreements 
contained herein; and provided, further, that if on the Initial Termination Date (i) the conditions 
to closing set forth in Sections 7.l(d) and 7.2(d) shall not have been fulfilled or (ii) any approval 
or authorization of any Governmental Body required in connection with the consummation of the 
Mergers shall have not been obtained and such approval or authorizations shall not have become 
a Final Order, but all other conditions to Closing shall be fulfilled or shall be capable of being 
fulfilled, then the Initial Termination Date will be extended to December 7, 2000. 

Section 8.2 Effect of Termination. If this Agreement is terminated pursuant to Section 
8.1, this Agreement shall be of no further force and effect and there shall be no further liability 
hereunder on the part of any party or its affiliates, directors, officers, shareholders, agents or 
other representatives; provided, however, that no such termination shall relieve any party of 
liability for any claims, damages or losses suffered by the other party as a result of the negligent 
or willful failure of a party to perform any obligations required to be performed by it hereunder 
on or prior to the date of termination. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, 
the provisions of Section 8.2, Sections 10.1 through 10.6 and Sections 10.8 through 10.11 of this 
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Agreement shall survive any termination of this Agreement. Notwithstanding anything to the 
contrary contained herein, but subject to Section 7.1(i), Section 8.l(h) and Section 8.2, the failure 
by PG Energy to obtain the approval of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement by the 
holders of either series of PG Preferred Stock in the event such approval may be determined to 
be required shall not constitute a breach by PNT of any of its representations, warranties or 
covenants contained herein. 

Section 8.3 Termination Fee; Expenses. 

Termination Fee (a) . If this Agreement is terminated pursuant to Section 
8.l(e), 8.l(h) or S.l(i), then PNT shall pay to SUG promptly (but not later than five business 
days after notice is received from PNT) an amount equal to $10 million in cash. 

. .  

(b) Expenses. The parties agree that the agreements contained in this Section 
8.3 are an integral part of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and constitute 
liquidated damages and not a penalty. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this 
Section 8.3, if PNT fails to pay promptly to SUG the fee due under Section 8.3(a), in addition 
to any amounts paid or payable pursuant to Section 8.3(a), PNT shall pay the costs and expenses 
(including legal fees and expenses) in connection with any action, including the filing of any 
lawsuit or other legal action, taken to collect payment, together with interest on the amount of any 
unpaid fee calculated using an annual percentage rate of interest equal to the prime rate published 
in the WdI Weer Journal on the date (or preceding business day if such date is not a business day) 
such fee was required to be paid, compounded on a daily basis using a 360-day year. 

ARTICLE M 
INDEMNIFICATION: REMEDIES 

Section 9.1 Directors’ and Officer’s Indemnification. 

(a) m e m u  ’fication and lnsuran ce. For a period of six years after the Effective 
Time, the Surviving Corporation will kdenuufy and hold M e s s  the present and former officers 
and directors of PNT and its Subsidiaries (the “Indemnified Parties”) in respect of acts or 
omissions occurring prior to the Effective Time to the extent provided under PNT’s certificate of 
incorporation and bylaws in effect on the date hereof; provided. however, that if any claim or 
claims are asserted or made within such skyear  period, all rights to indemnification in respect 
of such claims shall continue until the final disposition of any and all such claims. For six years 
after the Effective Time, the Surviving Corporation will use its reasonable best efforts to provide 
officers’ and directors’ liability insurance in respect of acts or omissions occurring prior to the 
Effective Time covering each such person currently covered by PNT’s officers’ and directors’ 
liability insurance policy on terms with respect to coverage and amount no less favorable than 
those of such policy in effect on the date hereof; provided that in satisfying its obligation under 
this Section, if the annual premiums of such insurance coverage exceed 200% of the previous 
year’s premiums, the Surviving Corporation will be obligated to obtain a policy with the best 
coverage available, in the reasonable judgment of the Board of Directors of the Surviving 
Corporation for a cost not exceeding such amount. 
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(b) Successors. In the event the Surviving Corporation or any of its successors 
or assigns (i) consolidates with or merges into any other Person and is not the continuing or 
surviving corporation or entity of such consolidation or merger or (ii) transfers all or substantially 
all of its properties and assets to any Person, then and in either such case, proper provisions must 
be made so that the successors and assigns of the Surviving Corporation will assume the 
obligations set forth in this Section 9.1. 

(C) Survival of Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, from 
and after the Effective Time, all rights to indemnification as of the date hereof in favor of the 
employees, agents, directors and officers of any Acquired Company with respect to their activities 
as such prior to the Effective Time, as provided in their respective Organizational Documents in 
effect on the date hereof, or otherwise in effect on the date hereof, will survive the Mergers and 
will continue in full force and effect except for amendments to make changes permitted by law 
that would enhance the rights of past or present officers and directors to indemnification or 
advancement of expenses in respect of acts or omissions occurring prior to the Effective Time. 
for a period of not less than six years from the Effective Time (or, in the case of matters occurring 
prior to the Effective Time which have not been resolved prior to the sixth anniversary of the 
Effective Time, until such matters are finally resolved). 

Section 9.2 Representations and Warranties. Each and every representation and 
warranty of either party shall expire at, and be terminated and extinguished with, the Effective 
Time. 

ARTICLE X 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

Section 10.1 Expenses. Each of the parties will pay all costs and expenses of its 
performance of and compliance with this Agreement, except (i) as provided in Section 8.3 and as 
expressly provided otherwise herein, (ii) PNT shall pay all fees and expenses of counsel for PNT, 
(iii) SUG will pay all real estate transfir taxes and real estate recording fees, if any, including 
expenses of counsel associated with real estate title, transfer and recording issues in connection 
with the Mergers, and all filing and application fees paid to Governmental Bodies in connection 
with the Mergers and (iv) SUG and PNT will each pay half of the combined costs of printing and 
mailing to the PNT stockholders the PrOSpeCtuS that is a part of the Registration Statement and the 
Proxy Statement. 

Section 10.2 Notices. All notices, requests and other communications hereunder shall 
be in writing and shall be deemed to have been given upon receipt if either (a) personally 
delivered, (b) sent by prepaid first class mail, and registered or certified and a return receipt 
requested or (c) by facsimile telecopier with completed transmission acknowledged: 
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if to SUG, to: 

Southern Union Company 
501 Lavaca Street, Suite 800 
Austin, Texas 78701 
Attention: Peter H. Kelley 

Telecopier: (512) 477-3879 

with a copy to: 

Fleischman and Walsh, L.L.P. 
Suite 600 
1400 Sixteenth Street, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20036 
Attention: Stephen A. Bouchard, Esq. 
Telecopier: (202) 265-5706 

if to PNT, to: 

President and Chief Operating Officer 

Pennsylvania Enterprises, Inc. 
One PEI Center 
Wilkes-Barre, Pennsylvania 1871 1-0601 
Attention: Thomas F. Karam 

Telecopier: (570) 829-8900 

with a copy to: 

Hughes Hubbard & Reed LLP 
One Battery Park Plaza 
New York, New York 10004-1482 
Attention: Garett J. Albert, Esq. 
Telecopier: (212) 422-4726 

President and Chief Executive Officer 

or at such other address or number as shall be given in writing by a party to the other parties. 

Section 10.3 Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned by any party hereto 
without the prior written consent of the other parties hereto. 

Section 10.4 Successor Bound. Subject to the provisions of Section 10.3, this 
Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective 
successors and assigns. 
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Section 10.5 Governing Law; Forum; Consent to Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall 
be consmed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of New York except to the 
extent that the terms and consummation of the Mergers are subject to the DGCL or the PBCL. 
Each party to this Agreement hereby irrevocably and unconditionally (i) consents to submit to the 
exclusive jurisdiction of the federal courts of the Southern District of New York in the county of 
New York and the borough of Manhattan for any proceeding arising in connection with this 
Agreement (and each such party agrees not to commence any such proceeding, except in such 
courts), (ii) to the extent such party is not a resident of the State of New York, agrees to appoint 
an agent in the State of New York as such party’s agent for acceptance of legal process in any 
such proceeding against such party with the same legal force and validity as if served upon such 
party personally within the State of New York, and to notify promptly each other party hereto of 
the name and address of such agent, (iii) waives any objection to the laying of venue of any such 
proceeding in the federal courts of the Southem District of New York in the county of New York 
and the burrough of Manhattan, and (iv) waives, and agrees not to plead or to make, any claim 
that any such proceeding brought in any federal court of the Southern District of New York has 
been brought in an improper or otherwise inconvenient forum. 

Section 10.6 Waiver of Trial By Jury. EACH PARTY TO THIS AGREEMENT 
HEREBY WAIVES TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING TO WHICH 
ANY SUCH PARTY MAY BE PARTIES ARISING OUT OF OR IN ANY WAY 
PERTAINING TO (i) THIS AGREEMENT, (ii) THE MERGERS, (iii) THE 
CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT OR (iv) ANY RELATED DOCUMENTS. IT IS 
AGREED AND UNDERSTOOD THAT THIS WAIVER CONSTITUTES A WAIVER OF 
TRIAL BY JURY OF ALL CLAIMS AGAINST ALL PARTIES WHO ARE NOT PARTIES 
TO THIS AGREEMENT. THIS WAIVER IS KNOWINGLY, WILLINGLY AND 
VOLUNTARILY MADE BY EACH PARTY HERETO, AND EACH SUCH PARTY 
HEREBY REPRESENTS AND WARRANTS THAT NO REPRESENTATIONS OF FACT 
OR OPINION HAVE BEEN MADE BY ANY PERSON TO INDUCE THIS WAIVER OR 
TRIAL BY JURY OR TO IN ANY WAY MODIFY OR NULLIFY ITS EFFECT. EACH 
PARTY TO THIS AGREEMENT FURTHER REPRESENTS AND WARRANTS THAT 
EACH SUCH PARTY HAS BEEN REPRESENTED IN THE SIGNING OF THIS 
AGREEMENT AND IN THE MAKING OF THIS WAIVER BY INDEPENDENT LEGAL 
COUNSEL, SELECTED OF EACH SUCH PARTY’S OWN FREE WILL, AND THAT 
EACH SUCH PARTY HAS HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO DISCUSS THIS WAIVER 
WITH COUNSEL. 

Section 10.7 Cooperation; Further Documents. 

(a) Each of the parties hereto agrees to use its reasonable best efforts to take 
or cause to be taken all action, and to do or cause to be done all things necessary, proper or 
advisable under applicable laws, regulations or otherwise, to consummate and to make effective 
the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, including, without limitation, the timely 
performance of all actions and thmgs contemplated by this Agreement to be taken or done by each 
of the parties hereto. 
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(b) Each party shall cooperate with the other party in such other party's 
discharge of the obligations hereunder, which shall include making reasonably available to the 
other party such of its personnel as have relevant information, with respect thereto. 

Section 10.8 Construction of Agreement. The terms and provisions of this Agreement 
represent the results of negotiations between PNT and SUG, each of which has been represented 
by counsel of its own choosing, and neither of which has acted under duress or compulsion, 
whether legal, economic or otherwise. Accordingly, the terms and provisions of this Agreement 
shall be interpreted and construed in accordance with their usual and customary meanings, and 
PNT and SUG hereby waive the application in connection with the interpretation and construction 
of this Agreement of any rule of law to the effect that ambiguous or conflicting terms or 
provisions contained in this Agreement shall be interpreted or construed against the party whose 
attorney prepared the executed draft or any earlier draft of this Agreement. 

Section 10.9 Publicity; Organizational and Operational Announcements. No party 
hereto shall issue, make or cause the publication of any press release or other announcement with 
respect to this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby, or otherwise make any 
disclosures relating thereto, without the consent of the other party, such consent not to be 
unreasonably withheld or delayed; provided. however, that such consent shall not be required 
where such release or announcement is required by applicable law or the rules or regulations of 
a Securities exchange, in which event the party so required to issue such release or announcement 
sMl endeavor, wherever possible, to furnish an advance copy of the proposed release to the other 
Party. 

Section 10.10 Waiver. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, 
neither the failure nor any delay on the part of any party to exercise any right, power or privilege 
hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise or waiver of 
any such right, power or privilege preclude any other or further exercise thereof, or the exercise 
of any other right, power or privilege available to each party at law or in equity. 

Section 10.11 Parties in Interest. This Agreement (including the documents and 
instruments referred to herein) is not intended to confer upon any Person, other than the parties 
hereto and their successors and permitted assigns, any rights or remedies hereunder, except that 
the parties hereto agree and acknowledge that the agreements and covenants contained in Section 
6.2(g) are intended for the direct and irrevocable benefit of each director of PNT selected by SUG 
prior to the Closing Date pursuant thereto, and that the agreements and covenants contained in 
Section 9.1 are intended for the direct and irrevocable benefit of the Indemnified Parties described 
therein and their respective heirs or legal representatives (each such director or Indemnified Party, 
a "Third Party Beneficiary"), and that each such Third Party Beneficiary, although not a party to 
this Agreement, shall be and is a direct and irrevocable third party beneficiary of such agreements 
and covenants and shall have the right to enforce such agreements and covenants against the 
Surviving Corporation in all respects fully and to the same extent as if such Third Party 
Beneficiary were a party hereto. 
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Section 10.12 Specific Performance. The parties hereto agree that irreparable damage 
would occur to a party in the event that any of the provisions of this Agreement were not 
performed in accordance with their specific terms or were otherwise breached. It is accordingly 
agreed that any party shall be entitled to an injunction or injunctions to prevent breaches of this 
agreement by any other party and to enforce specifically, to the fullest extent available, the terms 
and provisions hereof, including each party's obligation to close, in any court of the United States 
or any state having jurisdiction, this being in addition to any other right or remedy to which any 
party is entitled at law or in equity. 

Section 10.13 Section and Paragraph Headings. The section and paragraph headings 
in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or 
interpretation of this Agreement. 

Section 10.14 Amendment. This Agreement may be amended only by an instrument in 
writing executed by the parties hereto. 

Section 10.15 Entire Agreement. This Agreement, the exhibits, annexes and schedules 
hereto and the documents specifically referred to herein and the Confidentiality Agreement 
constitute the entire agreement, understanding, representations and warranties of the parties 
hereto. 

Section 10.16 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute 
one and the same instrument. 

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 
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IN WlTNESS -OF, the paaies have executed and delivered this Agreement as of 
the date fmt wrinen above. 

SOUTHERN UNION COMPANY 

- 
Name: Perer H. KeUey 
Title: President and Chief Operating Officer 

PENNSYLVANIA ENTERPRISES, nUC. 

By: 
Name: Thomas F. Karam 
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer 
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